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former President of Geldman $achs Furope Limited Age 65
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Sons Limited from 1977 10 19596 Age 62
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President — Civit Aerospace n 1998 He 1s a Fellow of the Royal Academy of
Engineenng and of the Rayal Aeronauucal Society He 1s a member of the Institunon
of Electical Engineers and of the Order of Engineers of Quebec. Age 59
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Appanted 1o the Board in 2005 He 1s an executive director of BP pl ¢ having held a
range of executve positions within the BP Group worldwide He s Charman of the
Advisory Board of The Impenal College London Tanaka Business School Age 44
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Appointed to the Board in 1998 having joined Ralls-Royee in 1997 He s a director of
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Until 1995 he was Executive Vice President, Marketing and Planning of Urited Arlines
Age 61
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non-executive director of Cain Energy PLC and he was Finance Drrector of
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Colin P Srith BSc Hons, FREng, FRAeS, FIMechE

Director - Engineering and Technology

Appointed to the Board in 2005 having joined Rolls-Royce in 1974 He has held a
vanety of key positions within Engineering Including Director - Research and
Technology and Director of Engineering and Technology - Cwil Aerospace He 1sa
Fellow of the Royal Acadermy of Engineening, the Roya! Aeronautical Soaety and the
Institution of Mechanical Engineers Age 51

lan C Strachan

Non-executive director

Appointed to the Board in 2003 He 15 a non-executive director of Reuters Group ple,
Johnson Matthey plc, Xstrata ple and Transocean Inc. He ts the former Chief Executive
of BTR plc, former Deputy Chief Executive (1991 to 1995) and Chief Financial Officer
{1987 to 1991) of Rio Tinto plc, former non-executive Charman of Instinet Group Inc
and former non-executive director of Commercial Union Age 63

Carl G Symon BSc, MSc
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Appointed to the Board in 1999 He s Chairrman of HMV Group plg, the BT Group
Eguaiity of Access Board and Clearswift Systems Lid He s also anon executive
director of BT Group ple, Senior Independenit Director of Rexam plc and an Adwvisory
Board member of Cross Atlantic Capital Partners, He was previousty Chairman and
Chief Executrve Officer IBM UK and held numerous executive positions with (BM
Corp in Canada USA, Latin Amenca, Asia and Europe duning a 32 year international
career Age 60
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Chartes E Blundell MA
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Report of the directors

The directors present therr report and the audited financial statements of
Rofts-Royce plc (the Company} and 11s subsichanes (together referred to as
the Group) for the year ended Decernber 31 2006

Bustness review
A review of the business can be found on pages 410 18.

Share capital
No new shares were issued duning the year

Going concern

After making enguines, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis
In prepanng the financial staternents

Palitical donations
In line with its established policy, the Group made no pelincal donations durng 2006

Directors
The duectors brographical detatls including their other sigrificant commitments,
are set out on page 2 Dunng the year there were a number of Board changes
Colin Green retwed as an executive director on Apnl 4, 2006 Hon Amy Bondurant
and Carl-Peter Forster retired as non-executive directors on Septermber 14, 2006

As at December 31 2006 all the directors were also directors of Rolls-Rayce
Group plc, the ulumate parent company As directers of the ultimate parent
company, there 1s no requirernent to disdose their indmdual remuneration or therr
interests in the shares of companies in the Rolls-Royce group in this repart, as they
are disclosed in the Annual report of Rolls-Royce Group plc

The closing rmid-market pnce of the ordinary shares of Rolls-Royce Group plc
at December 31, 2006 was 447 75p and the range dunng the year was 3755p in
June te 490p in Apnl

The Company has entered into separate Deeds of Indemimity in favour of its
directors. The deeds provde substantially the same protection as that already
provided to directors under the indermnnity in Article 170 of the Company’s Articles
of Association The Company has alsc arranged appropnate insurance cover for any
legal action taken agawnst its directors.

Payment to suppliers
The Company 1s guided by the Supply Chain Relationships in Aerospace (SCRIA)
intiatve [t seeks the best possible terms from suppliers and, when entenng into
binding purchasing contracts, gives consideration to quality, delivery, price and the
terms of the payment. In the event of disputes, efforts are made to resotve them
quickly

The Comparny had the equivalent of 49 days purchases outstanding at
Decemnber 31, 2006, based on the average datly amount invoiced by suppliers
dunng the year

Auditors
A resolunon to reappaoint the auditors, KPMG Audit Plc, and o authonise the directors
to determine their remuneration, will 2lso be proposed at the AGM

By order of the Board

&—""

Charles Blundeli Company Secretary
Febraary 7, 2007

Statement of directors’ respensibilities in respect of the Report of the directors
and the financal statements

The directors are responsible for prepaning the Report of the directors and the Group
and parent compary financial staternents, in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parert company
financal statements for each financial year Under that law the directors are required
1o prepare the Group finanaa! staternents in accordance wath International financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU and have elected to prepare the
parent company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards

The Group financial statements are required by law and IFRS as adopted by the
EU to present farly the finaneal positon and performance of the Group, the
Comparies Act 1985 (the ‘Act’} provides in relation to such finanaial statements that
references in the relevant part of the Act to financal staternents giving a true and farr
view are references to thesr achieving a fair presentation

The parent company financial statements are required by law to give a true and
fair view of the state of affaws of the parent company

In prepanng each of the Group and parent company financial staternents, the
directors are required to
- select sutable accounting pobaes and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and esumates that are reasonable and pradent;
- for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU,
-~ for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained Inthe parent company financial statements, and
prepare the financal staternents on the going concern basis unless it
nappropnate 1 presume that the Group and the parent company will continue
In business
The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any ime the financial position of the parent company
and enable them to ensure that its financial staternents cornply with the Act They
have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
wrregulanties.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for
prepanng a directors' report, directors temunerabion report and corporate
governance statement that comply with that law and those regulations The directors
are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
informanion included on the Group's website Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissernination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other junsdictions

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the persons who 1 a director at the date of approval of this report confirms

that:

) sofar as the director is aware there is no relevant infarmation of which the
Company’s auditors are unaware

1} the director has taken all steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order
10 make himself aware of any refevant audit information and to estabhish that
the Company's auditors are aware of that information

This confirmnation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the

provsions of Section 2347A of the Act
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Business review

Chief Executive’s review
Sir John Rose

Our market sectors present global growth opportunities.
We continued to make progress in 2006

The Group continued to make good progress 1n 2006 increasing sales to

£7,156 million (2005 £6 603 million), with underlying sales growth of 14 per cent,
and increasing underlying profit before tax by 23 per cent to £712 milliory

(2005 £579 milkon) Importantly our ability to access growing markets on a global
basis enabled us 1o continue to grow our order book, which ended the year at
£261 bilion {2005 £24 4 bilkon)

We continue to invest In technologies, products, people and capabilines with
the ojective of broadening and strengthening our product pertfolio, improving
our efficiency and enhancing the environmental performance of our products
In 2006 total Investment In research and development amounted to £747 million
(2005 £663 million)

After increasing iInvestment in manufactunng capability and research and
development, there was a strong cash inflow of £491 million resulting in an
improverment of £41¢ million in our average cash balance, with a cash balance of
£825 million at the end of the year (2005 £334 million)

Qur overall perfermance in 2006 was strong in an undoubtedly challenging
year The underlying financial results were achveved after accommodating a further
seven cent detenioration in the dollar achieved rate relative to 2005 We expect to
absorb sirmilar further detenoration in the exchange rate we achieve in 2007

We manage our exposure to the US dollar by long-term hedging Today we
have the benefit of a hedge book of approximately USS 10 billion, which means that
we have clear visibility of the exchange rate we can achieve over the next three years
Whlst it 1s Irnpossible to offset sustained dollar weakness through hedging the cover
we have taken reduces the volatility that exchange rate fluctuations cause and
creates the opporturity for us to take other mitigating actions such as cost reduction
and the dollansation’of our cost base

Raw matenat price inflation has been a significant factor for all manufactunng
industry Itis helpful that, as @ high value-added business the cost of raw matenals
forms a relatively small proportion of our total costs We have maintaned our focus
on productvity and efficiency measures and, where appropriate, we hedge our
exposure In the financial commodities markets The nature of the business also
enables us te enter into long-term procurement contracts, which help protect us
frorn future fluctuations in raw matenal pnces and give us visthility of our cost base

We are continuing to invest globally in new facilites and to improve the
performance of our internanonal supgly chain These changes, which are occumng at
the same time as a significant Increase in load have been managed well in tough
conditiens

We operate in a competiive and challenging envronment and, in doing so, we
benefit from a consistent strategy, a strong order book, long programme life oycles
and the revenue generated by the provision of value-added services 1o the users of
our products. Consequently we have good wisibility of our future workload and
market opportunity The results in 2006 dermnanstrate the resilience of the Group and
its business model

We are continuing our discussions with the relevant parties about our UK
pension funds Our proposals include a cash injection of £500 million Cur overall
intent 1s to make a sgnificant step towards reducing deficits and lirinng the iImpact
on the business of volatlity in interest rates and share prices We expect 1o make
progress in 2007

A strong balance sheet
The Group ended 2006 with a net cash balance of £825 million In 2007, a substangal
portion of this balance 1s earmarked to address the pension fund defict We believe
that a strong balance sheet 15 essential for a long-term business such as ours We
compete against large competitors across programmes where eturns are measured
aver decades, where we enter into long-term service commutments and where
sigreficant investrments to gain market access are the norm It was pleasing to see
that both the major credit rating agenaes reflected their positive view of our progress
by promoting the rating of our parent company, Rolls-Royce Group plc, into the
A'category in 2006 Duning 2007, we will be reviewing our financia! strategy in hght of
the Group’s continuing cash generation INvestment needs, progress on resohving the
pension deficit and underlying performance

One of the most frequent questions we are asked by financal analysts is
whether we will seek to use our growing cash balances to buy businesses We can, of
course, grow organically, as we have been demonstrating for a number of years
However we do net rule out acquisitions and, ndeed today's performance benefits
from a number of successful past acquisitions We intend, however, to remain a highly
focused power systems business and any potential acquisition must deliver relevant
technoiogy, products or routes to market

Today's business is the result of the implementation of a consistent strategy over
many years and we believe that, as a focused power systems business, we can create
most value for shareholders by continuing to pursue this strategy

Priorities
We addressed four prionty areas in 2006

Investrnent in technology and progucts

We have a structured approach to techndlogy acqusiiion, kooking ahead over five
ten and 20-year tme hanzons We can see significant opportunities for the
introduction of new products in each of our markets and our strategy 15 to ensure
that we have innovative technologies on the shelf'for future generations of product
Each product investment 1S subject to a ngorous examination of the nsks and rewards
10 ensurre that only business cases that create shareholder value are pursued

Operational and unit cost reduction

We continued to make progress with the modermisation of our factones, introduction
of more efficient working practices, simplification of the supply chain and
improvement of business processes These INitatives remain & pronty In 2607, when
we will alse be introducing measures to reduce overhead costs

Continued developrent of afterrnarket services

Underlying afterrnarket services revenues grew by 13 per cent in 2006 and
represented 53 per cent of Group sales This 1s a consequence of the successful
introcuction of new products, the growing nstalled base of engines in service and
the investment we have made in innovative aftermarket service capabilites We have
continued to be successful in the introductron of comgprehensive through life service
arrangements in each of our business sectors These align our interests with those of
our customers and enable us te add value through the application of our skills and
assets

Responding to the challenge of cimate change
We believe strongly that Rolls-Royce has a positive role to play in the way that we
participate In the debate about climate change inctuding helping 1o shape the
responses to current concerns about the ermronment

This 15 not a new subject for Rolls Royce We have an established track record of
reducing the emissions of our products and our manufactunng facines

We published our first ervironmental report, Powening a better world, for 1998
and over many years, our research programmes have been directed at improving
hoth the energy efficiency of our products and their emvironmentat impact That
expenence will stand us in good stead as we respond to the new opportunities
presented by dimate change

Rolls-Royce offers a centre of excellence in terms of the engineenng and
techmical skills which we can apply to these new challenges, and we can contnbute
to a proper understanding of the science and facts on which the current debate on
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chmate change should be based That 15 why we see Rolls-Royce as representing part
of the solution to chmate change

We do, of course, accept that our gas turbines and diesels have an
environmenital iImpact through carbon dioxade, other emissions and noise However,
they also enable fast and reliable trade and travel, help safeguard world secunty
generate efficent elecinaity and contnbute to the quality of Lfe enjoyed by millions of
people all over the world Qur challenge is to preserve these critical benefits on a
sustainable basis

Improving the environmental perdformance of our products

We tvest over £100 million every year on research and technology, two thirds of
which 1s duected at impreving the environmental performance of our products.

In addition, we spend around £350 million a year on the development and
introduction of new products which embody these technologies and therefore have
significantly enhanced ervironmental performance In the aviation sector Rofls-Royce
15 playing 2 leading role inthe achievernent of the long-term environmental goals set
by the Adwisory Counal for Aeronautics Research in Europe (ACARE) Under the
ACARE prograrmme, fuet burn and carbon dioxide emissions are targeted to be
reduced by 50 per cent by 2020, nose by 50 per cent and nitrous oxde by 80 per
cent, all from a 2000 baseline

Working towards a more sustainable future
As a technology based company, we beheve we can help society identify new
solutions to environmental concerns. We are commutted to developing low carbon
technoiogies, including alternative energy sources For example, we are investing in a
major prograrmime to develop solid oxide fuel cells, a technology which will reduce
carbon dioxide emissions and offer other environmental benefits such as low noise
and improved arr quality

We are also engaging In blug skies'research, including the feasibiity of using
synthetic kerosene 1o power aircraft of the future

Reducing the environmental impact of our operations
Qur manufactuning facilities already operate to world class levels of environmental
perforrance as recognised by a number of external bodies. Over a number of years
we have delivered significant reductions in greenhouse gas ermissions, waste, the use
of solvents and water There has also been a sigruficant increase in recyding We will
continue 1o seek opportunihies to minimise our environmental impact Cver the
penod 1998-2005, our revenues increased by 47 per cent but, in absolute terms, the
energy used in our facilities reduced by 15 per cent and greenhouse gas emissions
by 30 per cent. A programme of continuous Impravement 1s i place 1o maintain this
performance

In 2006, we were again placed first In our business sector in the Business in the
Environment index of corporate environmental management, retaining our Premier
League'status

A global business
Our market sectors each present global opportunities, wath our business sphit evenly
between the Americas, Asia and Europe

In 2006, we expanded our international presence with new pantners in Japan,
Korea, Germany and Canada, covering a range of actnties to improve the
performance of our gas turbine engines. Our fuel cell business launched a subsidiary
in the US and announced a partnership wath Qhio-based, Amencan Elecine Power
(AEP)

Collaboration agreements were extended in Europe, for helicopter engine
manufacture, in China, for the training and development of senior aviation executives,
and in India, for engine component design and manufacture

We conunued to develop and globalise our manufactunng faciites, ncluding
our factory moderrusation programme in the UK, the transfer of V2500 engine
assembly to Germany and a new outdoor jet engmne testing faality in the US We
have begun the process of considenng options for potential new facilities In vanous
locauons, to cater for the anugipated growth in each of our businesses

Of our 38 000 employees, 22,700 are In the UK wath the balance primanly in the US,
Asia, Germany, Scandinavia and Braal Our sales and order book are evenly spread
across Europe, Asia and the Amenicas. Research and development 1s conducted in
facihues in the UK, Germary, ltaly, Singapore, Japan, the US and Scandanavia
including important relabonships with 27 universities where we have University
Technology Centres. Qur internatonal presence means we have faalities in over
50 countries.

Reflecung the global nature of our business, we established a new Internatronal
Adwisory Board (IAB) in 2006 This board will prowde the Group with an invaluable
high level source of advice about International, economic, political and business
trends

There have been a number of changes recently In the international
managernent team Dr Saul Lanyado 1s retinng after helping build our manne
business nto a global leader He 1s succeeded by John Paterson who also has a
strong international background, and was previously running our global repair and
overhaul (R30) business The R&O business now forms part of the Groug's overall
services actnty led by Miles Cowdry, President — Serwces

Future prospects
Each of our businesses offers significant opporturities for erganic growth Over the
next 20 years, we estimate the global accessible market to be worth some two trllion
US dollars, of which about half will relate to the prowvision of aftermarket services

The avil aerospace business 1s developing as we predicted and we expect the
installed base of jet engines In service to continue to grow, providing the basis for
sustaned growth i our aftermarket services revenues We are developing our markst
positions such as those on the Boeing 787 and Airbus A350 XWB which will ensure
long-term growth for the business

The defence aerospace business has proved resiient as a result of our broad
portfolio of engine programmes. We are continuing to strengthen our presence in
defence markets through new programmes such as the Joint Stnke Fighter and the
Airbus A400M transport aircraft, whilst also extending the range of aftermarket
services which we offer Consequently we expect steady growth from our defence
business

Qur marine business is expenenang strong growth as a result of the high level
of demand in the offshore ail and gas sector and our success as a sysiems supplier
Qur order book, at over £2 billion, 15 at a record fevel and we are developing with our
customers, a senes of Innovative support Iniatves

In the energy sector, we see opportunities to strengthen our market presence
Qur oil & gas business performed strongly In 2006 In power generation, where we
are buiding a relatively new business, we achieved an encouraging order intake
which bodes well for the future The cost of developing our fuel cell technology will
continue to affect the bottom line for the energy business, leading again 1 modest
losses in 2007

For 2007, we are confident that the measures we are taking to mprove
productnaty, coupled with the undertying growth of the Group and the robust
business model will enable us to continue 1o grow undertying revenues and profits
and generate a positive cash flow

Finally | would like to take this opportunity to thank alt our employees for therr
hard work and commitment.

Sir John Rose
Chief Executive
February 7, 2007
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Business review continued

Market outlook

The Group operates in four long-term, global markets - cvil and defence aerospace,

manne and energy These rarkets present, in aggregate an opportunity of some

two triflion US dollars over the next 20 years and have commaon characterstics

All these markets have very high entry bamers and

- offer the apportunity for organic growth,

- feature extraordinanly lang programme lives, usually measured in decades,

- canonly be addressed through significant investments in technology,
infrastructure and capability; and

- create a significant opportunity for extended customer relationships, with
revenues from aftermarket senices similar in size to onginal equipment
revenues

The size of these markets 15 generally related to world Gross Domestic Product (GCP)
growth, or, In the case of the defence markets, global secunty and the scale of
defence budgets

Civil aerospace
The Group publishes a 20 year global market outlook, which covers passenger and
cargo jets, corperate and regional aircraft Over the next 20 years 114000 engines
worth over US$600 billion, are predicted to be required, powenng 51,000 commercial
arcraft and business jets

The forecast predicts faster growth rates for iong-haul markets and those
markets to/from and within Asia These markets continue to benefit from more liberal
arr service agreements, which boost demand

Factors affecting the dermand for arrcraft and engines inciude GDP growth,
arcraft productmity, operating costs, environmental issues and the number of
retrements of old aircraft Whilst the market can be temporanly disrupted by external
events, such as war or acts of terrorsm, it has, In the past, always returned to its
long-term growith trend

In addition to the demand for engines, the Group forecasts a market
opportunity worth US$500 bidlion for the provision of product refated aftermarket
services

Defence aerospace
The Group forecasts that demand for rmilitary engines will be worth US$180 billion
over the next 20 years. The fargest single market 15 expected to be the US, followed
by Europe and the Far East Withins the Far East demand wifl be dominated by Japan,
South Korea and India Trends are dniven by the scale of defence budgets and
geopolitcal developments around the world

As inthe Groups other business sectors, programme lives are iong and there is
a sigruficant opportunity to support equipment with aftermarket services
Customers hudget constrants and their need to increase the value of their assets
have accelerated the maove in this direction The Group estimates the value of services
reveniles over the next 20 years to be US$250 bilhon

Manne
The Group forecasts dermand for manne prapulsion systems of US$180 billion aver
the next 20 years. Demand will be greatest in the commercial secter, where the
merchant market represents 45 per cent of the total and the offshore market,
34 percent

Commeraal shipping plays a crucial role in the world economy The need to
wransport raw matenal, fimshed goods, peopte and oil and gas requires a large fleet
which has to be renewed progressively The expansion of wade and technical
advances mean more ship construction for growth and for replacement as older
designs become obsolete

Finding and extracting oif and gas offshore requires a large number of flcating
drilling and production uruts wich, in tumn are supported by a vanety of service craft
Merchant and offshore markets are rarely at the same stage of the business cycle,
which helps to reduce overall volatility

In naval markets, the Group expects surface vessels to represent 15 per cent of
the total demand and subrnannes, six per cent

Naval markets are driven by different considerations, with customers locking to get
moare for ther budgets, leading to increasing demand for integrated systems and
through-lfe servicing arrangements

As i the Group's other markets, manne aftermarket services are expected to
generate significant demand forecast at US$100 billion over the next 20 years.

Energy
The US Department of Energy has forecast that, over the next 20 years, the

woridwide demand for oil will grow by 40 per cent, for gas by mare than 50 per cent
and for power generation by nearly 60 per cent

To satisfy this dernand, there will be a growing requirement for aerc-derved gas
turbines The Group's 20 year forecast values the total aero-dernvative gas turbine sales
in the oif and gas and power generation sectors at US$70 bithon Over this period,
demand for associated aftermarket serices is expected to be around U5$50 billion

While the oil and gas market 1s large and growing demand for aero denvatives
1n the power generation segment is four times that of of and gas, driven largely by
mid ment and peaking applications

Strategy
We have followed a consistent strategy for many years, based on five key elements

Addrass four global markets
We are a leading power systems company operating in the avil and defence
aerospace, manne and energy markets

Invest in technology, capability and infrastructure

Qver the past five years, we have invested more than £3 billion in research and
development We invest approximately £30 millon annually on training and some
£250 rilion a year on capital projects

Develop a competitive portfolio of products and services

We have more than 5C current product programmes and we are involved in many of
the major future projects in the markets we serve These key projects will define the
power systemns market for many years

Grow market share and installed product base
Across the Group the installed base of engines I service 1s expected throughout
therr long product iives to generate attractive returns over several decades

Add value for our customers through the provision of product-related services
We seek to add value for our customers with aftermarket services that will enhance
the performance and reliability of our products
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Principal nsks and uncertainties

The Group 15 exposed to a number of nisks and has an established structured
approach to nsk management The nsk commuttee has accountability for the system
of nsk management and regularly reports to the Board the key nisks facing the
business and the mitgating actions the Group has put in place to deal with thern

Risks are analysed under four broad headings
Business environment nsks

Corporate responsibihty
The Group recogruses the benefit that 1s denved from conducting business in an
ethically and sotially responsible manner This approach extends 1o the supply of raw
matenals and componenits, the provision of a safe and healthy place of work and
investment in technologies to reduce the environmental impact of the Group's
products and operations A farlure in any of these areas could damage the Groups
reputation and disrupt its business

The Group 1s committed to high ethical standards and a new Giobal Code of
Business Ethics will be launched in 2007 An employee engagement programme will
be undertaken in 2007 to strengthen employee awareness of the Group's values
The Group communicates its standards to is first tier supply base through a supplier
code of conduct

External events which might affect demand for air travel
Civil aerospace 15 gn important contnbutor to Group revenues and profits The
willingness of passengers to travel by air 15 influenced by a range of factors including
economic, health and secunty 1ssues For example, following the tragic events of
September 11, 2001, the Group's cwil aerospace profits more than halved as a result
of a short-term reduction in the demand for aero engines

The impact of this nsk1s mitigated by the Group’s business strategy, which has
enabled 11 10 develop a broader business base, with the defence manne and energy
businesses being less susceptible to this type of nsk. In addinen the developing cvil
aerospace business mode! with its emphasis on increasing aftermarket services
revenues, has proved 1o be resilient, providing a high degree of protection against
any shortfalt in dermand The Group has also dermnonstrated its ability to respond
rapdly to changes in demand through the adjusiment of its cost base

Strategic nsks

Aftermarket
Aftermarket revenues contribute over half of the Group's annual sales and are an
essentidl elerment of the returns the Group expects to make from its investments
Any threat to the secunty of aftermarket revenues through, for example, a fadure to
prowvide an operatonal serace which meets customers’ expectations, would threaten
the Group's level of profitability

The Group s focused on providing a high standard of service to all is
customers, iInvesting «n capabilities such as its recently established Operatons
Centres which monitor engine operations in real ime, co-ordinating and integrating
data 1o enable Rolls-Royce 1o provide better predictive informatien and operational
advice to Its customers Increasingly customers are selecting a broader range of
services through long-term service agreements, under which the Group assurnes a
higher level of responsibility for the maintenance and availability of its engines (over
penods which average 12 years) n return for a usage-based fee The Group deploys
customer satisfaction surveys to monitor its sefvice level

Competitive forces

The markets in which Rolls-Royce operates are highly competitive The majonty of its
programmes are long term in nature and access to the key platforms is critical to the
success of the business This requires sustained investment in technelogy, capability
and infrastructure, which presents a lugh barmer o entry However, these factors
alone do not pratect the Group from competion, such that prce compettion and
techrucal advances made by competitors could adversely affect the Group's results

The Group has developed a balanced business portfolio and mantained a steady
improvernent in operational performance, which together with the establishment of
long-term customer relationships and sustained investrent in technology
acquisition, allows the Group to respond to compentive pressure

finanaat nsks

These are nisks that anse as a result of movements in financial markets Principal nsks
are movements In foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates commodity prices
and counterparty credit nsk. A description of these nisks and detalls of the Groups
nsk mitigabon actions in this area are provided in the Finance Director s review an
pages 14 and 15

Operational nsks

Performanice of supply chair
The Group manufactures approximately 30 per cent by value of its gas turbine
products and some 70 per cent s provided through supply chains external to the
Group Any fallure of the supply chain would present a nsk o the Group's ability to
meet customer requirements and to achieve its financial goals

The Group's strategy 1s to simplify the external supply chain, forging deeper,
strategic refationships with fewer but stronger suppliers including the allocation of a
significant portion of new civl programmes o nsk and revenue shanng partners

The Group 15 alse investing in 1ts manufactunng facimes replacing old factones
with modern facilives, which wall enable it to improve productivity and reduce costs
by developing world-class manufactunng faciites and processes In addition, the
Group has a business continuity programme, to manage the nisk of a foss of a major
capability or faciity

T securty
Increased globalisation of the business and advances in technology have resulted in
mere data being transmitted across global communication inks, posing an increased
security nsk,

Security systems have been upgraded with the latest technology and
Roells-Royce maintains effective commurucations with other industnal comparies and
the appropnate governrnent agencies to share informanon on potential threats

Programme nsk
The Group rmanages complex product programmes with demanding techrucal
reguirernents against strngent customer schedules This requires the co-ordination
of the external supply chain, manufacturing operations, partners and engineering
functions Failure to achieve programme goals would have sigrificant financial
impiicauons for the Group

The Group employs project management controls on a routine basis All major
programmes are subject to Board approval and are reguiarly reviewed by the Board
with a particular focus on any emerging nsks
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Business review coninued

Cwil aerospace Underlying services revenues increased by 15 per cent to £2 3 billion, representing
59 per cent of cvil aerospace revenues. More than 48 per cent of our modern jet fleet
1s covered by TotalCare or CorporateCare service agreements.

2006 highlights 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Revenue® fm 3775 3,561 3072 2715 2,761

Undertying profit before

finanaing costs” £m 523 41 208 168 186 Defence aerospace

Net assets" £m 1,898 1315 1,257 1,338 1,470

Order book £bn 200 i90 162 144 126 2006 highlights 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Engine deliveries 856 881 824 746 856 Revenue® £m 1569 1413 1,374 1,398 1376

Installed Underlying profit before

engine base 11,900 11,500 10970 10450 9910  finanang costs” £m 195 175 179 147 183

Employees 22,300 21050 21,150 19,850 21,150 Net assets* £m (78} (56) (48) E]] 25
Order book £bn 32 33 33 27 26

2003 and earier figures are as reporied under UK GAAP Engine deliveries 514 565 548 510 505
Employees 5500 5.200 5,100 4900 5,100

The vl aerospace business continued to expand its broadhy-based installed fleet
and once again generated growth In customer serices.

New orders announced dunng 2006 amounted to approwmately £7 billion,
resulting in a record order book of £20 bilion

The Trent-powvered Airbus A380 received its Type Certificate from the US FAA
and the European EASA airworthiness authonties, the first time clearance has been
awarded simultaneously by the two bodies

The Trent 900, chosen by seven A380 customers, continued to buld matunty
through testing compleung almost 31 000 engine cycles by the end of 2006,

Rolls Royce reacted swaftly to the announcernent that A380 deliveries had been
delayed by a further 12 months by haiting production and procurement for the
Trent 900 until October 2007 The strength and breadth of our business portfolio
enable us to absorb such changes with little overa!l financial iImpact

We signed a commercial and technica! agreement with Airbus to offer a next-
generation Trent for all vanants of the new A350 XWB, due 1o enter service in 2013

The Trent 1000, which had uts first success in China, with an order to power
Auir Ching’s fleet of Boeing 7875, completed a successful first run exactly on schedule
against a date set three years earlier

Towards the end of the vear, preparations began for the first fighit-test of the
Trent 1000 on the Cornpany’s Boeing 747 flying testbed in readiness for the maiden
fhight in the spring of 2007

Air New Zealand's deasion to convert its existing Boeing 787-8 order to the
larger 787-9 vaniant means that the Trent 1000 1s now the launch engine for all three
versions of the aircraft, It has been selected by 11 customers and operators

As the Trent senes passed 20 miflion hours in senace, the first member of the
family, the Trent 700, continued to win new business with airlines including Lufthansa
and Singapore Airlines

ir Bangkok, celebrations with launch customer That Ainways International
marked the tenth anniversary of the Trent 800 in service, while In Australia, the
RB21 1-524, workharse of the Qantas Boeing 747 fleet, passed the milestone of ten
milkon fving hours with the airfine

International Aera Engines (IAE), In which Rolls-Royce 1s a major sharehotder
won a significant follow-on contract from China Southern for V2500s to power 2
further 50 Arbus A320 senes ardiners IAE booked orders for a total of 454 engines
from 14 customers, with a value to Rolls-Royce of US51.2 billion During 2006 the
transfer of V2500 producuon from Derby in the UK to Dahlewstz 0 Germany, was
completed, creating capacity in the UK for nsing Trent production

Our long-standing relauonship with Guifstream Aerospace was reflected in a
ceremony marking the delvery of s 3,000th Rolls-Royce engine

We also celebrated the tenth anniversary of the AE 3007C on the Citation X,
the fastest business et in service China’s Hainan Airlines Group ordered 50 Embraer
ERJ 145 regional jets, also powered exclusively by the AE 3007 engine

Civil engine delivenies reduced by three per cent to 856, with weak demand In
the regional sector, partially offset by increased Trent enguine delivenes. Qur
underiying ongenal equipment revenues grew by 15 per cent, as a result of the
increased proportion of high-value products in the sales mec

Cril fleet flying hours rose by eight per cent compared with 2005, driven by the
increased number of engines In service and global traffic growth.

*2003 and earlier figures are as reported under UK GAAP

Defence aerospace conunues 1o be a profitable and growing business. We have a
wide range of defence engine programmes at all stages of the product life cycle,
supported by a rapidly growing services business

In 2006, Rolls-Royce made steady progress with its combat programmes. 8oth
the F136 engine and LiftSystern for the Joint Strike Fghter successfully continued
their development testing Rolls-Royce also compteted delvenes of EJ200 engines for
Tranche 1 of the Eurofighter Typhoon and has now commenced Tranche 2 E1200
engine deliveries

In the transport market, the first tests of the collaborative TP400 turboprep
engine, for the Airbus A400M arcraft, were successfully undertaken The AE 2100
passed the ane rmillon hour milestone in powening the C-130J transport arcraft
Rolls-Royce also signed an agreement with Alensa Aeronautica to supply 84 engines
for the C-27} transport awcraft

Elsewhere in the common core AE engine family, the AE 3007-powered Global
Hawk unmanned aenal vehicle {UAV) passed the 10,000 serice hour mark and the
200th AE 1107C-Liberty engine was delivered for installabon in the V-22 Osprey
tiltrotor

In June, the Rolls-Rayce and Honeywell joint venture, LHTEC, won a £75 million
contract to supply the T800 helicopter engine for the UK Future Lynx The helicopter
team also supported the successful firse fights of the next generanon Fire Scout
unmanned helicopter, powered by the Model 250, and delvered nearty 300
Model 250 engines for a wade range of light helicopters

The collaborative Adour engine powered the first two Hawk trainer aircraft
delwered to Bahrain and the UK Ministry of Defence (MaD) placed an order for
28 Adour Mk951-powered Hawk trainers

Rolls-Royce was selected to parucpate inTarams, a new £124 million unmanned
combat aenal vehucle (UCAV) technology demonstrator programme, and in the
ASTRAEA programme to enable the routine use of UAVs in UK airspace

Underlying service revenues represented 53 per cent of defence sales for 2006
We continued to increase the scope of services offered by the business 1o its
customers and in November, we entered into an alliance with Serco the leading
services provider, to extend our service offenings and access new markets. More of
the Group’s long-term service arrangemenits in the form of Mission Ready
Management Solutions {MRMS®) are now handled through the Operations Centre
This hub for in-service support 15 now open 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

More than 2,800 engines and 4,150 modules are now covered by MRMS
support contracts and a number of these were added in 2006 New or renewed
services contracts were signed wath alt branches of the US milstary, covering the
AE 2100, the F405 {Adour), AE 1107C-Uberty and the Modet 250 engines in the UK,
the £110 milion contract for the support of the UK MoD's Hercules engines was
expanded to cover T56 engines in addition to AE 21005 The MoD also signed a
£40 mallion services agreement to cover the Gem engines installed in the Lynx
hehcopter
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Marine We have already intraduced TotalCare type support packages for some of cur naval
custamers, based on the successful model develoged in our zerospace businesses
About 40 per cent of our turnover s involved in aftermarket service support across
2006 hughlights 2006 2005 04 203 202 oy full range of prociucts and we are expanding our capabiities at service centres
Revenue* fm 1300 1,067 963 1003 584 around the world
Underlying profit before
financing costs™ £m 102 87 78 78 82
Net assets™ £m 547 565 523 554 550
Order book £bn 34 17 14 12 i3 Energy
Employees 7600 7,200 7100 7,300 6,500
2006 highlights 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
*2003 and earher figures are as reported under UK GAAP Revenue* fm 512 532 538 529 667
Underlying {loss)/profit
Rolls-Rayce 1s 8 world leader in the provision of manne propulsion systerms, offering a pefore financing
unigue set of products and services for both naval and commercial sectors costs* £m (i8) m 7 (8 (39)
All of our manne business segments, offshare, merchant, naval and submannes, Nt assets” trm 357 53 95 546 587
are performing well Across the business the order book stands at over £2 billien and & dar book £or 05 Y B4 04 06
factones are operating at capacity Ergine delveres a3 61 47 o 68
The success of the marine business depends increasingly on delvenng Empioyees 2600 2750 3050 3150 4550

integrated power and propulsion systems for customers Over the past year, the
business has made good progress towards its goal of being a complete system
supplier

We are well positioned on US naval gas turbine programmes The first Lockheed
Martin-designed Littoral Combat Ship, Freedom, was launched, powered by the
MT30 engine In the UK, we continued to make good progress with the next
generation of Royal Navy Type 45 destroyer, powered by the WR21 engine

We have along history of supplying complete systems to customers through
our UT Design and equipment packages Today, we are reaping the benefits of the
expertise we have gained in this area Buoyed by high o1l prices, the demand for
service and support ships has been matched by similar growth in exploration and
production

Our UT Design 1s one of the most successful ship designs in commercial
shipbuiding We design true ‘systerry ships, powered equipped and controlled by
us and usually incorporating Rolls-Royce power, propulsion, deck machinery and
motien control equipment This can range from propellers, thrusters and diesel
engines to ncreasingly sophisticated technology such as dynamic positoning and
automation and control systemns

The concept of selling systems to our ofshore customers 15 well embedded and
we are now successfully extending this area of our expertise for the benefit of our
merchant customers Gur merchant business is centred i Shanghas, in the middle
of the North-East Asian tnangle made up of Korea, Japar: and China, which accounts
for over 85 per cent of the world s commercial shipbuilding This location gives
Rolls-Royce a strong position in the region to supply our customers with indwidual
components and systems A nurnber of shipbuilders in the Far East are new entrants
to the market and we sell cornplete design, power and propulsion packages, thereby
gning thern a technological advantage in a very competiiive marketplace

To support sales of Rolls-Royce propulsion systerns, we will be opening a new
diesels factory in Asia This1s a significant investment in capability to meet increasing
customer demand Automation and control systerms form an increasing part of these
systemns, endorsing the Group’s investmeant in high-value electronic equipment,

We are continusng to develop new cusiomer relationstups The Flonlia Reactor
Plant Support (FRPS) wall transform the relationship between the submannes
business and our custorner bringing increased propulsion system avattablity at lower
cost This new approach — similar in style to TotalCare - together with opportuniues i
suppori of future submanne programmes, submarine rescue systems and emerging
ovil nuclear programmes, enables us to build and develop the fult potential of our
people and skifl base in cur submanne business

Many of our programmes are based upon propulsion systems In addition to the
prime mover, the gas turbine, Rolls-Royce 15 supplying waterjets and smaller,
secondary gas turbines that prowide ships with auxilary power We are also applying
this approach to the power and propulsion systems for OVF - the future British
awrcraft carner and its French PA2 equivalent. The MT30 forms the basis of our
proposals for the propulsion system for each of these ships.

2003 and earlier figures are as reported under LUK GAAP

Our energy business recorded a smafl loss in 2006, after expensing an investment of
£22 million in fuet celf technology

The oil and gas market rernains robust, pnimanty drven by strong fuel prices in
Asia, we won orders worth over U$5100 million for projects in Indonesia, Malaysia
and Thalland and, for the first tme, Vietnam Orders valued at over US$100 million
were secured from customers in Africa and the Middle East, including equipment for
the next pipeline to bring natural gas from Algena to Spain The exisung prpelne s
already wholly driven by Rolls-Royce equipment

In power generation we are bulding momentum and, encouragingly, had a
record year for order intake Whilst the market has been stabilising in Europe, the US
marketplace 1s continuing to show signs of recovery

1n 2006, we recerved our first order for two Trent 60 power generation packages
to be installed in the US, our first order, from a custorner in Belgium for Trent gas
turbines featunng our new power-enhanaing inlet Spray Intercooling technology,
and our first order for an industral Trent power generation package to be installed
in Israel

Qur continued progress in the power generation segment will increase our
nstalled base of engines and aftermarket services revenues

It was a record year for aftermarket order intake Aftermarket service actmties for
the energy business now account for 46 per cent of our total segment sales and, with
last year’s strong performance, our order bock for Long-Term Service Agreements has
grown to over US$270 millon

We also continue to enhance customer vatue through product upgrades for
increased power, better effiaency and reliability, lower ermissions and greater ease of
maintenance

Qur fuel cell programme continued to meet its milestones In October we
dedicated as our US fuel cell headquarters, a new, purpose-built fuel cell facility on
the campus of Stark State College of Technology in Canton, Ohio The Group also
announced an agreement with the US ublity Amernican Electnic Power, to test and
evaluate the first two fuel cell prototype systems at their Dolan Technology Center
and Walnut Test Facility near Celumbus Ohio With our additonal presence in the UK
and Singapore, this business s making progress in solid oxde fuel cell systems for
megawatt scale statonary power applications, with the goal of ntroduang a
competitive preduct by the end of this decade
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Business revew continued

Engineering and technology

The market continues to drive the need for robust, cost-effective and world-class
technology

In 2006, Rolls-Royce invested a total of £747 roullon in research and
development, of which £395 million was funded from Group resources The net
charge 1o the income statement was £370 midlion

We are addressing the ervironmental challenge, buillding upcn our
achievernents of previous years as we continue to improve the performance of our
products, In additron to cur existing demonstrator engine programmes, we launched
a new £95 million technology demonstrator programme, the Enviconmentally
Friendly Engine (EFE), which will deliver further improvements in turbine efficency
and combustion ermissions EFE involves a range of industrial and unwversity partners
and wilf validate technologies for pull-through from 2008 inte afl of our gas turbine
products

Rolls-Rayee 1s a lead partner in the development of the European‘Clean Sky'
Joint Technology Inirative Alongside our industnal partners, we hope to gain
European Comimission approval to launch this severryear programme in rid 2007
In combining this programme wath the EFE programme, we will continue with our
progress towards achieving the Adwisory Council for Aeronautics Research in Europe
{ACARE) goals for environmental improvements by 2020

Through the UK Energy Technologies Institute (ETT) and other mecharisms we
will be iIncreasing our research and technology programmes on low carbon energy
sysierns. This wall include such topics as the potential for the use of bio-denved fuels
In gas turbines, high performance and distnbuted generation electrical power
systerns, renewable energy sources such as tdal power and carbon sequestration

Over the past year, we increased the size of our research newwork of University
Technolegy Centres (UTCs) by opening two new centres in Germnany, teking the totat
number of UTCs to 27 In Dresden, we opened a UTC which specialises in ightweight
structures and matenals and i Darmstadt, our latest UTC was opened to research
turbene and combustion aerothermal Interactions

Building upen our research successes of previous years, we filed a record 330
patent applications in 2006

The high efficiency sohd oxide fuel cell programme for the enargy business has
continued to make significant progress with the successful demonstration of a 60kW
power system

In 2006, our advanced technotogy development centre In North Amenca,
known as LibertyWorks™ continued to make progress with Lockheed Marun on the
US Nawy's RATTLRS {Revoluuonary Approach To Time-Criucal Long Range Strke)
programme

In the defence sector, we completed the ininal Fight Clearance Review of the
LiftFan®, for use in the Joint Strike Fighter The mult-partner TP400 engine, for the
Airbus A400M, successfully completed the first engine and propeller test. We also
gained a key role on the recently launched Taranis UCAY (Unmanned Combat Aenal
Vehicle} demonstrator programme

The Trent 1000 engine, which will power the Boeing 787, followed the
successful trend of previous engine projects In achieving on schedule, the ptanned
milestone of the first engine run The Trent 900 for the Airbus A380 has contnued to
gain matunty through engine and awcraft test actmty

The US Navy accepted delivery of the Sea Jet demonstrator vessel, powered by
lower noise underwater AWI21™ watenets. The successful test programme was
completed and reported 1o the Office of Naval Research {ONR) and led to the
contract award for a high power density watenet development programme

The first Type 45 dass destroyer, HMS Danng, was launched, powered by the
advanced WR21 engine, which achieved the major milestone of fizst engine hight in
Decernber Rolls-Royce delivered the first gas fuelled reciprocating engines for a
passenger ferry application in the form of Bergen K-type engines, which recenved
classificanon society approval In December

Operations

Rapd growth :n manufactunng load continued in 2006, dosing the year 12 per cent
above 2005 even after the effect of temporanly ceasing manufacture of the Trent 900
in Septemnber All sectors and regions contnibuted io this growth

Operanonally raw matenal supply constraints continued to have a disruptrve
effect but this improved steadily throughout the year, diiving a general improvement
in delvery performance by our externat supply chain The delay to the Airbus A380
programme resulted in the Trent 900 manufaciunng being suspended for one year
with effect from September 2006 In spite of these 1ssues, we were able to support
our portfolio of manufactunng programmes and as usual | take this cpportunity to
thank all of our employees and supplers for their efforts in 2006 1n this regard

We continued our programme of Supply Chain Restructuring in 2006 Our
supplier base reduced by 32 to 666 although we added 103 new suppliers Qur
sourcing in emerging low-cost markets increased from nine per cent to 11 per cent
of purchases

Commodity prices continued 1o rise thioughout the year, although by the year-
end the peak appeared to have passed in the case of fuels and perhaps some metals
Dunng the year we successfully conduded new long-term agreements for the major
primary metals we require giving us secunty of supply and cost stability

We continued to drive for lower operating costs focusing on overheads and
added-value actvities within our control We increased our employee population by
48 per cent and delivered an improvernent frorn £186,000 to £192000 10 sales per
employee via productmaty Improvemenits. We were not able to fully offset the effects
of commodity price inflation In 2006 and, as a result, product unit costs rose shghtly in
the year

We commenced operabons In our new UK facilibes at Derby, Hucknall,
Barnoldswick and Bristol dunng 2006 and we will cease operations 1n all the old
factones dunng 2007 We reached agreement on modern working practices with all
the remaining UK compenent manufactuning workforces as well as our repar and
overhaul workforce in Montreal, Canada Our Global Council covening all employees
met successfully twice dunng the year

We used our Process Excellence programme to continue the dive for better
quality and continuous improverment In 2006 we saw a positive step change in the
quality performance of our external supply chain This was the main driver of an
improverment in overall supply chain guality of appraximately 20 per cent.

We further reduced the operating cost of our [T estate allowing our new
irvestment proporucn of total IT cost to nse to its hrghest leved to date Our total IT
spend remained constant year-on-year resulting 1n a reduction as a percentage of
rnover 1o 24 per cent

In 2006, we completed the standardisation of our Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) systems for the energy business, the aero reparr and overhau! business and the
aero gas turbine units in Europe In 2007 the remaining units in the US and Canada
will be standardised to give us a single and truly global supply chain management
system

implementation of Product Lifecycle Management Systemns coupled with a
tharough revision to the business process has driven considerable productvity
Improvernent In engineenng

As farecast, our inventones increased in 2006 to respond to the growth in
output, to build aftermarket support stocks and to increase strategic stocks of rare
metals. We conunued to offset these increases by mprovements in the management
of financial working capital to effect a further improvement in working capital
utisaron

In 2007, our prionties will be to complete all cur ERP I projects and imglement
a Global Supply Chain management structure which will allovw us to consolidate
commodity management and increase the dollar based proportion of our purchase
bill We wall also complete all of our UK factory moves which have been protracted
due to stronger market growth and disruption caused by shortages of raw matenals.
Our drive for operating and unit cost reduction wall continue as wall our Process
Excellence initative whylst we prepare for the load increase in 2008 when Airbus A380
production will recommence and Boeing 787 production begins.

Rolls-Royce pk 2006

10



Services

Qur services strategy remains unchanged wath a continued focus on providing the
nght equipment availability 2t the sight price for all of our customers in each of our
business sectors. Frequently, this wall entall long-term fixed price contracts in which
we apply our skifls to managing our customers’ assets and we are proud of our record
of delivenng our availability commitments We are building a record of repeat
business and contract renewals, often involving increases in scope This demonstrates
customner confidence in our approach and ability to deliver and gives us confidence
In the sustainabity of our model

In the cwit aerospace market, we continued to make progress, with 48 per cent
of the fleet by value now under management Often these contracts will nvolve the
maintenance and assoclated logistics of accessones in addition to the engines and,
consequently, we developed ‘ComponentCare’ Thirty seven such contracts have now
been implemented The business jet market has been partcularly strong and 165
CorporateCare contracts were signed in 2006 exceeding the previous year's record
of 103

The defence business had a strong year Highlights induded the Hercules
Integrated Operauonal Sugport Contract covening 244 AE 2100 and T56 engines and
the extension of the Spey engine contract and the indlusian of accesseores in 1ts
scope A senes of contract wins in the US over the past two years, including the third
rerewal of the F405 contract, have resuited in more than 1000 engines now being
subject to Performance Based Logistics contracts for the US Department of Defense

The successful execution of these service contracts requires a well co-ordinated
approach, from pnang and monitenng and bulding the appropriate supply chains
to day-to-day managernent of service delivery As we Invest to SUpport our service
business two thermnes recur closeness and responsiveness to the customer and
partnership and integration across the supply chain

Qur operations rooms exemplfy this commitrment 1o responsiveness and
integration by collacting, analysing, shanng and acting upon customer data to deliver
the performance our customers demand They are the focal point for our seraice
delvery, assessing the condiion of the fleets and nstructing logisucs and field
maintenance activity accordingly

To complement the operations rooms and our remote diagnostc capability, we
are buiiding up the local service Infrastructure in each of our sectors [n the cwi
market we have CGn-Wing Care centres in Hong Kong, London and Newark in the US
with additional centres opering in 2007 |n the energy and manne sectors, we have
embarked upon a mult-year plan 1o expand our global sernce network in the
Amencas Europe Middle East and Asia to provide enginecring and logistics support
closer to the pont of demand In defence markets, we have teamed with Kellogg
Brown & Root to win a support contract for the Australian Navy and have entered
Inte agreements with Serco and Goodrich to support the delivery of extended scope
contracts

Comprehensive global reparr networks are central to our strategy Our new
facility n Derby opened and the joint venture wath Lufthansa Techrik, N3, in Germany
will commence operations In 2007 In the defence sector, we continue 1o support the
UK Mirustry of Defence’s Combat Aero Engine Support Alignment Study and our
Ansty facility has a key role to play in the support of the RAF's requiremenits
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Business review conaned

Finance Director’s review
Andrew Shilston

We have continued to improve our financial performance whilst
increasing our levels of investment in the business

Results for the year
Underlying profit before tax increased by 23 per cent to £712 mullion
{2005 £579 million)

Organic sales growth

Underlying sales increased by 14 per cent.

- While awil aerospace engine deliveries reduced by three per cent to 856
engines, underlying original equipment revenues grew by 15 per cent, as a
result of the increase of high-value products in the sales mix Underiying ¢l
services revenues grew by 15 per cent

- Underlying defence aerospace sales increased by 13 per cent, wath an 18 per
cent increase in onginal equipment sales and an eight per centincrease in
Services revenues.

= Underhying manine sales increased by 18 per cent, with continued strong
growth In the offshore ol & gas support market sector

- Underhying energy sales were almost flat, with a 14 per cent increase in seraces
revenues offsetting 2 decline in onginal equipment sales

Underlying Group aftermarket senaces revenues grew by 13 per cent to £39 bilhon
and have grown by ten per cent per annhum compound over the past ten years.
Service revenues accounted for 53 per cent of total revenues

Eighty-seven per cent of sales were to customers outside the UK.

Undertying profit margins before financing costs were relatively flat wath some
improvernent in demand, continuing growzh in services sales and our focus on cost
reduction mitigating headwinds caused by commadity pnce inflanon and an adverse
trend in our achieved US dollar exchange rate

Undertying finanaing costs amounted 1o £43 million (2005 £78 million),
compnising pnncipally net interest (£18 millon} and nsk and revenue sharing partners’
finance cost {£27 million)

Restructunng charges of £47 millon (2005 £48 millicn}, which were incurred for
ongaing operational improvements, were ncluded within operating costs

Profit before tax was £1,537 million (2005 £463 milon) On the basis descnbed
below, underying profit before tax was £712 miflion (2005 £579 mullion) The
adjustrments are detatled in note 2 on page 31

The Group 15 exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and
commodity price movements These exposures are mitigated through the use of
currency and commodity derwvatives for which the Group does not apply hedge
accounting As a result, reported earnings do not reflect the economic substance of
denvatives that have been closed out in the finanaal year, but do include unrealised
gains and losses on denvatives which wall only affect cash flows when they are closed
out at some point in the future

Underlying earmings are presented on a basis that shows the economic
substance of the Group's hedging strategres in respect of transactional exchange rate
and commodity price movements In particular, (3) revenues and costs denomunated
1n US dollars and Euros are presented on the basis of the exchange rates achieved in
the year (b) similar adjustments are made in respect of commodity dervatives, and
(¢} consequential adjustments are made to reflect the impact of exchange rates on
monetary assets and labilives and long-term contracts on a consistent basis.

Order book
The order book at December 31 2006 at constant exchange rates, was £26 1 billion
{2005 £24 4 bilior) This nduded firm business that was announced but for which
contracts had not yet been signed of £1 7 bilhon (2005 £1.5 billion)

In cvil aerospace it 1s common for a custorner 1o take options for future orders
in addioon to firrn orders placed Such optiens are excluded from the order book.

In defence aerospace, long term programmes are often ordered for only one
year ata ume In such arcumstances, even though there may be no altemative
engine chorce avallable to the customer, only the contracted business +s included in
the order book.

Aftermarket services agreements, including TotalCare packages, represented
38 per cent of the order book These are long-term contracts where only the first
seven years revenue 15 included in the order book.

Aftermarket services
The Group continues to be successful in developng its aftermarket services actmues.
These grew by 13 per cent on an underlying basis In 2006 and accounted for 53 per
¢ent of Group revenue

In particular, TotalCare packages in the civil aerospace sector now cover 48 per
cent, by value of the instzalled fleet TotalCare packages cover long-term
management of the maintenance and associated logistics for our engines and
systemns, monitonng the equipment in service to deliver the system availability our
customers require with predictable costs The pnang of such contracts reflects ther
long-term nature Revenues and costs are recognised based on the stage of
completion of the contract, generally measured by reference to fiying hours The
overall net posiwon of assets and liabiliies on the balance sheet for TotalCare
packages was an asset of £393 mulfion {2005 £367 miliion)

Cash

Rising volures and good managernent of costs resulted in the Group averaging a
net cash surplus throughout the year The Group cash flow statement 1s shown in the
financial statements The Group generated a positive cash flow of £491 millon dunng
2006 (2005 £551 million) The net cash balance at the year-end was £825 midlion
(2005 £334 milkon) The average net debt level posiion wmproved from £260 mdlion
to an average cash surplus of £150 millon Net cash flow from operating actmties
was £990 million {2005 £1,033 millon} Positve cash flow 1s expected again in 2007,
before any addibonal cash imecuon into the pension funds

Taxation
The overall tax charge on the profit before tax was £397 million (2005 £126 mullion} a
rate of 25.8 per cent (2005 272 per ceny)

The tax charge was reduced by £19 mullion {2005 £18 million) in respect of the
expected benefit of the UK research and developrment tax credit

The tax charge on underlying profit was £190 million (2005 £166 million) a rate
of 26 7 per cent {2005 287 per cent)

The operation of most tax systems, including the availability of speaific tax
deductions, means that there 15 often a delay between the Group tax charge and the
related tax payments, to the benefit of cash flow

The Group operates internanonally and s subject to tax in many difering
Junsdicuions As a consequence, the Group 1s routinely subject o 1ax audits and
examinations which by their nature can take a considerable pened to conclude
Prowision 1s made for known issues based on management’s interpretation of country
speaific legislation and the hikely outcome

The Group seeks to menirmise its tax burden in a manner wiuch is consistent
with 11s commeraal objectves and meets its legal obligations and ethical standards
While every effort 15 made to maxrmise the tax efficiency of its business transactions,
the Group does not look to use artificial stnsctures inits tax planning The Group has
regard for the intention of the legislation concerned rather than just the wording
itseif The Group 15 committed to bullding open relationshups with tax authonues and
to follow a policy of full disclosure in order to effect the umely seitlerment of s tax
affairs and to remove uncertainty in its business transactions.
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Pensions
As for 2005, the charges for pensions are calculated in accordance with the
requirements of 1AS 16 Employee Benefits

Details of the pensions’ charge and the defined benefit schemes'assets and
liabthties are shown in note 22 to the financia! staternents This shows a net defiat,
after taking account of deferred tax, of £68¢ millien (2005 £1,154 milion) Changes in
this deficit are affected by the assumpticns made in valuing the liabilities and the
market performance of the assets. Most Importantly, the discount rate used for
measunng the UK defined benefit liabiliies has increased from 4 7 per cent in 2005 to
51 percent in 2006 Inacdition the mortality assumptions have been updated for
the Rolls-Royce Pension Fund (the largest scheme in the Group) based on the actual
mortality expenence within the scheme and also to allow for future mortality
improvernents, Together with the better than expected returns on the scheme assets,
overall, these factors have resuited in a reduction of the net deficit

Dunng 2006, a revised benefit structure was agreed with the members of the
Vickers Group Pension Scheme similar to that already agreed for the Rolls-Royce
Group Pension Scheme and the Rolls-Royce Pension Fund

The formal report of the actuanal review as at March 31, 2006 i respect of the
Rolls-Royce Pension Fund wall be avallable by June 30, 2007

Investments
The Group continues to subject all Investments to ngorous examination of risks and
future cash flows to ensure that they create shareholder value All major investments
require Board approval

The Group has a portfoho of projects at different stages of therr Ife cycles
Ciscounted cash flow analysts of the remaining life of projects 1s performed en a
regular basis Sales of engines in producnon are assessed against crtena in the
oniginal development programme to ensure that overall value is enhanced

Gross research and development investment amounted to £747 mullion {2005
£663 milion) Net research and development was £370 million (2005 £282 million)
The leve! of self-funded investment in research and development is expected to
remain at approximately five per cent of Group sales in the future The impact of this
Investment on the iIncome statement wall reflect the mix ang matunty of indmdual
development programmes and will result in a similar level of net research and
developrent reported within the income staternent in 2007 Investment in training
was £30 millior (2005 £30 million)

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment was £303 million {2005
£232 millicn)

Intangible assets

The Group carned forward £1,460 million {2005 £1,315 milfion, restated) of intangible
assets This compnsed purchased goodwill of £735 million, engine certification costs
and participation fees of £231 milhon, development costs of £290 million, recoverable
engine costs of £153 mifiion and other intangible assets of £51 million Total capital
expenditure on property, plant and equipment and intang:ble assets is expected to
increase modestly in 2007

Partnerships

The development of effective partnerships continues to be a key feature of the
Group’s long-term strategy Major partnerships are of two types joint ventures and
risk and revenue sharing partners

Joint ventures
Jount ventures are an integral part of our business They are invoived In engineering
and manufactuning, reparr and overhaul, and finanaal services They are also normal
business structures for companies paricipating in intematicral collaborative defence
projects

They share nsk and imvestrnent, bring expertise and access to markets, and
provide external objectmty Some of our joint ventures have become substantial
businesses A major proportion of the debt of the joint ventures s secured on the
assets of the respective companies and 1s non-recourse to the Group

Risk and revenue shanng partners (RRSPs)

RRSPs have enabled the Group to build a broad portfolio of engines, thereby
reducing the exposure of the business to ndmidual product nisk. The primary financal
benefit 1s a reduction of the burden of research and development (R&D} expenditure
on new programmes

The related R&D expenditure 1s expensed through the income statement and
the inimial programme receipts from partners, which reimburse the Group for past
R expenditura, are also recorded in the income staternent, as cther operating
inceme

RRSP agreements are a standard form of co-operation in the cml aero-engine
industry They brning benefits 1o the engine manufacturer and the partner Specifically,
for the manufacturer they bning some or all of the following benefits addiional
financial and engineering resource, sharing of nsk, and imwal programme
contnbution As appropnate the partner also supphes components and as
consideration for these components, receives a share of the long-term revenues
generated by the engine programmme in proportion to its purchased programme
share

The sharing of nsk is fundamental to RRSP agreements In general partners
share financial nvestrment in the programme, they share market nsk as they receive
therr return from future sales, they share currency rsk as therr returns are
denominated in US dollars, they share sales financing cbigations, they share warranty
costs, and, where they are manufactunng or development partners, they share
techrical and cost nsk Partners that do not undertake development work ar supply
components are referred to as financial RRSPs and are accounted for as financial
instruments as described here

In 2006 the Group received other operating ncome of £57 rilion
{2005 £60 mifion), pnmanty in respect of the Trent 1000 engine programme Cther
operaiing Inccme 1s expected to remain at a simitar tevel in 2067

Payments to RRSPs are recorded within cost of sales and increase as the related
programime sales increase These payments amounted to £162 million (2005
£146 mullion)

The dassification of financial RRSPs as financial instrurments has resulted in a
lrabdity of £324 mulion (2005 £423 million) being recorded in the balance sheet and
an associated underlying finznaing cost of £27 mulkon (2005 £43 million) recorded in
the ncome statement.

In the past, the Group has also received government launch investrent in
respect of certain programmes The reatment of this ivestment 15 semilar 1o non-
financial RRSPs

Financial services

Fotiowang the disposal of the Group's Interest in Pembroke Group, an aircraft leasing
joint venture, the decision was announced to cease reparting financial services as a
separate actvity Engine leasing activities are now recorded wathin ¢vil aerospace and
power ventures are recorded within energy Restated comparatives are shown in
note 2
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Business review continued

Risk management

The Board has an established, structured approach 1o nsk management The nisk
committee has accountability for the system of nsk managernent and reporting the
key nsks and associated mingaung actions The Director of Risk reports 1o the Finance
Director The Group's policy 1s to preserve the resources upon which its continuing
reputation viability and profitability are built, 1o enable the corporate objecuves to be
achieved through the operation of the Rofls-Royce business processes Risks are
formally identified and recorded in a corporate nsk register and its subsidiary registers
wathin the businesses, which are reviewed and updated on a regular basis, with nsk
mitigation plans identified for all significant nisks

Financial nsk
The Group uses vanous financal instruments in order to manage the exposuzes that
anse from 1ts business operations as a result of movernents i financial markets All
treasury activities are focused on the management and hedging of nisk It is the
Group’s policy not to trade financial instruments or o engage in speculatve financial
transactions There have been no significant changes in the Group's policies in the
last year

The principal econormic and market risks continue to be movernents in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and commadity prices The Board regulary
reviews the Groups exposures and finanaal nisk management and & specialst
committee also considers these in detasl All such exposures are managed by the
Group Treasury function, which reports to the Finance Director and which cperates
within wiitten policies approved by the Board and within the internal control
framework

Counterparty aedit nsk
The Group has an established policy towards managing counterparty credit risk
A cormmon framework exists to measure, report and control exposures to
counterparties across the Group using Value at Risk and farr value techriques
Counterparties are assigned a credit irmit that reflects their credit standing The
Group assigns an internal credit rating to each counterparty, which 1s assessed with
reference to publicly available credit Information such as that provided by Moody's,
Standard & Poor's and other recogrised market sources and s reviewed regularly
Financial instruments are only transacted with counterparties that have a
publicly assigned long-term credit rating from Standard & Poor’s of ‘A- or better and
from Maody’s of A3 or better

Funding and hiquidity

The Group finances Its operations through a mixture of shareholders'funds, bank
borrowings, bonds, notes and finance leases The Group borrows in the major global
markets in a range of currencies

ttemploys denvatives where appropriate to generate the desired currency and
interest rate profile

£62 rmillion of borrowing facilities matured dunng 2006 This was replaced by a
new £200 million borrowing facility relating to research and development established
with the European Investrnent Bark (EIB} As at December 31, 2006 the Group had
total committed borrewing facilives of £1.8 billion (2005 £1 7 billion)

There are no rating tnggers contained In any of the Group’s facilies that could
require the Group to accelerate or repay any facility for a given movermnent in the
Group's credit rating and no material impact on the Group’s interest charge 1s
expected to anse from a movement in the Group's credit rating

The Group holds financial investments and maintains undrawn committed
facilities at a level sufficient to ensure the Group has avallable funds to meet its
medium-term capital and funding obligations and te meet any unforeseen
obligations and opportuniies. The Group helds cash and short-term investments
which, together with the undrawn committed faciliues, enable the Group to manage
its hquidity nsk.

The Group continues to have access to all the major global debt markets

Credit rating

The Group's parent company Rolls-Royce Group pl, subscnbes to both Moody's
tnvestors Service and Standard & Poor's for its official publicised credit raungs. As at
December 31, 2006 the assigned long-term credi ratings were’

Rating agency Rating Qutlock Category
Moodys A3 Stable Invesiment grade
Standard & Poors A- Stable Investment grade

The Group saw positive rating actions from both rating agencies duning the year
reflecting the mproved business and financial profile of the Group Standard & Poor s
upgraded the rabng from BBE+'to A~ in June 2006 and Moody's upgraded its ratng
from Baal'10 A3’ in Novernber 2006

As a long-term business the Group attaches significant importance to its parent
company maintaining an investment grade credit rating, which it views as necessary
for the business to operate effectively

The Group's objective 1s to maintain an ‘A'category investment grade credit
rating from both agencies

Currency nsk

The Group 15 exposed to movements In exchange rates for both foreign currency
transactions and the transiation of net assets and incorne statements of foreign
subsidiaries.

The Group regards i1s interests In overseas subsidiary companies as long-term
investments The Group has tended to manage 1its translational exposures through
the currency matching of assets and liabilines where applicable The matching is
reviewed regularly Appropnate nsk mitigation s undertaken where matenal
mismatches arise

The Group 15 exposed to a nurmber of foreign currencies The most sigruficant
transactional currency exposure 1s the US dollar followed by the Euro

The Group manages its exposuire to movernents In exchange rates at two levels

1 Revenues and costs are currency matched where it 1s economic to do so The
Group actively seeks to source suppliers with the relevant currency cost base to
avaid the nsk or to flow down the risk 1o those suppliers that are capable of
managing It Currency risk s also 2 pnme consideration when deciding where to
locate new facilities US dollar income net of US dollar costs represented 26 per
cent of Group turnover i 2006 (2005 27 per cent)

2 Residual currency expasure 1s hedged via the financial markets The Group
operates a hedging policy using a vanety of financial instruments with the
objective of minimising the impact of fluctuations in exchange rates on future
transactions and cash flows

The permitted range of the amount of cover taken 1s determimed by the written
polcies set by the Board, based on known and forecast Income levels

The forward cover 1s managed within the parameters of these policies in order
to achieve the Group's ohjectives, having regard to the Group's view of long-term
exchange rates Forward cover 15 in the form of standard foreign exchange contracts
and instruments on which the exchange rates achieved are dependent on future
interest rates The Group may also write currency eptons against a portion of the
unhedged dollar income at a rate which 1s consistent with the Group’s long-term
target rate At the end of 2006 the Group had appreximately US$10 billion of forward
cover {2005 US$11 billion)

The consequence of this policy has been to maintain relatively stable long-term
foreign exchange rates. Note 19 includes the impact of revaluing forward currency
contracts at market values on December 31, 2006, showing 2 value of £554 million
(2005 £228 million) which will fluctuate with exchange rates over time The Group has
entered nto these forward contracts as part of the hedging policy, described above,
in order to mitigate the impact of volatile exchange rates
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Interest rate risk

The Group uses fixed rate bonds and floaung rate debt as funding sources. The
Group’s palicy s to maintain a proporuen of its debt at fixed rates of interest having
regard to the prevailing interest rate outlock o rmplement this policy the Group may
utilise a combination of interest rate swaps, forward rate agreerments and interest-ate
caps to manage the exposure

Commodity nsk

The Group has an ongoing exposure to the prce of jet fuel and base metals ansing
from business operations. The Group's objective 15 to minimuse the impact of price
fluctuations. The exposure 1s hedged in accordance with parameters contained in 2
wiitten policy set by the Board

Sales financing
In connection with the sale of its products, the Group wll, on some occasions,
provide financing support for s customers. This may involve the Group guaranteeing
financing for customers, providing asset-value guarantees (AVGs) on aircraft for a
proporton of ther expected future value, or entenng into leasing transactions

The Group manages and monitors its sales finance related exposures to
custorners and products within written policies approved by the Board and wathin
the internal framework. The contingent habiliies represent the maxmurn discounted
aggregate gross and net exposure that the Group has in respect of delvered ancraft,
regardless of the point in time at which such exposures may anse

The Group uses Airclaimns Limited as an independent appraiser to value its
security portfolio at both the half-year and year end Awclaims prowdes specific values
(both current and forecast future values) for each asset in the securnty portfolio These
values are then used to assess the Groups net exposure

The permitted levels of gross and net exposure are krmited in aggregaie, by
counterparty, by product type and by calendar year The Group's gross exposures are
dnaded approxmatety 6040 between AVGs and credit guarantees They are spread
over many years and relate to a nurnber of customers and a broad product portfelio

The Board regularly reviews the Groups sales finance related exposures and nsk
management actvities Each financng commitment 1s subject to a credit and asset
review process and pror approval in accordance with Board detegations of authonty

The Group operates a sophisticated nsk-pricng model 1o assess nsk and
expasure

Costs and exposures associated with providing financing support are
incorporated in any decision to secure new business

The Group seeks to minimise the level of exposure from sales finance
commitments by
- the use of third-party non-tecourse debt where appropnate,
- the transfer, sale, or retnsurance of nisks, and
- ensunng the proportionate flow down of nsk and exposure to relevant RRSPs

Each of the above forms an active part of the Group's exposure management
process.

Where exposures anse, the strategy has been, and continues to be, to assume
where possible hquid forms of finanaing cormmitment that may be sold or transferred
to third partes when the opportunity anses.

Note 26 to the accounts descnbes the Group's conungerit siabdities

There were no matenal changes to the Group's grass and net contingent
habilbes in this respect sn 2006

Accounting standards
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Fnancal Reporting Standards (FRS) as adopted by the EU In 2006, the
Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments and IFRS 4
Financial Guarantee Contracts, resutting in sales finanang cornmitments being
classified as insurance contracts This change has no iImpact on the reported results
Other new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations effective in 2006
do not have a significant effect on the Groupss financial statements.

A summary of other changes which have not been adopted in 2006, 15
included within the accounting polices in note 1 to the financial statements.

Andrew Shilston
Finance Director
February 7, 2007
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Buuiness revew conunued

Corporate responsibility

Why corporate respensibility matters
The Group believes that commitment to corporate responsibiity delivers competitve
advantage and contributes 1o the delivery of the Group's business strategy
The Groups's Global Code of Business Ethics underpins our values and engages
our stakeholders in building and maintaining the Group’s reputation
Conducting business in an ethical and respensible way belps the Group in a
number of ways
- weattract and retain the best people,
- we buld goodwill and maintain successful working relationships with
customers, supphers and governments, and
- weencourage the gmng of donations 10 chanues which support the global
communines i which we conduct business,

The sustaned wealth, created by providing thousands of highly skilled jobs,
represents the Group's single greatest contnbution to those commuruties

The Group supports its own employees with well-developed policies and
pracuces in occupational health, safety and ervironment, employment pelicy and
employee learning and development

External recognition

The Group’s achievernents dunng the year were recogrised when it held its high-
ranking position In the 2005 UK Business in the Community Corporate Responsibility
Index. It also retained wts ncdlusion in the Dow Jones Sustainability Indices

Health, safety and the environment (HS&E)
The Group’s approach to HS&E 15 first and foremost shaped by the desire to avoid
harm to people and the environment, and 11 15 also recognised that good HS&E
performance 15 synonymous with good business performance The Rolls-Royce visian
i5 that 1t will become known for the excellence of its health safety and environmental
performance

The Chief Executive chairs the Company HS&E committee, which 1s compnised
of the sector presidents and functional directors and 1s respensible for setting policy,
objectives and targets, defining strategy and reviewang performance

The Group's objectves are to protect health, prevent injury and reduce
environmental impact. Performance levels are achieved by the implementation of an
integrated HS&E management system, which utilses a structured nsk management
approach All the Group's businesses have gained third-party certificanon to the
international ervironmental management systems standard 150 14001

The Group continues to parbapate in the voluntary UK carbon dioxide
emissions trading scheme and the Chicago Chmate Exchange and has programmes
in place to reduce carbon diaxide emussions.

It s with great regret that the Group reports a fatal travel acodent duning
2006 nmvolving a service engineer The Major Inadent Board which is chawed by the
Chief Operanng Officer, has reviewed this ragic acadent and measures have been
impltemented to avoid reoccurrence

The Group's HS&E aud:t programme independently assesses the effective
imptementation of all elernents of the HS&E management system Audits completed
In 2006 covered operations n the UK and Norway

The Group operates three sites in the UK which manufacture, test and support
nuclear reactor cores for Royal Navy submarnines All these sites continue 1o maintain
a strong health, safety and ermironmental performance, which 1s independently
monitored by the Nuclear Propulsion Assurance Committee, chaired by the Director
- Engineenng and Technology

The Group recognises HS&E initiatives and related improvements in
performance through Company H5&E Awards presented by the Chief Executve
Recogrition is also given to those sites achieving zero lost ime injunes over the year

In 2006, the Group was again placed first in its business sector in the Business in
the Emaronment index of corporate ervironmental management and afso retained
‘Premier League'status Rolls-Royce was selected as the UK entry in the management
category for the European Business Awards for the Ervironment 2006

The Group continues to build on these achievermnents, nchuging running
programmes 1o support the devetopmen: of HS&E management systems inits
suppliers This has included supplier workshops in the UK and North Amenca and a
continuation of the suppher HSEE wisit programme The number of suppliers certified
to 150 14001 1n 2006 more than doubled

Afull report on the Group’s HS&E performance over the penod 2004-06 will be
published in Apnil 2007 Independent assurance will be pravded by Deloitte &
Touche LLP

Emaronment product performance
The Chief Executive has highlighted earbier in this report that Rolls-Royce 18 both
committed and well placed to find solutions to the substantial challenges posed by
cirnate change The Groups environmental team dosely monitors developments in
the underpinning science and their advice helps steer the significant research and
development programmes, as well as providing input 1o the overall business strategy
Such knowledge 15 also vital to the design process

In addition, the Group obtains independent expert adwvice from its
Enwironmental Adwisory Board This Board 1s made up of distinguished academics
who are leading authorities in their respective fields

In the aviation sector, the fuel efficiency of Rolls-Royce aero engines has
improved by 20 per cent over the past 25 years The Group is playing a leading role in
the achievernenit of the long-term envizonmental goals set by the Advisory Council
for Aeronautics Research in Europe and 15 investing substantial funds in research and
development and in the introduction of new products with enhanced environmental
performance

Rolls-Reyce 15 an active member of the UK Sustainable Avianon Councd (SAC),
which published a sustainable aviation strategy n 2005, the first of its kind, and its first
progress report In 2006 The SAC 1s an industry body committed to building a
sustainable future, which comprises manufacturers, arrlines, airports and air
navigation service providers

The Group is Involved in a renge of product development initiatives acrass all
business sectors. These Include alternative energy and low-carbon technologes such
as the development of the high-efficiency solid oxide fuel cell These fuel cells offer
other ermironmental benefits, such as low noise and tmproved arr quality

The Group endorses the pnnaples of ermssions trading, a mechanism which
over ime should enable markets to identify and invest where the most cost-effective
improvements can be made

A full report on the ermronmental performance of the Group's products will be
published in Apnl 2007

Supply chain
The Group sets expected business requirements and performance standards through
1ts suppher quality system, ‘Supplier Advanced Business Relationships' (SABRe}
SABRe indludes a supplier code of conduct and a health, safety and emvironmental
management system Regular meetings are held between Rolls-Royce and all levels
of suppliers.

The Rolls-Royce purchasing code of conduct for employees complements the
supphier code of conduct and ensures that employees act consistently vath suppliers

Partnership approach

The Group's partnership approach to its supply <hain

- delvers mutua! business benefits

- minimises the environmental impact of busingss operations,
- encourages the highest standards of ethucal behaviour, and
- promotes human nghts.

We are establishing focal purchasing offices around the werld, which wall develop
mutual understanding between Rolls-Royce and its network of supphiers,

Regular wisits are made 1o suppliers to assess their performance and an ongoing
programme of communication continues to reinforce supplier partnerships

The intraduction of Exostar, an e-business system accessible by our suppliers
provides significant benefits including
- enabling virtua! teamworking,
- reduang the need to travel, and
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- encouraging move regular and effective communication.

The sourcing policies of Rolls-Royce in the US reflect US Government regulations on
smal and disadvantaged businesses

Socal responsibility
Buring 2006, the Group concentrated on updating 1is supphier policy to include social
responsibilities New guidelines wall be 1ssued during 2007

The Group 1s recogrised for its continuing contribution 1o corporate
responsibifity through the recyching of matenal inits supply chain where signuficant
metal recycle levels have been achieved Rells-Royce has also introduced returnable
contaner loops across its major UK supplers to reduce the use of disposable
packaging

Occupational health
The Group recogrises the link between physical and mental health and the need for
employees to work effectvely and successfully with proper regard for thew personal
well-being

In response, the Occupational Health Policy Group develops the Group strategy
and identifies relevant areas of changing occupational health needs

The Group 15 committed to promoting best practice In occupational health It
hosted the UK national launch of a joint Faculty of Public Health and Faculty of
QOccupational Medicine inmative on ‘Creating a healthy workplace’

Key areas of focus

The occupational health strategy concentrates on four key areas
- screening and survelllance

- rehabidtauon,

- health promotion, and

- education

In screening and surveillance strngent targets are set for assessing fitness for work,
reducing occupational disease and work-related dk-health A campaign to reduce
noise-nduced heanng loss continues and the Group has an nternational reputation
for its management of hand-arm vibration syndrome cases

The pnority in rehabilitanon is early intervention and the active case
management of ndmduals Training assists maragers N managing absence and
rehabilitation effectvely The importance of health and praductivity was included in
the Group's management developrment programmes in 2006

Health promotion in 2006 included two awareness campaigns on physical
actmity and alcochol Employees were encouraged to Get active, Get up & Go'to
ighlight the benefits of physical actvity on health and well-being The aim of the
alcohol campaign, ‘Know your kmits, was to raise awareness of safe drinking levels
and the effects of alcohol on health.

Extermal recognition

Rolls-Royce was a winner of the National Obesity Forum Primary Care Award for
Excellence in Weight Management 2006 This award recognised its achievements in
the UK campaign, Reduce Hazardous Waist!

Indeperdent research for Norwach Union Healthcare on dl-health and absence
cited Rolls-Royce as promoting a healthy workplace and proactively managing
adverse health effects to achieve a reduction in absence

Dr lan Lawson, the Groups Chief Medicat Officer, was made a Fellow of the
Amenican College of Occupational and Erviranmental Medicine in 2006

Employment policy

The Group’s employrment policies continue to develop the fliexibility, capability and
maotivation of all employees

In recent years, we have introduced a range of policies including

- modem working practices in operations,

- improved methods of encouraging employee involvernent, and

- aglobal approach to attracting and retaining 1alented people

Employee involvement
The Group prowdes competitive pay and benefits for employees in each locality and
actively encourages share ownership All employees are regularly invited to
parucipate in ShareSave plans and the workforce has cormmitted to save some
£90 mill:on to buy shares in the Company Statutory arrangements enable UK
employees to recenve part of theyr annual banus in Company shares and to make
rmonthly share purchases from their salary

We continue to work closely with employee representatives to improve the
qualty of employee engagement and participation in the development of the
business This progress 15 reinforced by the conunueng development of the Global
Council The Council comprises empioyee representatives from around the world and
provdes a structured appioach 1o consultabion and communication

Dunng 2006, the Global Council met twace and additional intenm meeaings of
its Executive Committee ensured that key 1ssues :«dentified by the Councail were
progressed

The Group launched its second Global Employee Engagement Survey in
Novermnber 2006 (previous survey 2004), and the results will be fed back to employees
in the first half of 2007 All employees wall have the opportunity to discuss the issues
emerging from the survey and wilt be involved i formulating action plans to
address them

Human nghts and ethics
In 2006, foliowang consultation wath the Global Councl, the Group agreed a Global
Code of Business Ethics and Human Rights policy

A globat traiming and communication programme for leaders and employees
will take place dunng 2007 to help promote effectively and widely the Global Code of
Business Ethics.

Diversity
The Group 1s commutted to developing a diverse workforce and equal opporturities
for all In support of the Global Dwversity Policy, a Globa! Steening Group was
established and improvements rmade to local polices

These policies support initiatives to encourage more wormen and people from
mincnty backgrounds 1o pursue careers i engineenng In 2006 graduate recruitment
comprised 30 per cent females and 23 per cent internaticnal trainees. The Group also
introduced a targeted graduate programme 1n Asia

In addition the Graup organised a global conference for women role models
and a women'’s leadership conference In the US We also helped the launch of a
network for femate employees in the UK and plan to support similar networks in
other countries

The Group's policy 15 to provide, wherever possible, employment training and
development opportunities for disabled people Itis also committed 1o supporung
employees who become disabled and to helping disabled employees make the best
possible use of thewr skills and potental

Learning and development

The Group has continued to invest i the training and development of employees,
customers and suppliers to strengthen its competitive positon In 2006, expenditure
on the education, tratning and professional and leadership development of
employees was £30 midlion.

Employees
The Group continued 10 focus on developing its leadership by strengthening (s
succession plans and talent pools. It also strengthened its management and
development programmes by jaining the consoruum Global Leadershup 20720
programme led by the Amos Tuck School of Business at Dartmouth College in
the US

Training programmes continued to help improve processes and 1o raise
standards of performance and customer satisfaction New programmes were
introduced 10 promote a new services behawiour
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Business review conunued

Training was delivered to support the introducuon of new faciones and the
contnued development of global operating systerns This included

- modern working practices,

- team-based working, and

- the Rolls-Royce Production System

Training in support of Product bifecyde Managernent and Enterprise Resource
Planning continues to enable the Group and its supply chain 1o deliver products and
services of a higher quality and with greater efficiency in support of the Group's
services strategy

We have increased the availability of online learning and seen a 250 per cent
increase in the use of e-learning packages over the past 12 months

Dunng the year, the Group recrurited 154 graduates and 155 apprentices and
techricians. In addinon, 599 undergraduate students were empioyed for training
periods of between two and 12 months At the end of the year, a total of 295
graduates were on formal training programmes and there were 420 apprentices and
techrucians worldwade In 2006, the Group was ranked second in its business sector
and 23rd averall in the UK Times Newspaper Top 100 Graduate Employers list.

At the end of 2006 the Group employed 38020 employees tnover 50 countries,

Eclucational sponsorship

The Group centinues to work dlosely with schocls, colleges and universities to
promote saence, engineering, technology and enterprise Our policy 15 to work with
governments, local and nabional institutions to widen students’expenence of industry
and promote careers n the aerospace, manne and energy sectors In 2006, this
included running two cohorts of the Young Apprentice programame in the UK for
14-16 year olds Dunng 2006, Rolls-Royce also took an active part in the development
of the National Sklls Acadermy for Manufactunng in the UK.

In 2006, the Group hosted an awards dinner to recogrse the first winner of the
Rolls-Royce Science Prize The prize promotes and rewards innovation and excellence
i science teaching throughout the UK and the Republic of reland The winning
tearn, Crown Woods School from London, was awarded £20,000 to invest inscience
education The Group gves a total of £120000 in prize money each year as part of
the Saence Prize

Ancther flagship education actvity, Profitable Pursuit, is a business simulztion 1o
sumulate enterpnse education in schools. Duning 2006, over 120 teachers and
adhsors were tramed Other projects include Cpen Industry, Specialist Schools and
Saence and Engineenng Ambassadors in the UK In the US, Rolls-Royce supports
‘Project Lead the Way' to encourage students to consider careers In engineenng and
techrology

Customers

The Group centinues 1o meet customer tramning needs with management and
busginess educaton and, dunng 2006, over 17,000 days of traming were delvered to
Rolis-Royee customers. This was completed either through the Group's dedicated
Customer Training faciliies in North Amenca Europe and China, or at its custormers’
locations

Community investment

Rolis-Royce has a long and successful hustory of community irvolvement which
benefits the societies in which it operates and contnibutes 1o 1ts long-term business
SUCCESS.

Structure
The community iInvestment and sponsorship committee of Rolls-Royce Group ple,
chaired by the Chief Executive, 1s responsible for the Group's policy on chantable
donations. The Group committee 18 supported by a number of natonal committees
which operate within the followang guidelines

‘As a forward4ooking, iInnovative and globat company, Rolls-Royce Group pic s
commutted 1o being a good corporate otizen in 1ts operations throughout the world
The Group's policy on donations is to direct its support primarily to causes with
educatonal, engineenng and saentfic objectves, as well as to social objectives
connected with the Group's business and place 1n the wader commurity’

A list of the principa) donations made in the year 15 available upon request to the
Company Secretary

Focused support

In 2006, the Group achieved sixteenth position in the UK Guardian Newspaper’s

Gmng List, demonstrating its commutment to supporting the communinies in which

its employees Iive and work around the wordd Our policy 15 to grve priarity to

actwes supportung educaton, the environment, arts and culture, and economic and
social regeneration This approach supparts the Group's values of reliabilty, integnty
and innovation

In 2006, the Group’s total chantable donations amounted to £1.2 millon Duning

2006 chantable donations in the UK amounted to £728000 They included support

for The Prince’s Trust, Community Foundations, S5 Great Britam, The Industnal Trust

and Duxford ArSpace
The Group has made charitable donations of £507,000 in other hey regions. In

North Amenca, this included support for the work of United Way, the Srmithsonian

National Arr and Space Museurn, the United States Air Force Museum Foundation

and Purdue University In Germany, we supported a range of organisations, Including

the Brandenburg Summer Festval, World Youth Day and the Intermational Airport
Race In the Nordic countries, Rolls-Royce supported a number of local sports and
arts-based projects
In addition 1o ¢hartable donations contributions of £2.5 million were made by
the Group, pnmarily in sponsorship and to educational programmes

The Group also finances the administration of a Payroll Gving Scheme for UK
employees [n 2006, the scheme helped employees to donate over £400,000 10 more
than 200 chanties of their choice Fifteen per cent of employees take part In the

scheme, one of the highest levels of partiapation in the UK and the scherme s

recognised as Gold Award standard by the UK Government’s Payroll Grng Charter

Mark. In addition, 37 per cent of emnployees in North Arnernica have contributed in

excess of £180,000 to good causes through Umited Way schernes, a percentage of

which s matched by the Company
in 2006, each completed questionnaire in the Global Employee Engagement
Survey, guaranteed a donaton to the Rolls-Royce Disaster Relief Fund, created to
continue the actwities undertaken following the 2004 tsunami and hurncane Katrina
In acdition to providing financal support, the Group encourages employees to
participate tn community projects to enhance their own skills and expenence In

2006, exarmples ncluded

~  asenes of team challenges which involved 160 senior managers completing
community projects n Berlin dunng the annual Senior Management
Conference

~ 250 new trainees taking part in a chaftenge i the UK as part of thesr inducbion
programeme,

- providing business mentors and adwisers through The Prince’s Trust, Young
Enterprise and Arts & Business,

- unning successful mentoang and literacy programmes for school pupils
through educaton business partnerships in the UK and the Helping Cne
Student to Succeed (HOSTS) programme in Indianapols, USA,

- supporting employees who are School Governors,

- partapating in the UKs Soence and Engineenng Ambassadors Scheme, and

- supporung students i the For Inspiration and Recognition of Science and
Technology (FIRST) robotics programme in the US

The Group also offers support in-kand 1o local community organisations by donaung
surplus computer equipment and office furmiture 1t also prowides places on in-house
training courses, and offers the use of meeting rooms and office accommodation

Rolls-Royce 1s @ member of Business in the Community and actvely supports
Common Purpase programimes across the UK These two organisations aim to
promote greater business awareness and rvolvement in wider community Issues
and o encourage more employee patiapation,
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Independent auditors’ report
To the members of Rolls-Royce plc

We have audited the group and parent company financal statements (the financial  Cpinion

statements’) of Rolk-Royee plc for the year ended December 31, 2006 which In our opinion

compnse the Group consolidated iIncome statement, the Group and Parent - the Group financial statements give a true and fair view 10 accordance wath
Company balance sheets, the Group consolidated cash flow staterment, the Group IFRSs as adopted by the EU, of the state of the Groups affarrs as at
consolidated statement of recognised income and expense and the related notes. Decernber 31, 2006 and of 1ts profit for the year then ended,

These finanaial statements have been prepared under the accountng polaes setout —  the Group financial statemenits have been properly prepared i accordance
therein with the Comparnies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the [AS Regulation,

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, In accordance the parent Company financial statements give a true and fair view, In
with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so accordance with UK Genesafly Accepted Accounung Pracuce, of the state of the

that we might state to the Company’s memibers those matters we are required to parent Company’s affars as at December 31 2006

state to them iy an auditor's report and for no other purpase To the fullest extent - the parent Company financial statements have been properdy prepared in
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyene other than accordance with the Comparves Act 1985, and

the company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this - the mformanon grven in the Report of the directors 1s consistent with the

report, or for the opiions we have formed financial statements.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors -
- {
The directors' responsibilities for prepanng the Annual report and the Group financiat K(' MG— W ] A
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the EU, and for prepanng the parent Company KPMG Audit Plc
financial statements In accordance with applicable law and UK Accounting Standards  $hanered Accountants, Regrstered Auditor
(UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the staternent of directors’ :':;‘ng’; 2007
responsibilives on page 3
Qur responstdiity 15 to audit the financial statements in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requszements and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland}
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial staternents give a true
and far view and whether the financial statements have been properly prepared In
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the Group financia!
statements, Article 4 of the JAS Regulation We also report 10 you whether in our
opinion the mformatton given in the Report of the directors 15 consistent with the
financial statements The informaton given in the Report of the directors indudes
that speafic iInformaton presented in the business review that 15 cross referred from
the business review section of the Report of the directors.
In addition we repart to you «, In our opinion, the Company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not receved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or if Information specified by law regarding directors’
rermunetation and other transactions 15 not disclosed

Basls of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
{UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financaal statements, It also includes an assessment of the significant estmates
and jucgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting poliaies are appropnate to the Group's and
Company’s arcumstances, consistently applied and adeguately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit 50 as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order 1o prowde us wath sufficeent
ewdence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
matenal risstatemment, whether caused by fraud or other uregulanty or error In
forrming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
informanon in the finanaial statements
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended December 31, 2006

Restated”
2006 2005
Notes im im
Revenue 23 7,156 6,603
Cost of sales (5,527) {4924
Gross profit 1,629 1679
Other operating income 4 57 60
Commergal and administrative costs (664) (646)
Research and development cosis (370) (282)
Share of profit of joint ventures 10 47 46
Operating profit 699 857
Profit/{lass) on sale of businesses Ell 1 2)
Profit before financing income/{costs) 700 855
Finanaing income 5 1,335 475
Finanaing costs 5 1498) 867)
Net financing income/(costs) 837 (392)
Profit before taxation 4 1,537 463
Taxation 6 (397) {126
Profit for the year 1,140 337
Attributable to
Fquity holders of the parent 1,144 M0
Minonty interests 25 {4) 3
Profit for the year 1,140 337
* See note 5
Rofls Royce pc 2008
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Consolidated balance sheet

At December 31, 2006
Restated”
2006 2005
Notes fm fm
ASSETS
Non—current assets
Intangible assets 8 1,460 1315
Property, plant and equipment 9 1,706 1,649
Investments — joint ventures 10 240 247
Other investments 11 125 345
Deferred 1ax assets 20 141 391
3,672 3,947
Current assets
Inventory 12 1,447 1,309
Trade and other recervables 13 2,465 2047
Taxation recoverable 5 3
Other financal assets 19 644 464
Short-term Investments 34 37
Cash and cash equivalents 14 2,184 1,756
6,779 56146
Total assets 10,451 9,563
LIABILIMES
Current liabilites
Borrowings (LT . S U
Other financial habrities 19 (24) (227)
Trade and other payables 16 (3844} {3,518}
Current tax liabilities (191} (171)
Provisions n {146]) (138)

(4,605} (4129

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 17 (990} {1,458)
Other financial liabilities 19 (336} (339)
Trade and other payables 18 (827) (650)
Deferred tax labiliues 20 (252} (178}
Provisions 21 {189} (223)
Post-reurement benefit cbligations 22 {995} (1,659
(3.589) {4,500
Total liabilities (8,194) {8.636)
Net assets 2,257 927
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital px} 326 326
Share premium account 2 631 631
Transiton hedging reserve 24 177 379
Translavon reserve 24 (58) V7
Retained earnings 24 1174 (432)
Equity attributable ta equity holders of the parent 2,250 921
Minority interests 25 7 6
Total equity 2,257 927
* See note B

The financial staternents on pages 20 to 66 were approved by the Board on February 7, 2007 and signed on its behalf by
n Robertson Charman Andrew Shilston Finance Director

U 785 -
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended December 31, 2006

Restated"
2006 2005
Notes £m £m
Reconcthation of operating cash flows
Profit before taxation 1,537 463
Share of profit of joint ventures 10 {47 (46)
{(Profity/loss on sale or terrmunation of businesses 31 {1) 2
(ProfitMloss on sale of property, plant and equipment 9) 1
Netinterest expense 5 18 3%
Net post retirement scheme finanang (income)/costs 5 (3) g
Net other finanang (income)/costs 5 (852) 344
Taxation paid (25) &0
Amortisation of ntangible assets 8 60 59
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9 161 165
Decrease in provisions (36} (31
increase N INventornes {136) 221
Increase in vade and other recenables {397) 252)
Increase in trace and other payables 700 728
Decrease in other inancial assets and liabilines 250 270
Post-retirement benefits adjustment 1) &9
Share-based payments charge 26 36 26
Transfers of hedge reserves to Income statement 24 (289) (459)
Drvidends received from joint ventures 10 44 35
Net cash inflow from operating activities 990 3,033
Cash flows from investing actnities
Drsposals of unlisted srvestments — 5
Additions to intangible assets {219) {132
Dnsposals of intangible assets 7 —
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {298) 219)
Disposals of property, plant and eqtfpment 55 69
Acquisition of businesses 31 6] —
Disposals of businesses 31 1 1
Investments 1n goint ventures {11) {13)
Disposals of joint ventures 1 —
Additions o parent company shares {44) —
Disposals of parent company shares 76 —
Net cash outflow from investing activities {437) {289)
Cash flows from financing activities
Borrawings due within one year - repayment of loans {33} (202)
Borrowings due after one year ~ repayment of loans — (5
Capital element of finance lease payments (8) (in
Net cash outflow from decrease i borrowangs {61) {218)
Interest recerved 84 41
interest paid (96) 88
Interest element of finance |ease payments (2) @
Decrease/(increase) in government securiies and corporate bonds 3 8
Settlernent of financial habilities to purchase/sell own shares — {149)
Net cash cutflow from finandng activities 72) 417
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 481 327
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 1.744 1439
Foreign exchange (60) 45
Net cash of businesses acquired/disposed 5 i
Adjustment on implementation of IAS 32 and |AS 39 (68)
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2170 1,744

* Seenctes 5and 8.
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2006 2005
fm m
Reconaliation of increase in cash and cash equivafents to movements tn net funds

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 481 327
Cash {inflow)/outflow from (decrease)/increase in government secunties and corporate bonds (3) 1
Net cash outflow from decrease in bormowings 61 218
Change in net funds resulting from cash flows 539 546
Borrowings of businesses disposed _— !
Net funds of businesses acquired 1 —
Finance lease additions — (1)
Exchange adjustments (49) 5
Far value adjustrnents 77 47
Movement in net funds 568 598
Net funds/(debt) at January 1 260 (149)
Adjustment on implementation of IAS 32 and |AS 39 (189}
828 260

Far value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings {3) 74
Net funds at December 31 825 334
At Net funds of Other At

January 1, busmnesses Exchange Fair value non-cash December 31,

2006 Cash flow acquired adjustments  adjustments changes 2006

Analysis of net funds £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
ash at bank and in hand 337 439 5 {25) — —_ 756
Overdrafis (2) 3) — 1 — - (14)
Short term deposits 1,419 45 — {36) — — 1,428
Cash and cash equivalents 1,744 481 5 (60) — — 2,170
Investments 37 (3) — — — — 34
Cther borrowings due within one year {55} 53 {1) 5 17 (398) (379}
Borrowings due after one year {1444} - (3) 6 60 398 {983}
Finance leases {22} 8 - - — - {14}
260 539 1 49) 7 — 828

Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 74 77} 3
334 539 1 (49) — — 825
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Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense

For the year ended December 31, 2006

Restated *
2006 205
£m im
Foreign exchange transtaton differences from foreign operatons 2 (75) 49
Actuanal gaing/(losses) 602 (282
Teansfers from transition hedging reserve {289) {462)
Transfers from cash flow hedging reserve — 3
Movernent in fair value of avalable for sale assets {126) 123
Related tax mevements {43) 186
Netincome/{expense) recognised directly in equity 69 {385)
Profit for the year 1,140 337
Total recognised income and expensa for the year 1,209 {48)
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 1,213 {45)
Minority interests (4) 3
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1,209 {48)
! Seenote §
2 Loss on investment hedge relating to foreign subsickanes £ml (2005 £26m loss)
Summary of movements in eqmty
For the year ended December 31, 2006
2006 2005
£m £m
At January 1 (including effect of adoption of 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 from January §, 2005} 927 524
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1,209 {48)
Share-based payments adjustment 40 26
Sale of shares in subsidiary company 1o a minonity interest 5 5
Related tax movements - curent tax 18 —
— deferred tax 58 20
At December 31 2,257 927
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 2,250 921
Minorty interests 7 6
Total equity 2,257 527
Rolls Royce pic 2006
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Significant accounting policies

The Company

Rolls-Royce plc {the ‘Company’ is a company dormicited in the United Kingdom

The consohdated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
Decernber 31 2006 compnse the Company and 1ts subsid:anes {together referred to
as the ‘Group’) and the Group's interest in jointly contralled entities The financial
siaternents were authorised for issue by the directors on February 7, 2007

Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

In accordance with European Union (EU} requlations, the consolidated finanaial
staternents have been prepared in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (ASB), as
adopted for use (n the EU effective at December 31, 2006 The Company has elected
o prepare (1s parent comparty accounts under UK Accounting Standards

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
where IFRS require an alternative treatment The principal vanations from the
hustoncal cost basis relate to pensions (IAS 19) monetary items {(AS 21), financal
instrumants {AS 39) and share-based payments (IFRS 2)

The Group's significant accounting policies are set out below, together with the
Judgernents made by management In applying these pehaes, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recogmsed in the financial statements, apart from
those Involving estimations which are dealt with separately below These accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all penods presented (n these consolidated
financial staternents and by all Group entities

Some smal! adjustments have been made to comparative figures to put them
on a consistent basis with the current year

Basis of consolidation
The Group financial staterments include the financial statements of the Company and
all of its subs:diary undertakings made up to Decemnber 31, together with the Group's
share of the results of joint ventures up 1o December 31

A subsidiary 1s an entity controlled by the Company Control exists when the
Company has the power, directly or ndirectly, to govern the financial and operating
policies of the entity so as to denve benefits from its activities Transachons between
members of the Group are eliminated on consclidation

A joint venture 15 an entity In which the Group holds a long-term interest and
which s jointly controlled by the Group and one or more other venturers under a
contractual arrangement.

Any subsichary undertalangs and joint ventures sold or acquired dunng the year
are Included up to, or from, the dates of change of controt

Significant accounting poliaes and judgements applied

Revenue recogmtion
Revenues comprise sales to external customers after discounts excluding value
added tax.

Sales of products are recognised when the sigrificant nsks and rewards of
ownership of the goods are transferred to the customner, the sales price agreed and
the receipt of payment can e assured On occasion the Group may parbiapate in
the financing of engines in conjunction with airframe manufacturers In such
arcumstances, the contingent obligations ansing under these arrangements are
taken INto account in assessing whether significant nisk and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the customer Where it 1s Judged that sufficient fisks and
rewards are not transferred, the transaction s treated as a leasing ransaction,
resulting m an operating lease between the Group and the customer No deliveries of
engines were treated as operating leases dunng 2006 Depending on the specfic
arcurnstances, where applicable the financing arrangements may result in the
consehdation of the entity established to facilitate the financing Such special
purpose entiies will be consehdated as required by IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financal Statements if it 1s considered that the Group controls the entity
The Group has consolidated one such entity (Pembroke 717 Holdings Lirited)

Sales of senvices ate recognised by reference to the stage of completian based on
services performed 1o date The assessment of the stage of completion 15 dependent
on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on costs incurred to the
extent these relate to services performed up to the reporting date, achievement of
contractual milestones where appropnate, or flying hours or equsvalent for long-term
aftermarket arrangements

Linked sales of product and services are treated as a single contract where these
components have been negotiated as 2 single commercial package and are so
closely interrelated that they do nct operate independently of each other and are
considered 1o form a single project with an overall profit margin Revenue 1s
recognised on the same basis as for other sales of preducts and services as descnbed
above

Prowided that the outcome of construction contracts can be assessed with
reasonable certainty the revenues and costs on such contracts are recognised based
on stage of completion and the overall contract profitabihity

Full provision 1s made for any esimated losses to completion of contracts
having regard to the overall substance of the arrangements

Progress payments receved, when greater than recorded revenues are deducted
from the value of work in progress except to the extent that payments on account
exceed the value of work In progress on any contract where the excess 15 included in
trade and other payables The amount by which recorded revenue of long-term
contracts 1S in excess of payments on account 1s classified as'amounts recoverable on
contracts'and Is separately disclosed within trade and other receivables

Risk and revenue shanng partnerships (RRSFs)
From time to tme, the Group enters Into arrangements with partners who, in return
for a share in future programme revenues or profits, make cash payments that are not
refundable (except under certain remote circumstances) Cash sums recerved, which
reimburse the Group for past expenditure, are credited to other operating iIncome
The arrangerents also require partners to undertake development work and/or
supply components for use In the programme at their own expense No accounting
entries are recorded where partners undertake such development work or where
programme components are supphed by partners because no obligation anses
unless and until programme sales are made, Instead, paymenits to partners for their
share in the programme are charged to cost of sales as programme revenues anse
The Group has arrangements with partners who do not undertake
development work or supply parts Such arrangements are considered to be financial
instruments as defined by IAS 32 and are accounted for using the amortised cost
methiod
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Notes 10 the consolidated financial staternents contirmeed

Government investment

Where a government or sirmilar body invests in a development programme, the
Group treats such receipts as the sale of an interest in the programme  Subsequent
payments are royalty payments and are matched to related safes.

Interest
Interest recervable/payable 1s credited/charged to the income staternent using the
effectve interest method

Taxation
The tax charge on the profit or loss for the year compnses current and deferred tax.

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
In respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provded using the balance sheet liability method, providing for
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and izbdities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for 1axation purposes

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing
onnvestments in subsidianes and joint ventures, except where the Group 15 able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it1s probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax s calculated using the enacted or substantively enacted rates that
are expected to apply when the asset or habilty 1s settled Deferred tax s charged or
credited in the income staterment, except when it relates to tems credited or charged
directly to equity in which case the deferred tax 15 also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the assets can be utihsed

Segmental reporting

A segment 1s 3 distinguishable companent of the Group that ts engaged in providing
products and services As the nisks and rates of retum are predominately affected by
differences in these products and senaces, the pnimary format for reporting segment
information 1s based on business segrments

Foreign currency transiation
Transachons in overseas currencies are transtated into locat currency at the exchange
rates ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and labilies
denorminated in foreign currencies are translated into local currency at the rate ruling
at the year end Exchange differences ansing on foreign exchange transactions and
the retranslation of assets and hiabilities into sterling at the rate ruling at the year end
are taken into account in determining profit before taxation

The trading results of overseas undertakings are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year The assets and liabilities of overseas undertakings are
transtated at the rate ruling at the year end Exchange adpustments ansing from the
retranstation of the operuing net Investrents, and from the transiaton of the profits
or losses at average rates, are taken 1o equity The net investment hedging of overseas
undertakings 15 described under hedge accounting

Financial nstruments

IAS 39 Financial Instruments requires the dassification of finanaal instruments into

separate categories for which the accounting requirement 1s different Rolls-Royce has

dassified 1ts financal instruments as follows

- Fixed deposits, prncipally comprising funds held with banks and other financial
instizutions and trade receivables, are classified as loans and recevables.

-~ Investmenits (other than interests in yount ventures and fixed deposits) and
short-term deposits (other than fixed deposits) are dassified as available for sale

- Borrowings, rade payables and financal RRSPs are classified as other liabilines.

—  Denvatives, compnsing foreign exchange coniracts, interest rate swaps and
commodity swaps are dassified as held for trading

Financial instruments are recogrised at the contract date and intially measured at fair

value Thew subsequent measurement depends on therr dassification

- Loans and recervables and other habiliues are held at amortised cost and not
revalued unless they are included in a far value hedge accounting relationship
Where such a relationship exsts, the instruments are revalued in respect of the
nsk being hedged If instruments held at amortised cost are hedged, generally
by interest rate swaps, and the hedges are effective, the carnyng values are
adjusted for changes in fair value, which are included in the income staterment.

~  Avallable for sale assets are held at far value Changes in farr value ansing from
changes in exchange rates are included in the Income statement All other
changes in fai value are taken to equity On disposal, the accumulaied changes
in value recorded in equity are Included in the gain or loss recorded in the
inceme statement

—  Held fer rading instruments are held at far value Changes in farr value are
included in the income statement unless the nstrument 1s ncluded in a cash
flow hedge If the instruments are included in a cash flow hedging relattonship
which 1s effective, changes in value are taken to equity When the hedged
forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recorded in eguity are
recognised In the Income statement

- Foreign exchange gains and losses ansing on transactions are recogrused in the
income statement.

Financial instrumenis are derecogrised on expiry or when all contractual nghts and

obhgations are transferred

Hedge accounting

‘The Group does not apply hedge accounting in respect of forward foreign exchange
contracts held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast transactions
denominated in foreign currencies

The Group does not apply hedge accounting in respect of commedity swaps
hetd to manage the cash flow expasures of forecast transactions in those
commodities.

The Group applies hedge accounting In respect of transactions entered into to
manage the fair value and cash flow exposures of is borrowings, Forward foreign
exchange contracts are held to manage the fai value exposures of borrowings
denominated in foraign currenaes and are designated as far value hedges. Interest
rate swaps are held to manage the inierest rate exposures and are designated as farr
value or cash flow hedges of fixed and floating rate borrowings respectively

Changes in the fair values of dervatives designated as fair value hedges and
changes in farr value of the related hedged item are recogmised directly in the
Income statement

Changes in the fair values of denvatives that are designated as cash fiow hedges
and are effective are recognised directly in equity Any ineffectiveness in the hedging
relationstups 15 ncluded in the income statement. The amounts deferred in equity are
recognised In the Income statement to match the recognition of the hedged iiem

Hedge accounting 15 discontinued when the hedging instrurnent expires or 15
sold, terminated, or exerased or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that
ume, for cash flow hedges, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognised in equsty 1s retaned 1n equity unbl the forecast transaction occurs. If a
hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to oceur, the net cumulative gain or loss
recognised in egusty is transferred to the income staternent.

The portion of a gain or loss on an anstrument used to hedge a net Investment
in a foreign operation that 1s determined to be an effecuve hedge 1s recognised
directly in equity The ineffective portion 1 recognised immediately in the income
staternent.

Until December 31,2004, and as allowed by IFRS 1, the Group applied hedge
accounting for forecast foreign exchange transactions and commaodity exposuires in
accordance with UK Accounting Standards. On January 1 2005, the far values of
dermvatives used for hedging these exposures were indluded in the transibon hedging
reserve This reserve 15 refeased to the income statement based on the designation of
the hedges on January 1, 2005
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Furchased goodwilf

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration for

shares in subsidiary undertakungs and joint ventures over the fair value 1o the Group

of the net dentfiable assets acquired

) ToDecember 31, 1997 Goodwill was written off to reserves in the year of
acguisiticn

m  From January 1, 1998 Goodwill was recognised within intangible assets in the
year in which 1t arose and amortised on a straight line basis over its useful
economic life, up to a raximum of 20 years

m}y  From January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations
goodwill is recognised as per (i) above but is no longer amortised

Cerufication costs and participation fees

Costs incurred 1n respect of meeting regulatory certification requirements for new
avil enginefaircraft combinations and payments made to airframe manufacturers for
this, and participation fees are camed forward in intangible assets to the extent that
they can be recovered out of future sales and are charged to the Income statement
over the programme hfe, up to a maximum of 15 years

Research and development
In accordance with 1AS 38 Intangible Assets, expenciture incurred on research and
development, excluding known recoverable amounts on contracts, and
contributions to shared engineenng programmes, 1s distinguished as relating erther
to a research phase or to a development phase

All research phase expenditure 1s charged to the income statement for
development expenditure, this 1s capitahised as an intemally generated intangible
asset, only If it meets stoct crtena relating in particular to technical feasibility and
generation of future economic benefits

Expenditure that cannot be classified Into these two categores is treated as
being incurred in the research phase The Group considers that, due to the complex
nature of new equIpment programmes, It 1s Not possible to disunguish rekably
between research and development actvities until relatively late in the programme

Expenditure capitalsed 1s amortised over its useful economic ife up to 2
maximum of 15 years from the entry-into-service of the product

Recoverable engine costs

On occasion the Group may sell onging! equipment to customers at a value below
(ts cost, on the basis that this deficit will be recovered from future aftermarket sales 1o
the cniginal customer Where the Group has a contractual nght to supply aftermarket
parts to the customer and its Intellectual nghits, warranty arrangements and statutory
arworthiness requirements prowide reasonable control over this supply, these
arrangerments 2re considered te meet the definimon of an intangible asset Such
intangible assets are recognised to the extent of the deficit and amortised on a
straight-ine basis over the expected penod of utilisation by the onginal customer,
generally a maximunm of ten years unless the speafic contractual arcumsiances
indicate a longer penod

Software

The cost of acquiring software that s not specific to an item of property, plant and
equipment 1s classified as an intangible asset Amounts previously included within
property plant and equipment have been transferred to intangible assets (see
notes 8 and 9)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equiprent assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreaation and any provision for impairments in value
Depreciation is provided on a straight-ine basis to write off the cost, less the
estimated residual value, of property, plant and equipment over therr estmated
useful tves Estimated useful lives are as follows
1 Land and bulldings, as advised by the Groups professional advisors
a)  Freehold buildings — five to 45 years (average 23 years}
b)  Leasehold buldings - lower of advisors esamates or penod of lease
€)  Nodepreciation is provided on freehold land
1) Plant and eguipment - five to 25 years {average 15 years)
w)  Aircraft and engines - five to 20 years {average 18 years)
v} Nodepreciation 1s provided on assets in the course of construction

Joint ventures
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method

Leases

) AslLessee
Assets financed by leasing agreerments that give nghts approxmating to
ownership (finance leases) have been capitalised at their farr value and
depreciation 15 provided on the bass of the Group depreciation policy The
caprtal elements of future obligations under finance leases are ncluded as
liabrites in the balance sheet and the current year’s interest element, having
been affocated 1o accounting perods to give a constant penodic rate of charge
on the outstanding hability, s charged to the income statement The annual
payments under all other lease arrangernents, known as operating leases, are
charged to the incorne staternent on  straight-ine basis

0 AsLessar
Amounts recewvable under finance leases are included within recevables and
represent the total amount outstanding under the lease agreements less
unearned income Finance lease income, having been allocated to accounting
perods to give a constant penodic rate of return on the netinvestment, s
included in revenue

Rentals recevable under operating leases are included in revenue on a

straight-ine basis.

Impairment of non-current assets

Imparment of non-current assets 1s considered in accordance with 1AS 36
Impairment of Assets Goodwill and intangible assets not yet avallable for use are
tested for imparrment annually Other intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment are assessed for any indications of impairment annually If any indication
of impairment 15 identified, an imparment test1s performed Impairment tests are
undertaken by estimating the value in use of the asset

Inventory

Inventory and work in progress are valued at the iower of costand net realisable
value on a first-in, first-out basis Cost comprises direct matenals and, where
applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been iIncurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling pnices less all estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distibution

Cash and cash equralents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits
with a matunty of three menths or less on inception The Group considers overdrafts
{repayable on dernand) e be an integral part of its cash management actraties and
these are included in cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash fiow
staternent
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Notes o the consokdated financal staternents contnued

Frovisions

Provisions are recogrised when the Group has a present cbligation as a result of a
past event, and it 1s probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation
Provistons are measured at the directors best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present vatue
where the effect 1s maternal

Post-retirernent benefits
Pensions and simifar benefits {pnnapally healthcare) are accounted for under 1AS 19
Employee Benefits For defined benefit plans obligations are measured at discounted
present value whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value The service and finarcing
costs of such plans are recognised separately in the income statement, current
service costs are spread systematically over the lives of employees and financaing
costs are recognised in the periods in which they arise Actuarial gans and losses are
recognised iImmediately In the statement of recogrised income and expense
Payments to defined contribunion schemes are charged as an expense as they
fall due

Share-based paymenits
The Group applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments from January 1,
2004 In accordance with the transition provisions, IFRS 2 has been applied to all
grants madle after November 7 2002 that were unvested as of January ! 2003

The Group provides share-based payment arrangements to certan emplayees
These are predominantly equity-settled arrangements and are measured at far value
{excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant
The fair value 1s expensed on a straight-hne basis over the vesting penod, based on
the Group's estimate of shares or options that will eventually vest

Fair value 1s measured using the binorial prioing model for the ShareSave plans
and the Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP) Fair values of awards made under the
Performance Share Plan (PSP} are measured using a pnong model adjusted to reflact
non-entitlement to dividends {or equivalent) and the Total Shareholder Return
market-based performance condition

See note 26 for a further description of the share-based payment plans

Contingent labihties
In connection with the sale of its products, the Group wall, on some occasions,
provide finanang support for 1ts customers These arrangements fall Into two
categores, credit-based guarantees and asset value guarantees 1n accordance with
the requirernents of IAS 39 and IFRS 4, credit-based guarantees are treated as
insurance contracts The Group considers asset value guarantees to be non-financial
hiabrities and accordingly these are also treated as insurance contracts Provision for
insurance habilines 15 made as described above

The Group’s contingent habilities relating ta financing arrangements are spread
over many years and relate to a number of customers and a broad product portfolio,
and are reported on a discounted basis

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the above accounting policies, management has made appropriate
estimates in many areas, and the actual cutcome may differ from those calkculated
The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant nsk of causing matenal adjustment to the carmyng amounts of assets and
liabiliges within the next financial year are

Forecasts and discount rates

The carrying values of a number of items on the balance sheet are dependent on the

estimates of future cash flows ansing from the Groups operations

- Thempairment tests for goodwall are dependent on forecasts of the cash fiows
of the cash generating units that give nse to the goodwill and the discount rate
applied No impairment resulted from the annual impairment tests in 2006
(carmying vatue at December 31 2006 £735m, December 31, 2005 £751m)

- Ifthe assessment of development, participation certfication and recoverable
engine costs recognised as intangible assets indicates the possibility of
imparment, a detaled impairment test1s undertaken No impairment resulted

from the assessment in 2006 {carrying value at December 31, 2006 £674m,
December 31, 2005 £530m)

The financ:al liabxlites ensing from financal nsk and revenue sharning
partnerships are valued at each reporting date using the amornsed cost
method (carrying value at December 31, 2006 £324m, December 31, 2005
£423m) This involves calculaung the present value of the forecast cash flows of
the arrangement using the internal rate of return at the inception of the
arrangement as the discount rate

The realisation of the deferred tax assets {carmying value at Decernber 31, 2006
£141m, December 31, 2005 £391m) recegnised 1s dependent on the generation
of sufficient future taxable profits The Group recognises deferred tax assets
where it is more likely than not that the benefit will be realised

t

Assessment of long-term contractual amangerments

The Group has long-term contracts that fall into different accounting perieds In
assessing the altocation of revenues and costs to indsvidual zccounting penods, and
the consequential assets and liabilines, the Group estimates the total revenues and
costs forecast to anse in respect of the contract and the stage of completion based
on an appropriate measure of performance as described under revenue recogniion
above

Post-retrement benefits

The Group's defined benefit pension schemes and similar arrangemienits are assessed
annually in accordance with 1AS 18 The accounting valuation, which was based on
assumptions determined with Independent actuanal adwice, resulted 1in a deficit of
£995m before deferred taxation being recognised on the balance sheet at
December 31 2006 {December 31, 2005 £1 659m) The size of the deficit 1s sensitve
to the market value of the assets held by the schemes and to actuanal assumptions,
which include price inflanon, pension and salary increases, the discount rate used in
assessing actuana! liabidines mortality and other demographic assumptions and the
levels of contributions Further details are included in note 22

Provisions

As described in the accounting policy above, the Group measures provisions
{carmying value at December 31, 2006 £335m, December 31 2005 £361m) at the
drrectors’ best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date These estmates are made taking account of information available
and different possible outcomes

Taxation

The tax payable on profits 15 determined based on tax laws and regulations that apply
in each of the nurmerous junsdictions in which the Group operates Where the precise
impact of these laws and regulations 1s unclear then reasonable estimates may be
used 10 determine the tax charge included in the financial statements. If the tax
eventually payable or reclamable differs from the amounts onginally esimated then
the difference wili be charged or credited in the financial staternents for the year in
which it 15 determuned

Contingent habilitves

As described In note 29 the Group has significant long-term contingent abligations
The directors consider that the possibility that there will be any sigrificant loss ansing
from these contingencies as remote In reaching this opinion, the direciors have
consicered the likelihood of the contingency crystallising and have taken account of
forecast arrcraft values that generally provide security against the contingent hability

Rewisions to [FRS not apphcable in 2006
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures and Amendment to 1AS 1 Capital Disclosures
are applicable from 2007 These amendments ta disclosure requirements waill have no
effect on the reported results.

The Group does not consider that any other standards or interpretations issued
by the IASB, but not yet 2pplicable, will have a significant impact on the financial
statements.
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2 Segmental analysis

The Group operates in four segments which reflect the internal organisation and management structure according to the nature of the products and services prowided

Ciwvil aerospace - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of commercial aero engines and aftermarket senaces

Defence acrospace - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of mifitary aero engines and aftermarket services.

Manne - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of manne propulsion systems and aftermarket senvices

Energy - development, manufacture marketing and sales of power systems for the offshore ol and gas industry, efectncal power generation and
aftermarket services.

Following an internal reorgarustion, financial serices s no longer reported as a separate segment Aircraft and engine leasing acimvties are incorporated in cvil aerospace
{the Group’s nvestment in Pernbroke Group its aucraft leasing joint venture, was sold in July 2006) Elecincal power development actmties are incorporated in energy

Details for these primary reporting segments are shown below

Chl Defence Central
Jerospace aerospace Marine Energy items Eimmations Group
fm £m £m £m £m £m £m

Analysis by business segments for the year ended December 31, 2006
Total revenue 3,775 1,569 1,300 512 — _— 7,156
Operating profit exciuding share of profit of joint ventures 446 183 103 (33) {47) — 652
Share of profit of joint ventures 36 5 1 5 — — 47
Profit on sale of businesses 1 — — — — — 7
Profit/{loss) before finanang income/(costs) 483 188 104 (28) (47) — 700
Finanaing income 1,335 1,335
Financing costs {498) {498)
Taxation (397) {397)
Profit for the year 1,140
Other information
Segment assets 5,267 919 1,253 645 —_ [264) 7.820
Investments in oint ventures 184 24 4 28 — — 240
Cash and short-term investments 2,218 2,218
fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 27 27
Income tax assets 146 146
Total assets 10,451
Segment hiabilines {3,553) {1,021) (710 (316) — 264 {5,336)
Borrowings {1,390) {1,390)
Far value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 130 (30)
Income tax hablites (443) (443)
Post-retirernent benefit obligations (995) (995)
Total liabihtes (8,194)
Expenditure on intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 437 52 24 15 528
Depreciation and amortisation 162 30 20 19 231
Impairments (10) — — — (10)
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Notes 1o the consohdated financial statements conprued

2 Segmental analysis continued

Restated ! Restated '
Civll Delence Centr!
aerospace aerospace Manne Energy items  Elminations Gioup
£m £m f£m im £m £m £m
Analysis by business segments for the year ended December 31, 2005
Total revenue 3561 1413 1067 532 - e 6,603
Operating profit excluding share of profit of jomnt ventures 612 165 84 (5) {45) — EI
Share of profit of joint ventures 34 7 1 4 — — 46
Loss on sale of businesses — — — {2) — — (2)
Profit/(loss) before finanang income/(costs) 646 i72 85 {3) {45} — 855
Financing income 475 475
Financing costs (867} {867)
Taxatron {126) {126}
Profit for the year 337
Other information
Segment assets 4,553 860 1,158 738 — (254) 7055
Investments In joint ventures 187 28 1 3 — — 247
Cash and short term investments 1,793 1793
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 74 74
Income tax assets 394 394
Total assets 9563
Segment lizlives (3423) (944) (564) {4i6) — 254 {5095}
Borrowings {1533 (1533}
Income tax habliues (349) (349
Post retrement benefit obligations 1,659 {1659
Total iabiliies (8.636}
Expenditure on intangble assets and property plant and equipment 270 48 25 17 364
Depreciation and amortisation 173 32 19 19 243
Impairments 11 — —_ —_ il
1 Seenote 5

2 The segmental analyss has been restated 10 putit on a comparable basis to the current year
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Geographical segments
The Group’s revenue by destination s shown below

2006 2005

fm im

United Kingdom 944 886
Rest of Eurgpe 1,159 1,059
USA 2,458 2408
Canada 207 191
Asia 1,902 1516
Alrica 78 152
Australasia 146 96
Other 262 295
7,156 6,503

The following analysis shaws the camying amounts of the Group's assets, and addiuons 1o intangible assets and property plant and equipment, by the geographical area n

which the assets are located

Additions to Intangible

assets and property,
Segment assets plant and equipment
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m fm £m fm
United Kingdom 7,636 6974 467 316
North Amernca 1,268 1265 22 24
Nordic countries 931 832 15 11
Germany 565 652 19 5
Other EEL 310 5 8
Ebminations {(280) (470) — —
10,451 9563 528 364
Undertying profit reconaliabion
2006 2005
Underlying  Underlyng Undertng  Undertang
adjustments Tesults adustments resuits
£m £fm £m im
Profit before net financing income/(costs)
Civil aerospace 483 40 523 646 (205) 441
Defence aerospace 188 7 195 172 3 175
Marine 104 (2) 102 8BS 2 87
Energy (28) 10 (18 (3 2 m
Cential tems 47 - {47) {45) — {45)
700 55 755 855 {198) 657
Net financing Income/(costs) 837 (880} (43) (392 314 {78)
Profit before tax 1,537 {825) 712 463 t& 579
Underlying adjustments
2006 2005
Profit before Profit before
financing  Profit before finanang  Profit before
income/{costs) tax incomeRcoss) Ve
£m £m £m £m
Release of transition hedge reserve (289) (289} (452) (452)
Realised gains on settled dernatve contracts. 343 370 328 39%
Realised gains carned forward in contract batances (27) {27) (32 (32)
Net unrealised fair vatue changes to denvative contracts — (730) — 345
Unreahsed gains recognised n contract balances 28 28 {42) (42)
Revaluation of rading assets and habihues — 4 — (78)
Financial RRSPs - foreign exchange differences and changes in forecast payments — {39) — (30)
Net post-retirement scheme financing {income)/costs — 3) — 9
Far value adjustments relating to parent compeny shares held under trust — (139) — —
55 (825) {198} 116
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Nates to the consolidated financal statements contnued

3 Rewenue

The Groug's revenue 15 analysed as follows

2006 2005
im fm
Revenue from sale of onginal equipment 3,354 3061
Revenue from aftermarket services 3,802 3,542
Total revenue 7,156 6603
4  Operating profit and profit before taxation
2006 2005
£m £m
After crediting
RRSP receipts — credited to other aperating income 57 60
Operating lease rentals recevable - credited within revenue from aftermarket services 30 39
After charging
Amortisanon of cerbfication costs 5 9
Amortisaton of development costs 16 13
Amortisaton of recoverable engine costs 30 32
Amortisation of other intangrble assets 9 ]
Degrecianon and imparrment of owned property plant and equipment! 153 187
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases? 8 8
Operating lease rentals payable - hire of plant and equipmenit 62 58
- hire of other assets 23 19
Research and development expenditure 370 282
RRSP payments - incluced in cost of sales 162 146
¥ Indudiing approprate amaunts charged to Inventores
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and iis associates were as follows
2006 2005
£m fm
Fees payable to the Company s auditors for the audit of the Company's annual financial staterments 16 15
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and s associates for other services
The audit of the Company s subsidianes pursiiant to legislation 18 18
Other services pursuant 1o legislaton 0.2 02
QOther services relating o taxation 04 05
All other services 03 09
4.3 49
Fees payable in respect of the Group’s pension schemes
Audit 01 Q1
Other services relating to taxation 01 —
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5  Netfinanang income/{costs)

2006 2005
o Resiared
firnarxing finanang
costs Costs
£m £m fm £m
Interest recervable 82 82 65 &5
Fair value gains on foreign currency contracts {note 19) 696 — — —
Financial RRSPs — foreign exchange differences and changes in forecast payments? 39 —_ 30 —
Fair value gains on commodity denvatives (note 19} 34 — ¥ —
Expected return on post-retirement scherme assets (note 22) 343 — 312 —
Net foreign exchange gains — — 1t !
Fair value adjustments relating to parent company shares held under trust 139 —_ -— _—
Other financing Income 2 2 3 3
Financing income 1,335 84 475 69
Interest payable (100} {100) {104} (104}
Fair value losses on foreign currency contracts (note 19) — — {399} —
Financial charge relatng to Anancial RRSPs (27} (27) 43) (43
Interest on post retirement scheme liabilities (note 22) (340} — {321} —
Net foreign exchange losses (31) — — —
Financing costs {498) {127} {867} (147}
Net finanang income/{costs) 837 (43} (392} (78
Analysed as,
Net interest payable {18) {18} {39} (39)
Net post-retirement scheme financing income/(costs} 3 — (9} —
Net other financing income/{costs) 852 {25) {344) (39
Net finanang income/{costs) 837 {43) {392} {78)

¥ In 2005 farr value adiustments relating to parent comparty shares held under trust were recogrised in the come statement, Following amendments (o LAS 39 effectve in 2006, changes in fair value of
financial assets classified as assets hel for sale are recognised in equity unul the shares are disposed of when amounts previously recorded in equity are recogrused in the income statement. Accardingly
£121m recognsed in net finanang costs In 2005 has been redassified to the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense. The related deferred tax balance of £36m has also been transferred to

the consohidated statement of recognised income and expense There 5 no net effect on the consolidated balance sheet

2 1n 2005 these arounts wese offset against financial charges relatng 1o financial RRSPs.
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Notes to the consoliidated financel statements contnued

6 Taxatton
UK Overseas Total
Resiated" Resiated
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m £m {m
Current tax
Current tax charge for the year 51 25 66 63 117 88
Less double tax relief 47) (25) — — 47 (25
4 — 66 63 70 63
Adjustments in respect of prior years (2) 3 (6 &) (8) %
2 3 60 59 62 56
Deferred tax
Delerred tax charge/{credit) for the year 296 57 33 2 329 55
Adpustments in respect of prior years 1 3 S 12 6 15
297 60 38 10 335 70
Recognised in the income statement 299 57 98 69 397 126
Other tax charges/(credits)
Recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense — current tax - -
- deferred tax 43 186
Recognised directly in equity - current tax (18) -
-~ deferred 1ax {58) (20)
Deferred taxauon balances are analysed in note 20
Tax reconciliation
Profit before taxation 1,537 463
Share of profits of jaint ventures {47) (6
Profit before taxation excluding joint ventures 1,490 417
Nominal tax charge at UK corporation tax rate 309 {2005 3086) 447 125
UK R&D credit - {19) ag
Other itemns {29) 11
Adjustrnents in respect of prior years 2) 8
397 126
Analysis of 1axation charge
Underlying items 190 166
Non underhwng items 207 {40
397 126

* See note 5
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7  Employee information

2006 2005
MNumber Number

Average weekly number of Group employees dunng the year
United Kingdorn 22,500 21300
Overseas 14,800 14,300
37,300 35,600
Crl aerospace ! 21,800 20450
Defence aerospace 5,400 5100
Manne 7400 7200
Energy ! 2,700 2850
37,300 35,600
fm tm

Group employment costs ?

Wages and salanes 1,456 1,320
Soaal secunty costs 158 138
Share-based payments {note 26} 36 26
Pensions and other post-retizement benehts {note 22) 145 132
1,795 1616

' Financial services are naw Incorporated in awil aerospace and energy - see note 2
? Rernuneraton of key management personnel 1 shown in note 30
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Notes i3 the consobdated financial statements cononued

8 Intangible assets

Certification
costs and
partapation Development Recoverabie
il fees expenditure engine costs Other Total

£m £m im im £m £m
Cost
At January 1, 2005 as previously reported 759 274 311 229 — 1,573
Redassification of software from property plant and equipment — — — — 28 28
Al January 1, 2005 (restated) 759 274 31 229 28 1,601
Exchange adjustments (8) — — — — {8
Additions — 10 70 36 16 132
At January 1 2006 {restated) 751 284 381 265 44 1,725
Exchange adjustments (23} — = - — (23}
Additions — N 41 64 29 225
Acquisition of business 7 — —_ — 3 10
Drsposals —_ (1) —_ — (6) 7
At Decernber 31 2006 735 374 422 329 70 1,930
Accumulated amorusaton and imparment
At Jaruary 1, 2005 as previously reported — 129 103 114 — 346
Reclassification of software from property, plant and equipment’ — — — — 5 5
At January 1 2005 {restated} — 129 103 114 5 351
Provided during the year (charged to cost of sales) — 9 13 32 5 59
At January 1 2006 (restated} — 138 116 146 10 410
Provided during the year {charged to cost of sales) — 5 16 30 9 60
At December 31, 2006 —_ 143 132 176 19 470
Net book value at December 31, 2006 735 231 290 153 51 1,460
Net book value at December 31, 2005 (restated) 751 146 265 119 34 1315
Net book value at January |, 2005 (restated) 759 145 208 115 23 1,250
Net book value at January 1, 2005 as previously reported 759 145 208 115 — 1227

¥ External software purchases were previousty induded within property, plant and equipment. Following a rewew in 2006 1t was concluded that cenain of these iterns should more property in accordance wath
145 38 intangible Assets, be classified as in@ngible assets. Accordingly, software with a net book value at December 31 2005 of £34 mullon (January 1 2005 £23 milhon) has been reclassified from property

plant and equpment to intangible assets. There s no change 1o the 2martisation pobcy ¥ respect of these assets, beng on a straght-ine basis over 3 manmum of fve years

Goodwll

In accordance with the requirements of I1AS 36 Impairment of Assets goodwill s allocated to the Group's cash-generating units, of groups of cash-generating urits, that are

expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination that gave nse to the goodwill as follows

Cash-generaung urwt (CGU) or group of CGUs

2006 2005

Primary reporting segment £m £m

Rolls-Royce Deutschland Lid & Co KG Crvil aerospace 186 190
Commercial manne - ansing from the acquisition of Vickers plc Marine 470 482
Energy — ansing from the acquisivon of Cooper Energy Systems Energy 55 61
Other Vanous 24 18

Goodwill has been tested for impairment during 2006 on the following basis

- The carmyng value of goodwill has been assessed by reference to value In use Values in use have been estimated using cash flows from the most recent forecasts
prepared by management Given the long-term nature of the business i which the Group cperates, these typically forecast the next ten years. Growth rates for the
penod not covered by the forecasts are based on a range of growth rates that reflect the products, industnes and countries in which the relevant CGU or group of

CGUs operate

- The key assumpuons on which the cash flow projections for the most recent forecast are based are discount rates, growth rates and the impact of foreign exchange

rates on the relauonship between selling pnces and costs.
- The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at 1275 per cent, based on the Group’s werghted aveyage cost of capital
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9  Property, plant and equipment

Land and Plantand Asrcraft and

In course of

buildings  equipment engines construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At January 1, 2005 as previously reported 535 1968 225 175 2903
Redassification of software to Intangible assets ' — {26) — {2 (28}
At January 1, 2005 {restated) 535 1,942 225 173 2875
Exchange adjustments 9 36 0 3 68
Additions 20 70 El 133 232
Cn disposals of businesses — (5} — — (5
Reclassifications 23 76 — (99) —
Disposalsfwnte-offs - (166 {42) — (208)
At January 1, 2006 {restated) 587 1,953 212 210 2,962
Exchange adjustments (16) (51) {17) 4 £8)
Addinons 4 78 44 177 303
On acquisitions of businesses — 2 — — 2
Reclassifications 28 97 —_ {125) —
Disposalsfwnte-offs {ié) (83) (84) () (184)
At December 31, 2006 587 1,996 155 257 2,995
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At January 1 2005 as previously reported 115 i 024 G2 — 1231
Reclassification of software to intangble assets ! — (5) — — (5)
At January 1 2005 (restated} 115 19 92 — 1,226
Exchange adustments 4 24 9 — 37
Prowded dunng the year 2 2 149 2 00— 15
On disposals of businesses — (4} — — [C)]
Disposals/write-offs — {122} {19) — (141)
At January 1, 2006 {restated) 141 1,066 106 — 1,313
Exchange adjustrnents (5) (33) {9} — 47)
Impairment adjustrment * — - {10} - (10)
Prowded dunng the year 22 139 10 — 171
Disposalsfwrite-offs (8) (76) (54} — {13B)
At Decemnber 31, 2006 150 1,096 43 — 1,289
Net book value at December 31, 2006 437 900 112 257 1,706
Net book value at Decermber 31, 2005 {restated) 446 887 106 210 1,649
Net book value at January i, 2005 (restated} 420 923 133 173 1,649
Net book value at January 1, 2005 as previously reported 420 944 133 175 1672

1 See nate 8

1 Includes mpasment charge of £t (2005 £ 1m) relating 1o the write-down of airaaft to values provded by ndependent awcraft apprarsers.
¥ Impanment charge reversal of £10m (2005 el refating 10 aucralt eferred 1o in footnote 2 & a result of improved lease terms and values provaded by independent arcraft aporarsers.
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Notes 1o the consolidated financial staternents contnued

9  Property, plant and equipment continued

Property plant and equipment includes.

£m fm

Net book value of finance leased assets
Land and buildings 9 10
Plant and equipment 4 28
Aurcraft and engines —_ 3
Assets held for use in operating leases
Cost 148 186
Depreciation (a2} 93)
Net book value 106 103
Non-depreciable land 92 96
tand and buildings at net book value comprise
fFreehold 406 416
tong leasehcld 15 14
Short leasehold 16 16

437 446
Capita! expenditure commitrnents — contracted but not provided for 91 147
Net book value of assets held as securnty for habilities A8 4G
Cost of fully depreciated assets 420 399
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10 Investments — joint ventures

Share of post
Shares  acquisition
at cost reserves Loans Total
£m £m £m fm
At January 1, 2005 125 79 7 211
Exchange adjustrents 4 5 — 9
Additions 2 — 1 13
Taxation pard by the Group — 3 — 3
Share of retained profit — 11 — 11
At January 1, 2006 131 98 18 247
Exchange adjustrnents [C)] a3 — (17
Addinons 8 — 3 1
Taxation pad by the Group — 2 — 2
Imparment 21) 17 (6) {10y
Share of retained profit — 13 — 13
Disposals [£)] () 0] 6)?
Al Decemnber 31, 2006 10 116 14 240

1 Impairment charge of £10m recogrused 1o reflect the write down of the Groupss nvestment 13 Pembroke Group 1o 11 recoverable amount of £1m. In addibon, previous impasment charges i respect of
Pemnbioke Group, which were all charged against share of post acguisition reserves, have been reaflocated

% Includes £5m for Data Systemns & Solutions. The remaining 50 per cent of this int venture was acquired dunng the year and as such it has been inciuded 1n the consolidated results of the Group from the date
of the transacton.

Investrments i ot ventures are represented by

2006 2005
im im
Share of aggregate assets
Non-current assets 578 671
Cusrent assets 645 559
Share of aggregate babilities 2
Non-current habilives (551) (522)
Cusrent habilities {439) (465)
Goodwill 7 4
240 247
? Liabilies include borrowings of (358) (480)
2006 2005
£m im
Share of Income 82 80
Share of interest {23) (24)
Share of taxation {12) (10
47 46
Dividend receved (44) (35)
Share of retained profit 3 11

The tax charge on jont venture profits represents an effective tax rate of 20 per cent (2005 18 per cent), an increase of two per cent. This results from a change in profit mix
between joint ventures taxed at different effective rates

The panapal jont ventures are hsted on pages 89 and 90
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Notes to the consohdated financial staternents continued

11  Investments - other

Unlsted cot:apffn‘;
mvestments  shares held
atcost  under trust Total
£m £m £m
At January 1, 2005 57 184 PLY
Additrons 1 — i
Fair valug adjustmenis — 121 121
Amortisaton/disposals &) (12) (18)
At January 1 2006 52 293 345
Additions 1 47 48
Fair value adjusiments —_ 2 2
Amorusation/disposals 2) (268) (270)
At December 31, 2006 51° 742 125
¥ The fair values of these avatlable for sale assets are not significantly different to cost.
7 Held &t far value
12 Inventory
2006 2005
£m fm
Raw matenals 156 151
Work In progress 766 487
Long-term contracts work In progress 139 137
Finished goods N 808
Payments on account Ell 47
1,863 1630
Progress payments receved against.!
Long-term contracts {18) (13
Other inventory {398) {308)
1,447 1309
Inventanes stated at net realisable value 116 12
Amount of inventory wrte-down 46 30
Reversal of nventory wnte-down 7 3
' Indudes payments recerved from joint ventures 16 14
13 Trade and other receivables
2006 2005
£m m
Trade receivables 864 738
Amounts recoverable on contracts 820 698
Amounts owed by joint ventures 241 215
Qther recervables 308 226
Prepayments and accrued income 232 170
2,465° 2047
! Trade and other recevables expected to be recovered in more than one year
Trade recervables 12 5
Amounts recoverable on contracts 624 526
Amounts owed by joint ventures 26 27
Other recevables 65 58
Prepayrnents and accrued income 99 30
826 646
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14 Cash and cash equivalents

2006 205

£m fm

Cash at bank and in hand 756 337

Short-term deposits 1,428 1419

2,184 1756

Qverdrafts (note 15) (14} (12)

Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement (page 22) 2,170 1,744

Cash held as collaterat against third party obligations 58 63
15 Borrowings — amounts falling due within one year

2006 2005

im fm

Qverdrafts 14 12

Bank loars 42 55

Obligations under finance leases (note 28) 7 8

6 Y9 Notes 2007 €500m? 337 e

400 75

¥ These notes are the subject of a currency swap agreement urder which counterparties have undertaken to pay amounts at a fixed rate of nterest and exchange i consideration for amounts payable by the

Group at a vanable rate of interest and at a fixed exchange rate

16 Trade and other payables - current

2006 2005

£m im

Payments recerved on account ! 657 362
Trade payables — current 654 537
Amounts owed to Joint veniures 167 162
Amounts owed to parent undertaking 554 829
Other taxation and sogal securnity 50 62
Other payables 731 630
Accruals and deferred income 1,031 886
3,844 3,518

! Includes payments recenved from joint ventures 128 115
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Notes io the consolidated financul staternents conanued

17 Borrowings - amounts falling due after one year

2006 205
fm im
Unsecured
Bank loans 3 4
6 %9 Notes 2007 €500m — 354
7 ¥ Notes 2016 £200m 200 200
5.84% Notes 2010 US5187m* 102 107
6 38% Notes 2013 US5230m’! [F1 134
655% Notes 2015 US583m ! 38 49
4 /% Notes 2011 €750m? 494 524
Qther Ioan 2008 (interest rate nil) 1 1
Secured
Bank lpans? 24 71
Obligations under finance leases payable * {note 28}
Between one and two years 4 5
Between two and five years 2 8
After five years 1 1
990 1,458
Repayable
Between one and two years - by instalmenits 6 49
- otherwise - 354
Between two and five years — by instalments 4 11
- otherwise 620 —
After five years — by instalments 1 29
- otherwise 359 1015
990 1,458

¥ These notes are the subject of interest rate swap agreements under which the Group has undertaken to pay floating rates of Interest, and Currency swaps which form a far value hedge Untl October 5 2005
the bormowsng was induded in a net mvestment hedging retsuonship. From October 6, 2005 the borrowang has been included in a farr value hedging relationship n respec of the foreign exchange nsk.
2 These notes are the subject of swap agreements under which counterpanies have undenaken 1o pay amounts at foed rates of interest and exchange in consideration for amounts payable at vanable rates of

interest and at fixed exchange rates
3 Secured on avcraft

* Obligauons undes finance leases are secured by refated leased assets.

18 Trade and other payables - non-current

2006 2005

£m fm

Payments recerved on account’ 171 214
Amounts owed to Joint ventures EL) 30
Other pavables 200 104
Accruals and deferred income 425 302
827 650

'Includes payments received from joint ventures 62 13
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19 Other finanaal assets and habiities
Details of the Groups policies on the use of financial Instruments are given i note 27 and i the accounting policies on pages 25 to 28

The carryng values of other finanoial assets and lrabilities held by the Group are as follows

2006
Foresgn
exchange Commodity  Interest rate Finandial
centracts contracts contracts RRSPs Total
£m £m £m fm £m
Assets 578 39 27 — 644
Liabilitzes (24) - (12) {324) (360)
554 39 15 {324) 284
205
Foragn
exchange  Commodity  Interest rate Finangal
contacts contracis contracts RRSPs Total
fm im fm fm im
Assets 364 Ell 69 — 464
Liabilties (136) — 6] {423) (566)
228 31 62 423) (102
Other financial habilines are analysed as follows.
2006 2005
fm fm
Current labilines {24) (227)
Non-current liabilities {336) (339)
(360) (566)

The Group uses various finanaal Instruments to manage 1ts exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates The Group uses commodity swaps to manage its exposure to
movements in the price of commaodities {jet fuel and base metals) From January 1, 2005 the Groug has not iIncluded foreign exchange or commodity financial instruments
in any cash flow hedging relatonships for accounting purposes To hedge the currency nsk associated with a borrowing denominated in USS, the Group has currency
dervatives designated as part of a fair value hedge

Maoverments In the fair values of foreign exchange and commodity financial instruments were as follows

Foreign exchange financial instruments

2006 2005
Included in Included 0
transition  Included m tengton  Included in
hedging Income hevigng ncome
Total reserve staternent Total reserve satement
£m £m Em £m fm £mn
At January 1 228 538 986 986"
Far value changes to dervative contracts not In accounting hedging relationships * 696 — 696 (399 - {399)
Fair value changes to fair value hedges? {26) — {26) 5 — 5
Farr value of contracts settled (344) — — {364) —_ —
Transferred to revenue — {284) 284 — {448)' 448
At December 31 554 254 228 538

T additionally £10m relating to dervatives setthed paor to transiton 1o IFRS was inchuded in the transition hedging reserve and trangferred to the ncome statement,
? Included in financing income/{costs}
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Notes to the consoldated financial staternents continued

19 Other financial assets and habihitles continued

Commodity finanaal instruments

2006 2005
Induded in Included In
transition  Indudedin transen  Included
hedging income ncome
Total reserve statement Tota reserve statement
£m £m £m fm fm im
At January 1 31 5 9 9
Fair value changes 1o denvative contracts not in accounting hedging relatonships 4 — 34 54 — 54
Fair value of contracts settled — — 32 — —
Transferred to cost of sales {5) 5 — @ 4
At December 31 — 31 5

! Induded » finanaing iIncome/{costs)

Where applicable market values have been used to determine fair valugs. Where market values are not avallable, far values have been calculated by discounting expected

future cash flows at prevailing interest rates and translating at prevailing exchange rates

The Group uses Interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and interest rate caps to manage its exposure to movemnents in interest rates Where the effectiveness of the
hedge relationship in a cash flow hedge 15 demonstrated, changes in the farr value that are deemed effactive are iIncluded inthe hedging reserve and released to match

actual payments on the hedged item

Movements in the fair values of interest rate financial Instrurments were as follows

Interest rate finandal instruments

2006
Induded n Other  Induded in
fair value interestrate cashflow Indudedin
hedging financial hedging income
Total refatlonships  Instruments reserve statement
£fm £m fm £m £m
At January | 62 69 {7 —
Changes deemed effective for cash flow hedge accounting purposes - — — — =
Changes deemed ineffective for cash flow hedge accounting purposes’ 4 — 4 —
Qther changes ! {51} {51) — — (51)
Transferred tointerest payable — = o — —
At December 31 15 18 {3) —
2005
Inchuded in Other  Includedin
far value  wnterest rate cashflow  Induded in
hedging financial hedging ncome
Total  relat ps  instruments 1eserve statement
im im fm fm £fm
At January 1 110 121 {11) (3)
Changes deemed effective for cash flow hedge accounung purposes - — — — —
Changes deemed wneffective for cash flow hedge accounting purposes’ 4 — 4 — 4
Ciher changes* (52 (52} — — (52
Transferred to interest payable — — — 3 3
At December 31 62 69 7} —

¥ Induded m finanang ncomef(costs)
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19 Other finanaal assets and habilities continued

Financial nsk and revenue shanng partnerships (RRSPs)

The Group has finanaal liabihties ansing from financial RRSPs. These financral habiliues are vatued at each reporung date using the amorused cost method This invohves
caleulatng the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangements using the internal rate of return 2t the inception of the arrangerents as the discount rate

Maovements in the amortised cost values of financial RRSPs were as folfows

2006 2005

im fm

AtJanuary 1 423 468

Cash paid to partners (87) {58)

Financing charge! 27 43
Excluded from underhying profit

Exchange adjustments! (42) 56

Restructuning of financial RRSP agreements and changes in forecast payments? 3 (86)

At Decemnber 31 324 423

! Included in financing Income/fcosts)

Total return swaps

The Group entered into forward contracts to purchase tts own shares for the purposes of meeting obligations 1o issue shares under employee share schemes. Under IAS 32,

these contracts were categonsed as financal habilives and accounted for on the amorused cost basis. These contracts were settled dunng 2005

X005

im

At January 1 142
On collapse of forward purchase contracts (141)

Transferred to other financing charges

1}

At December 31
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Notes 10 the consolidated finanaal statements conbinued

20 Deferred taxation

£m
At January 1, 2005 72
Amount charged to income statement {as restated, see note 5) (700
Arnount cregiited to statement of recogrised income and expense (as restated, see note §) 186
Amount cregdited through equity 20
Exchange movements 5
At January 1, 2006 213
Amount charged to income statement (335)
Arnount charged to statement of recognised income and expense (43)
Amount credited to equity 58
On acquisition of business o L A
Exchange movements (5)
At December 31 2006 {111)
The analysis of the deferred tax position 1s as follows
2006 2005
£m im
Property plant and equipment o __fas 03y
Other temporary differences (278) {267
Pensions and other post-retirernent benefits 314 505
Foreign exchange and commodity financial assets and habilites (183} 7
Losses 117 126
Advance corporation tax 64 64
(111} 213
Analysed as
Deferred rax assets 141 351
Deferred tax labiliues (252) (078
{111) 213
Deferred tax not recogrused on unused tax losses and other tems! 154 146

¥ Deferred tax not recognisad on the basis that the future economic benefit s uncenan.

In addition there are temporary differences of £593m {2005 £467m) relaung to investments I subsidianes and jaint ventures No deferred tax has been provided inrespect
of these differences, since the timing of the reversals can be controlted and 1t s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the future

Rolis Royce pic 2006

46



21 Provisions

At Acquisition/ Unused  Charged to At
Decernber 31 Exchange  disposal of amounts mome December 31,
2005 adjustments  businesses reversed  statement Utilised 2006
im £m £m £m £m £Em £m
Warranties and quarantees 162 (6) — {15) 36 {38) 139
Contract loss 43 (1) — — 13 {11) 44
Customner financng 90 1 — — 14 7 98
Insurance 38 — — (1) 1 {11) 37
Restructunng 9 — — (3) 2 (5} 3
Other 19 (1} 3 (6) 3 8) 14
361 (7} 3 (25) 79! {16) 335
T Inclugies £1mfor amounts discounted
Analysed as
2006 2005
im im
Current liabilities 146 138
Non-current habiliies 189 223
335 361

Prowisionss for warranties and guarantees primartly relate to products sold and generally cover a period of up to three years

Prowisions for contract loss and restructuring are generally expected to be utilised wathin two years

The Group's captive Insurance company retains a portion of the exposures it nsures on behalf of the remainder of the Group Significant delays occur in the notification and
settlernent of clairns and jJudgerment is Involved In assessing outstanding habilies, the ultimate cost and tming of which cannot be known with certainty at the balance
shest date The insurance provisions are based on information currently available, however it 1s Inherent in the nature of the business that ulimate labrities may vary
Prawisions for outstanding claims are established 10 cover the cutstanding expected hability as well as daims incurred but not yet reported

Other provisions compnse a number of habilities with varying expected utilisation rates

Custormer finanang provisions cover guarantees prowded for asset value and/or financing These guarantees are considered to be insurance contracts in nature and
provision (s made i accardance with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilives and Contingent Assets These guarantees, the nsks ansing and
the process used to assess the extent of the nsk are descnibed under the heading ‘Sales finanang'in the Finance Director’s review on page 15 The related contingent
liabilites arsing fromn these guarantees and the sensitvty to moverments in the value of the underlying secunity are discussed in note 29 Based on the assumpuions used to
estmate the customer finance provision, 1t 15 estimated that the provision will De utilised as follows

2006 2005
£m £m
Potential claims with specific claim dates
In one year or less — —
In more than one year but less than five years 19 17
In more than five years 14 2
Potental clarns that may anse at any time by date of expiry of the guarantee
Up tc one year 35 15
Up to five years M 23
Thereafter 19 33
98 90
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Notes to the consclidated financal statements conunued

22 Post-retirernent benefits

Defined benefit schemes
The Group operaies a nurmber of defined benefit schernes For the UK defined benefit schemes, the assets are held in separate trustee adminustered funds and employees
are entitfed to retirement benefits based on thewr final safaries and length of servce

Overseas defined benefit schemes are a mixture of funded and unfunded plans Additionally in the US and to a lesser extent in some other countries, the Group's
employment practices include the provision of healthcare and life Insurance benefits for retired employees These schemes are unfunded

The valuations of the schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, updated by the scheme actuaries to December 31, 2006 The most recent funding
valuanons of the main UK schemes were

Rolls-Rayce Perssion Fund - March 31, 2003

Rotls Royce Group Pension Scheme — Aprl 5, 2004

Vickers Group Pension Scheme — March 31, 2004

The pnncipal actuanal assumptions used at the balance sheet date were as follows

2006 2005

Overseas Overseas

UK schemes schemes UK schemes schemes

% % % %

Rate of increase in salares 44 36 44 34
Rate of increase of pensions In payment 29! 0.2 26 02
Discount rate 51 56 47 53
Expected rate of refurn on scheme assets 66 70 62 70
Inflation assurmption 29 24 29 26

' Benefits accrinng after Apnl 5 2005 are assumed 10 INCrease I payment at a rate of 23 per cent.

The mortality assumptions adopted for the UK pension schemes are denved from the PAS2 actuanal tables published by the Insatute of Actuanes, projected forward and
where appropnate, adjusted to take account of the relevant scherne’s actual expenience The resulting range of Iife expectancies in the prinaipal UK schemes are as follows

Life expectancy from age 65
Current pensioner 175 years to 220 years
Future pensioner 195 years to 23 9 years

Other demographic assurmptions have been set on adwice friom the relevant actuary havwng regard to the latest trends in scherne expenence and cther relevant data
The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the penodic actuanal valuation of the schemes

Assumptions In respect of overseas schemes are also set in accordance with advice from local actuanes

The future costs of healthcare benefits are based on an assumed healthcare costs trend iate of nine per cent grading down to five per cent over seven years,
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22 Postretirement benefits continued

Amounts recogmised in the income statement

2006 2005
Overseas Owverseas
UK schemes. schemes Total  UKschemes schermes Toxel
£m £m £m £m fm £m
Operating cost
Current service cost 102 28 130 79 22 101
Past senice Cost — 2 2 — 8 8
102 30 132 79 30 108
Financing {income)/costs
Expected return on assets (328) (15} (343) (298) {14} (312
Interest on labilines 310 30 340 295 26 321
{18) 15 (3) (3) 12 g
Total ncome staternent charge 84 45 129 76 42 118
The operating cost Is charged as follows
2006 2005
£fm fm
Cost of sales 93 77
Commeraal and administrative costs 30 25
Research and development 9 7

Actuanal gains of £602m (2005 £282m |osses} have been reported in the staternent of recogrised income and expense Cumulative actuanal gains from January 1, 2004
reported in the statement of recogrised Incorne and expense are £313m (2005 £285m losses)

Amounis recogrised in the balance sheet

2006 2005
Overseas Overseas

UK schemes. schemes Total  UKschermes schemes Towl

£m im £m £m fm fm

Present value of funded obligations (6,338) (271) {6,609) {6,661) (296) (6,957)

Farr value of scheme assets 5673 233 5.906 5343 220 5563

{665) (38} {703) (1,318) (76 (1,394)

Present value of unfunded obligations — {290} {290} — {263) (263)

Irrecoverable surplus — (2} (2) — @ 2)

Net hability recognised in the balance sheet {665) (330} {995) {1,318) (341) (1659)
Changes in present walue of defined benefit obligations

2006 2005

Overseas Quverseas

UK schemes schemnes Total  UKschemes schetes Total

£m £m fm £m fm m

At January 1 (6,661) {559} (7,220) (5,688) {419} 6,107}

Exchange adjustments — 65 65 — (49} (49)

Current service cost {102} {28) [130) (79} (22} (101)

Past service cost — (2) (2) — 8 (8

finance cost (310) {30) (340) (295) (26} (321}

Contnbutions by employees (39) (2) (41) (35) (1} (36}

Net benefits paid out 279 18 297 253 13 266

Actuanal gains/(losses) 495 {25) 470 (817) (33) (870}

Settlernents/curtadment — 2 2 — 5 6

At December 31 {6,.338) (561) 16,899) {6661) (559} (7,220}

The defined benefit obligation refating to post retirement medical benefits would increase by £35m if the healthcare trend rate increases by one per cent, and reduce by
£28m if it decreases by one per cent. The pension expense refating to post-retirement medical benefits, compnsing service cost and interest cost, would increase by £4m if
the healthcare trend increases by one per cent, and reduce by £3m, if it decreases by one per cent
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Notes to the consolidated financia! statements continued

22 Postretirerment benefits continued

Changes i fair value of schere assels

2006 2005
Oversaas Overseas

UK schames schemes Total  UKschemes schermes Total

£m Em £fm fm fm £m

At January 1 5343 218 5,561 4527 171 4698
Exchange adjustments — {27) (27) — 22 2
Expected return on assets 328 15 343 298 14 312
Contnbutions by employer 122 n 153 146 3 177
Contribugicns by employees 39 2 a1 35 1 36
Benefits paid out (279) (18} (297} (253} (13) (266}
Actuarial gains/{losses) 120 12 132 590 (2) 588
Settlements/curtaiiment - (2} {2) — ) (6}
At December 31 5673 231 5,904 5343 218 5561
Actual return on scheme assets 475 900

The farr value of the schemne assets In the principal schermes and the expected rates of return at December 31 were as follows

2006 2005

Expected Market Expected Market

rate of returmn vatue rate of rerurn value

UK schemes % Em % £m
Equities 7.5 3,876 71 3654
Sovereign debt 4.5 629 41 565
Coporatebonds . __ o L A9 1es 45 0 978
Other 50 4 43 146
56 5673 = 5343

2006 2005

ected Market Expected Market

rate of retum value rate of retum value

Qverseas schemes % £m % frn
Equities 83 146 86 131
Corporate bonds 49 71 45 72
Other 51 16 46 17
70 233 70 220

The scherne assets do not include any of the Group’s awn financial Instrurnents, nor any property occupled Dy, or other assets used by, the Group

The expected rate of return on indmdual categonies of scheme assets are determined by reference to gilt yields The expectation (s that the return from equities and
corporate bonds will exceed the return from gilts by three per cent per annum and 045 per cent per annum respectively The overall expected rate of return is calcufated by
weighting the iIndidual returns expected from each asset class in accordance with the actual asset balance in the schemes'investment portfolios
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22 Postretirement benefits continued

History of plans
The tustory of the plans for the current and prior years s as follows
Balance sheet
2006 2005 2004
fm £m im
Present value of defined benefit obligations (6,899) {7,220) 6,107}
Far value of scheme assets 5,904 5561 4,698
Defot {995) {1,659} (1,409)
Expenence gains/iosses
2006 005 2004
£m fm tm
Actuanal gain on scheme assets 132 588 126
Experience gains/{losses) on scheme liabilities 470 (870} (133)
Total amount recognised In the statement of recogrised Income and expense 602 (282) (7)

In accordance with the transitional provision amendments to 1AS +9 Employee Benefits iIn December 2004, the disclosures above are determined prospectively from 2004

The Group expects 1o contnbute approximately £185m to its defined benefit schemes 1n 2007, excluding any additional amounts contnbuted to address the deficit as
discussed 1n the Chief Executive’s revew on page 4

Defined contribution schemes
The Group operates a number of defined contnibution schemes.

The total expense recogrused in the income statement was £16m (2005 £14m)

23 Share capstal

Equity Nomunal
ordinary shares value

of 20p each £m
Authorised
At January 1, 2005 and December 31, 2006 2,000,000,000 400
Issued and fully paid
At Janwary 1 2005 at Decemnber 31, 2006 1,630,996,508 326

On June 23, 2003 Rolls-Royce pic had 1,630996 508 shares in 1ssue with an aggregate nominal value of £326m On this date, under a scheme of arrangement between
Rolls-Royce ple and its sharehotders under Section 425 of the Companies Act 1985, and as sanctioned by the High Court, all the issued shares in the Company were
cancelled and the same number of new shares were issued to Rolls-Royce Group plc the new holding company of the Rolls-Royce Group in consideration for the allotment
to shareholders of one ordinary share n Rolls-Royce Group plc for each ordinary share in Rolls-Royce pic held on the record date {June 20, 2003)

As a resut of the scheme of arrangement, holders of options aver ordinary shares in Rolls-Royce plc under the ShareSave plans and the executive opuion schemes were
permitted to exchange their options for options over an equivalent number of ordinary shares in Rolls-Royce Group plc.
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Netes to the ronsohdated financial statements continued

24 Reserves
2006
Transition Cash flow
Share hedgtng hedgmg  Translaton Retamed
premum reserve reserve reserve eamings
£m £m £m £m £m
At January 1, 2006 631 379 — 17 {432)
Exchange adjustments — — —_ {75) —
Hedge reserve transfer 1o ncome staternent — {289) — - —
Profit for the year — = — - 1,144
Actuanal gains — —_ — — 602
Movement i fair value of available for sale assets — — — — {126)
Share-based payments adjustment — — - - 40
Related tax movements — 87 — — (54)
At Decernber 31 2006 631 177 — {58) 1,174
2005
Transion Cash flow Restated*
Share hedging hedging  Transtanon Retained
premiur reserve reserve resefve eamings
fm £m £m im £m
At January 1, 2005 631 703 (3) (32) {705)
Exchange adjustments — — — 49 —
Hedge reserve transfer to income statemert o 0— W2 3 = -
Profit for the year — — — = 340
Actuarial losses — — — — (282)
Movermnent in farr value of available for sale assets — — — — 121
Share-based payments adjustment — — — — 26
Related tax movements — 138 — — 68
At December 31, 2005 631 379 — 17 (432}
*See note 5
25 Minonty interests
£m
At January 1, 2005 4
Total recognised incorne and expense for the year (3)
Sale of shares in subsidiary company to a rminanty interest 5
At January 1 2006 6
Total recogrused income and expense for the year {4)
Sale of shares 1n subsidiary company 1o a mincnty Interest 5
At Decemnber 31 2006 7

\
|
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26 Share-based payments

Share-based payment plans in operation during the year
The Group share-based payment plans selate to shares in the parent Companty and the followsng plans were in operation dunng the year

Performance Shore Plan (PSP)
Thus plan involves the award of shares to particpants subject to performance conditons Vesting of the performance shares 15 based on the achievernent of both
non-market based conditions (EPS and cash flow per share — CPS) and a market based performance condition (Total Shareholder Return - TSR}

ShareSave share option plan

Based on a three or five year monthly savings contract, elgible employees are granted share options with an exerase price of up to 20 per cent below the share price when
the contract is entered Into Vesting of the options 1s not subject to the achievement of a performance target In the UK, the plan s HM Revenue & Customs approved
Overseas, employees In 28 countries partiopate in ShareSave plans through arrangements broadly comparable to the UK plan A small preportion of the ShareSave opbons
are sefttled in cash

Executive Share Option Plon (ESOP)

This plan involves the grant of market value share options to participants The options are subject to a nor-market based performance condition {growth in EPS) The cptions
have a maximum contractual life of ten years There was no grant of executive share options in either 2005 or 2006 Foliowsng the introduction of the PSR it1s not intended to
grant any further executive share options.

Annual Performance Related Award (APRA) plan deferred shares

Deferred shares are awarded as part of the APRA plan One third of the value of any annual benus is delivered in the form of a deferred share award The release of deferred
share awards 1s not dependent on the achievement of any further performance condinens other than that participants rermain an employee of the Group for two years from
the date of the award in order to retain the full number of shares Durning the two year deferral penod, parncipants are entitled to receive dvidends on the deferred shares

Share Incentive Plan (5IP)
There 1s a Free Share element of the UK Share Incentive Plan Eligible employees may receive shares with a value of up to one week’s salary as part of any borus paid There
are no conditions attached to the shares.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 2 Share-based payments, the Group has recognised an expense in respect of all grants under these plans made after
Navernber 7, 2002 and unwvested at January 1, 2005
The Group recogrised a total expense of £36m (2005 £26m)
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Notes to the consplidated financial staternents contnued

26 Share-based payments continued

The moverments in awards under the Groups vanous share pians are shown in the tables below

Number of shares awarded

2006 2005

PSP Millions Milbons
Qutstanding at January 1 11 6
Awarded dunng the year 5 5
Forfeited dunng the year {1) —
Vested during the year —_ —
Ouistanding at December 31 15 il
2006 2005

Number  Weighted Number  Wexghted

of share average of share average

options exercise price oplons  exercise pree

SharaSave Millions Pence Milhons Pence
Qutstanding at January 1 65 157p 74 130p
Granted dunng the year — — 12 268p
Forferted during the year {1} 168p {1) i39p
Exeraised dunng the year {9} 140p 20} 140p
Quistanding at Decernber 31 55 160p 65 157p
Exercisable at December 31 1 141p — —
2006 2005

Number  Weighted Number  Wesghted

of share average of share average

options exerase price options  exerase prce

ESOP Millions Pence Milons Pence
Quistanding at January 1 77 148p 80 149p
Granted during the year — _ — -
Forfested dunng the year (1) 216p (3) 169p
Exercised dunng the year {57) 134p — —
Qutstanding at December 31 19 188p 77 148p
Exeraisable at Decernber 31 6 124p — —
Number of shares awarded

2006 2005

Deferred shares under APRA Millions Milicns
Cutstanding at January 1 8 i2
Awarded dunng the year 2 3
Forfeited during the year —_ —
Vested during the year (5 ]
Cutstanding at December 31 5 8
Number of shares awarded

2006 2005

Free Shares under SIP Mitlions Mihons

Awarded dunng the year

1

i

Opuions were exercised on a regular basis during the year The average share price dunng the year was 439p (2005 310p)
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26 Share-based payments continued

Fair values
The weighted average fair values for PSP awards, ShareSave granits, APRA deferred share awards, and SIP Free Share awards made dunng the year are as follows

2006 2005

Pence Perce

PSP 494p 282p
ShareSave - 3 year — 131p
ShareSave — 5 year . 154p
APRA deferred share awards 448p 260p
SIP Free Share awards 462p 57p

Detalls of the assumptions used in the calculation of these fair values are set out below Expected volatlity was based on the histonical volatilty of the Company’s share price
over the seven years prior to the grant or award date Expected dividends were based on the Company’s payments to shareholders over the five years prior 1o the grant or
award date

PSP awards
The fair value of shares awarded under the PSP are calculated using the market value of shares at the tme of the award adjusted to take inte account non-enttlement o
dwidends duning the vesting period and the TSR performance condition The PSP fair values were caleufated using the following assumptions

2006 2005
Weghted average share prce 444p 262p
Expected dmdends 792p 78ip
Volatiity 329% 34%
Correlation 19% 15%
Expected Wfe e —— — . 3years  3years
Risk free interest rate 4.3% 45%

The PSP has a TSR market-based perfermance condition, such thas the Company's TSR over the perfermance period will be compared with the TSR of the companies
constituting the FTSE 100index on the date of grant. If the Company’s TSR exceeds the median TSR of the FTSE 100, the nurmber of shares that vest wili be increased by
25 per cent The fair value of an award of shares under the PSP has been adjusted to take into account this market-based performance condition using a pricing model
based on expectatens about volatiity and the carrelation of share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 companies and which incorporates into the valuation the
Interdependency between share price performance and TSR vesting This adjustment increases the far value relative to the share pnice at the date of grant

ShareSave awards
The fair value of options granted under the ShareSave plan are calculated using 2 binomial paing model with the following assumptions {no options were granted in 2006)
2005
Weighted average share price 35lp
Exercise price 298p
Volat/ity 40%
Expected dradends 786p
Expected life ! - 3 year ShareSave 33-38years
-5 year ShareSave 53-58 years
Close penods
From January 1 6 weeks
From July 1 1 month
Risk free interest rate 44%

1 The binomigl pricing rooded assurmes that pariicipants will exercise therr options at the beginning of the six month window if the share price ts greater than the exercise pikce Otherwise it assumes that
options are held until the expirabion of therr contractual term This results in an expected ife that falls somewhere between the start and end of the exeraise window
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Notes 1o the consolidated financal staternents continued

26 Share-based payments continued

Deferred shares under APRA and Free Shares under SIP
The farr value of shares awarded under these plans s calculated as the share pnce on the date of the award

Farr vatues of options granted in 2003 and 2004

The charge under IFRS 2 Share-based payments for the current penod indudes a charge for options granted under the PSP, ShareSave, ESOP and APRA plans dunng the

years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 wath the followang grant date fair values.

2004 2003
PSP awards 249p —
ShareSave — 3 year grants - 6ip
ShareSave - 5 year grants —_ 7ip
ESOP — 27p
APRA 2200 —
These far values were calculated using the following assumptions
PSP ShareSave ESOP
Weighted average share pnce 233p 173p 79p
Weighted average exercise price 142p 78p
Volaulity 35% 43% 43%
Expected dividends 761p 761p 761p
Expected lfe! - 3 year ShareSave 315-365 years
- 5 year ShareSave 515-565 years
- ESOP 45 years
- PSP 3 years
Correlation 22%
Close perniexds
From January 1 Gweeks  Gweeks
From July 1 1 month 1 month
Risk free interest rate 52% 46% 41%

¥ For the ShareSave opuions, the binomial pncing model assumes that partapants will exercise options at the beginning of the sx month wandow if the share price s greater than the exercise pnce

Otherwse it assurmes that options are held untll the expration of ther contractual term. This resutts in an expected ke that falls sornewhere between the start and end of the exercse wandow
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27 Finanaal Instruments
The principal financial nsks to which the Group 1s exposed are foreign cunrency exchange rate nisk interest rate nsk, and commodity price nsk The Board has approved
pohcies for the management of these nsks.

Risk management poliaes and hedging activities

Foreign currency exchange rate fisk — Tne Group has significant cash flows {most significantly US doflars, followed by the Euro) denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant trading entity To manage 1ts exposures 1o changes in values of future foreign currency cash flows, 50 as to maintain relatively stable
long-term foreign exchange rates on settied transacuons, the Group enters Into dervative forward foreign currency ransacions For accounting purposes, these dervative
contracts are not designated as hedging instruments

The Group also has exposures to the fair values of non-denvative financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies To manage the nsk of changes in these farr
values, the Group enters into denvative forward foreign exchange centracts, which are designated as fair value hedges for accounung purposes

The Group regards its Interests In gverseas subsiciary companies as long-term investments The Group aims to match its translational exposures by matching the
currencies of assets and llabilities, Where appropriate, foreign currency financial labilities may be designated as hedges of the net investment

interest rate nsk - The Group's interest rate nsk 1s pnmanly in relat:on to its fixed rate borrowings (fair value nsk) and floating rate borrowings (cash fiow nisk} Interest rate
denvatives are used to manage the overall interest rate profile within the Group policy, which is to maintain a higher proportion of debt at fixed rates of nterest having
regard to the prevailing interest rate autlook. These are designated as erther fair value or cash flow hedges as appropnate

Commodity rsk ~ The Group has exposures to the price of jet fuel and base metals ansing from business operations To miunimise: its cash flow exposures to changes in
commiodity prices, the Group enters Into dervative commeodity transactions. For accounting purposes, these denvative contracts are not designated as hedging instruments.

Other pce nisk - The Group's cash equivalent balances represent investrenits In money market instruments wath a term of up to ane month The Group does not consider
that these are subject to significant price nsk.

Liquicity sk — The Group's policy is te hold financial iInvestments and maintan undrawn committed facilities at a leved sufficient 1o ensure that the Group has avadable funds
to meet its meduim-term capital and funding obligatons and fo meet any unforeseen obligations and oppartunities. The Group holds cash and short-term investments,
which together with the undrawn committed fachues, enable the Group to manage its iguidiy nsk.

Credit nsk - The Group 15 exposead to credit nsk to the extent of non-payment by either its customers or the counterparties of its inancial instruments. The Group has credit
policies covering both trading and finanaal exposures. At the balance sheet date, there were no significant concentrations of credit nisk. The maximum exposure to credit nsk
at the balance sheet date 15 represented by the carmying value of each financal asset, induding demvatve financial instruments
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Notes to the conschidated financual statements conunued

27 Financial instruments continued

Denvative financial Instruments

The nominal amounts, analysed by year of expected matunty and fair values of dervative financial instruments are as follows.

2006
Expected maturily Fair value
Nominal Within Betweenone Betweentwo After
amount one year and two years and five years five years Assets Liabilitres
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Foreign exchange contracts.!
Fair value hedges {280) — -— {105) (175) - {21)
Non-hedge accounted 5473 1.861 1,964 1,648 — 578 {3}
Inzerest rate contracts.
rair value hedges 1,069 313 - 596 160 27 {9)
Cash fiow hedges - — — — — — —
Non hedge accounted 98 21 21 34 22 — (3)
Commaodity contracts
Non-hedge accounted 152 68 49 35 — 39 —
6,512 2,263 2,034 2,208 7 644 {36)
2005
Expected matunty Fair value
Norminal Within  Between one  Betweentwo After
amount oneyear and twoyears and five years frve years Assels Liabihties
Foreign exchange contracts *
Farr value hedges (280} — — (105) (175) 5 —
Nor-hedge accounted 6158 2055 1883 2220 — 359 {136)
Interest rate contracts
Farr value hedges 1104 — 33 109 682 69 -
Cash flow hedges 124 124 — — — — —
Non-hedge accounited 115 — 28 63 24 — 7
Commaodity contracts
Non-hedge accounted 102 46 33 23 — H —
7323 2225 2257 2310 531 464 {143)

1 Pogitve nominal amounts represent contsacts to purchase stering, negative NOManal amounts fepresent Contracts to sell sterling.

As described above all dervative financal instruments are entered into for nsk managernent purposes, although these may not be designated into hedging refationships for

3CCOUNTNG purposes
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27 Fnanaalinstruments continued

Dervative financial instrurments redated to foreign exchange nsks are denominated in the followang currencies

2006
Currenaes purchased forward
Sterling US dollar Euro Other Tatal
£m £m fm £m £m
Currengies sold forward
Sterling — 280 — 16 296
US dollar 5,543 — 466 351 6,360
Ewro — — - 241 241
Other 3 22 77 29 131
2005
Currenaies purchased forward
Stering US dollar Euro Cther Total
£m fm im fm im
Currencies sold forward
Sterling — 522 — 7 539
US dollar 6,534 — 293 289 7116
Euro — — — 176 176
Other 7 25 31 8 71
Other dervative financial instruments are denominated in the followang currencies
2006 2005
£m fm
Sterling 22 24
US dollar 484 558
Euro 813 B3
Other — 50
Roills Royce ple 2006
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Notes to the ronsoldated financial statements continued

27 Finanaal instruments continued

Fair values of financial instruments

The fair value of a financal Instrument  the price at which an asset could be exchanged, or a labidty settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties n an armsHength
transaction Far values have been determined with reference to available market Informanon at the balance sheet date, using the methodologres discussed below

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial Instruments are as follows.

2006 2005
Book value Fair value Bock value Faur value
£im im fm fm
Assets,
Unhsted non-current asset imvestments 51 51 52 52
Parent company shares held under trust 74 74 293 293
Cash at bark and In hand 756 756 337 337
Short term deposits and investments 1,462 1462 456 1456
Trade receivables and similar items 1,210 1,210 963 963
Other financial assets
Demvative financial assets 644 644 464 464
Other non-denvative financial assets 300 300 258 258
Liabilnes
Trade payables and similar items {1,735} {1,735} {1,538) {1538)
Borrawings - current {400} (402} (75) 74
~ non-current {(990) {1,030) {1.458) (1,530)
Other financial hiabilities
Derwvative financal habilives (36) {36) {143) (143
Finanaal RRSPs {324) (347) {423) (454)
Qther non-dervative financial labilities (271) 271} (246) (246)

Unhsted non-current asset investments — These pnmanly comprise Floating Rate Convertible Loan Stock The conversion conditions are such that fair value approximates to the
book value

Parent company shares - Fair value 1s deterrmined using the market value bid price

Tiade recervables, trade payables, short-tesm investments and cash and cash equvalents — Fair values are assurned 1o approximate to cost erther due to the short term maturity of
the Instruments or because the interest rate of the Investments 15 reset after penods not exceeding six months

Borrowangs, other financial assets and other financial frabilities - Where available, market values have been used to determine farr values. Where market values are not avadable,

fair values have been estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using prevaiing interest rate curves Arnounts denominated in foreign currencies are valued at
the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date
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27 Finanaal instruments continued

The currency profile of denvative financial Instruments 15 analysed above The non-dervative financialinstruments above are denominated in the following cusrenaes

2006
Sterling US dollar Eure Cther Total
£m £m £m £m fm
Assets
Unhisted non-current Investments 46 1 2 2 51
Parent cornpany shares held under trust 74 — — — 74
Cash at bank and in hand 104 255 335 62 756
Short-tern deposits and investments 1,284 157 8 13 1,462
Trade recevables and sirmiar items 270 728 114 98 1,210
Other non-dernvative financial assets 113 909 44 53 300
Liabilites
Trade payables and sirilar items (890} (512) {236) 97) {1.735)
Borrowings — current [Ed] 4) 341) an {400)
— non-current (206) {285) 498) {1) (990)
Other financal liabilties
Financal RRSPs — {255) (69) — (324)
Other non-denvative financial labihives {147) {63) {5} (56) (271)
2005
S dollar Euro Qther Toal
fm im £m im im
Assets
Unhsted non-current investments 46 —_ 2 4 52
Parent compary shares held under trust 293 — — — 293
Cash at bank and in hand 110 67 87 73 337
Short-term deposits and investments 986 377 a4 9 1456
Trade recenvables and similar items 194 633 74 62 963
Qther non-dervative financial assets 84 122 19 33 258
Liabihuies
Trade payables and similar sterns {731) {550) (130} (127) (1,538)
Borrowings — current (8) (1 (1 (55 (75)
— non-current {213) {361) (882) (2 (1,458)
Cther financiat kabilines
Financial RRSPs — {325} (98) — (423)
Other non-denvative financial latyhiues {178} (36) (10 (22) (246)
The Group's actuat currency exposures after taking account of dersative foreign currency contracts, which are not designated as hedging instruments for accounting
purposes are as foliows
2006
Sterling US dollar Euro Cther Total
Functional currency of Group operation £m £m £m £m £m
Sterling — 3 1 {1) 3
US dollar 4 — — 2 6
Euro 1) — — - (1)
Other 1 7 7 7 22
2005
Stering US doflar Ewo Cther Total
funcuional currency of Group operation fm £m £m fm £m
Stering — {2) i 2 1
US dollar 1 — 4 1 3]
Euro 1 - — — ]
Other 2 6 5 13 26
Rolls-Royce pic 2006
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

27 Financial instruments continued

Interest rate risk

i respect of incormne earning financial assets and interest beaning fAinancial abilites, the: following table indicates therr effective interest rates and the penods in which they

reprce The value shown is the carmnng amount

2006
Penod in which interest rate repnices
Effective & months More than
interest rate Total of less 612 months 1-2 years 2-Syears Syears
% £m £m £m fm £im £fm
Short-term tnvestments” 4.8374% 34 15 5 — 8 6
Cash at bank and in hand? 756 756 — — — _—
Short-term deposits? 1,428 1,428 — — — —
Unsecured bank loans
€6m floaung rate loan EURIBOR+12 (4} (4) — — — —
€5m fixed rate loan 41200% (3} — {3) — - —
Overdrafts* {14) (14) — — — —
Effect of other interest rate swaps 11392% — 78 — (21) (35) (22)
Other unsecured
Other loan 2008 (interest rate nil) 0 0000% (1) — — (1) _— —_
Unsecured bond i1ssues
6 %% Notes 2007 £500m 6.3750% (337) {337) —_ — — —_
7 ¥ Notes 2016 £200m 7.3750% (200) — == — — {200)
584% Notes 2010US5187m 5.8400% {102) — —_ —_ (102} —
After effect of interest rate swaps USDLIBOR+ 1159 — {102) — — 102 —
6 38% Notes 2013 U55230m 6.3800% {121%) — — —_ — {121)
After effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR + 1.26 — (121) — — — 121
6 559 Notes 2015 USS83m 6.55009% {38) — — —_ — {(38)
After effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR + 1 24 — (38) — — — 38
4 /5% Notes 2011 €750m 4.5000% (494) — — — {294) -
After effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0911 —_ {494) — — 494 —
Secured bank loans
Uss$ floating rate loan USD LIBOR + 0 97 62) (62} - — — —
Other secured
Obligations under finance leases payable 9 9153% (14) {4) (3) 4) (2) 1}
828 1,101 m 26) {29) (217)
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27 Finanaal instruments continued

Interest rate nsk continued
2005
Penod i which interast rate reprces
Hiecuve 6 months More than
mierest rale Total ofless 612 months 1-2 years 2 §years 5 years
L] im fm fm frm £m £m
Short-term investments 48700% 37 i4 7 — 9 7
Cash at bank and in hand? 337 337 — — — —
Short-term deposits? 1419 1419 — — — —
Unsecured bank loans
Canadian $100m floating rate loan CAD LIBOR 4055 (50) {50 — — — —
€8m floating rate foan EURIBCR +1178 {6) (6) — — — —
Qverdrafts* (12) (] — — — —
Effect of ather interest rate swaps 20933% — 115 — (28) (63) (24)
Other unsecured
Other loan 2008 (interest rate nil) 00000% {1} — —_ — (1) —
Unsecured bond issues
6 %% Notes 2007 €500m 63750% {354) — — {354} - —
After effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0.866 — (354) — 354 — —
7 %% Notes 2016 £200m 73750% {200) — — — — (200
5849 Notes 2010 LUSS187m 5 8400% {107 — — — {107) _
After effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR + 1159 — (107) — — 107 —
6.38% Notes 2013 USS23Cm 63800% (134) — —_ — — {134)
After effect of interest rate swaps USDLIBOR + 126 — {(134) — - — 134
655% Notes 2015 US583m 6 55005 49) — — o — {43}
After effect of interest rate swaps USDLUBOR + 124 — (49} — — — 49
4 /% Notes 2011 €750m 4 5000% (524) — — — — {524)
After effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR+ 0911 — {524 — — — 524
Secured bank lcans
US$ floabing sate loan USD LIBOR + 098 {74) {74) — — — —
After effect of interest rate swaps 51540% — 74 74) — — —
Other seaured
Obligations under finance teases payable 6.8603% (22} @ @ S (8 m
260 645 (71) (33) (63} (218)

¥ Interest on the short term investments are at fixed rates.

 Cash at bank and in hand comprises bank balances and demand deposits and earms interest at rates based on daity bank deposit rates.
3 short term deposits are deposis placed on money markets for penods up to threa months and eam interest at the respecive short term deposit rates
4 Dverdrafts bear nterest at rates inked to appicable LBOR rates that fluctuate in accordance with local practice

Some of the Group's borrowings are subject to the Group meeting certain obhgations, including customary financia! covenants If the Group fails to meet its obligations
these arrangements give nghts 1o the lenders, upon agreement, to accelerate repayment of the facilines There are na rating tnggers contained in any of the Group's faciines

that could require the Group 1o accelerate or repay any facility for a given movement in the Groups credit rating
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Nates to the consohdated financial statements contnued

27 Finanaal mstruments continued

Matunty analysis
The matunty analyss of the Group's interest beanng financal labities 1s as follows
2006 2005
£m £m
In one year o Jess or on demand 400 75
In more than one year but not more than two years 6 403
In more than two years but not more than five years 624 11
In more than five years 360 1,044
1,390 1533
In addiwon the Group has undrawn committed borrowing faciliies avallable as follows
2006 2005
£m £m
Expinng wathun one year — -
Expiring in one 1o two years — -
Expinng thereafter ! 450 250
450 250
1 A new £200m facility was agreed in 2006 with the European Investment Bank
28 Operating and finance leases
Operating leases
Leases as lessee — non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows
2006 2005
£m im
Within one year 78 82
Between one and five years 213 270
After five years 106 134
397 486
Leases as lassor ~ non-cancellable operating lease rentals are recevable as follows
2006 2005
£m fm
Within one year 8 14
Between one and five years 13 23
After five years 4 7
25 44
The Group acts as lessee and lessor for both land and buildings and gas turbine engines, and acts as lessee for some plant and machinery
- Sublease payments of £23m (2005 £16m) and sublease recerpts of £11m {2005 £15m) were recogrised in the income statermentin the penod
~  Purchase options exst on aero engines with the penod to the purchase option date varying between 4-8 years
- Escalauion clauses exst on some leases and are inked to LIBOR.
- The total future ririmum sublease payments expecied {0 be made s £23m {2005 £16m) and sublease receipts expected 1o be recenved 15 £5m (2005 £2m)
Finance leases
Finance lease labrhines are payable as follows
2006 2005
Payments Interest Principal Payments Interest Principal
£m £m £m £Em fm £m
Within one year 9 2 7 10 2 8
Berween one and five years 8 2 6 17 4 13
After five years 1 -— 1 1 — 1
18 4 14 28 & 22

There were no contingent rents recognised as an expense In the penod (2005 £nil)
Future minimum subtease recerpts of £nl (2005 £rul) are expected under non-cancellable subleases.
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29 Contingent liabiittes

In connecuon with the sale of its products the Group will, on some occasions, provide finanaing support for 1ts customers. The Group's contingent liabilies relaing o
finanang arrangernents are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers and a broad product portioho

Contingent habilities are disclosed on a discounted basis As the directors consider the likelshood of these contingent abilities erystallising to be remote this amount
does not represent a present value However, the amounts e discounted at the Group's borrowing rate to reflect better the tme span over which these exposures could
arise The coniingent liabilibes are denominated in US dollars As the Group does not adopt cash flow hedge accounting for forecast foreign exchange transactions, this
amount Is reported, together with the sterling equivalent at the reporting date spot rate

The discounted value of the total gross contingent liabilines relaung 1o financing arangements on all delivered aircraft less insurance arrangements and relevant
provisions, at December 31 2006 amourited 10 $1,109m, £566m {2005 $1097m, £638m) Taking into account the net realisable value of the refevant secunty including
unrestricted cash collateral of $114m, £58m (2005 $108m, £63m), the discounted value of the net conuingent liabilities 1n respect of financing arrangements on all delivered
arcraft amounted to $243m, £124m (2005 $259m, £150m) Sensitvty calculatons are complex, but for example, if the value of the refevant secunty was reduced by 20 per
cent, a net contingent hiability with a discounted value of approxmately $361m, £184m (2005 $363m, £211m) would result There are also net coningent labilives in
raspect of undelivered arrcraft, but it is not considered practicable 1o estimate these as delivenies can be many years in the future, and the relevant financing will only be put
n place at the appropriate tirne

Contingent liabilites exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Group in the ordinary course of business for product delvery, performance and relability The Group
has, 1n the normal course of business, entered INto rrangements :n respect of export finance, performance bonds, countertrade oblgations and minor muscellaneous items
Various Group undertakings are parties to legal actions and claims which anse in the ordinary course of business some of which are for substantal amounts As a
consequence of the insolvency of an Insurer as previously reported, the Group 1s o longer fully nsured against known and potential claims from emiployees who worked for
certain of the Group’s UK based businesses for a perod prior to the acquisition of those busingsses by the Group While the outcome of some of these matters cannot
precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal aciions or daims, after alfowing for provisions already made, to result in sgrificant loss to
the Group

30 Related party transactions

2006 2005

£m £m

Sales of goods and senices to joint ventures 1,252 986
Purchases of goods and services from joint ventures (830) (643}
Operating lease payments to joint ventures {43) {38}
Guarantees provided to joint ventures — pi
Divmdends recesved from joint ventures 44 35
RRSP receipts from joint ventures 7 3
Other income receved from joint ventures 12 14

The aggregated balances wath joint ventures are shown in notes 12,13, 16and 18
Transactions wath Group pension schernes are shown in note 22

In the course of normal operations, refated party transactions entered nto by the Group have been contracted on an arms-ength basis Rolls-Royce Group ple1s a
nonrtrading holding company for Rolls-Royce plc.

Key managernent perscnnel are deemed to be the directors and the members of the Group Executive as set out in the Annual report of Rolls Royce Group plc
Remuneration for key management personnel s shown below

2006 2005

£m fm

Salanes and short-term benefits 10 10
Post-retremnent schemes 2 2
Share-based payments 5 3
17 i5
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Notes to the consolxiated financial statements contiryed

31  Acquisittons and disposals

Duning the year the Group acquired Data Systerns & Solutions {previously a joint venture) as summansed below

Totat
Em
Intangible assets 10
Property, plant and equipment 2
Deferred tax assets 1
Inventary 2
Trade and other recervables 18
Cash and cash equnalents 5
Trade and other payables 21)
Barrowings - current liabiliies ()
Provisions (3)
Borrowangs - non current liabihiues 3}
Net assets 10
Financed by
Share of net assets transferred from joint venture 5
Net cash outflow per cash flow staterment 5
10

There were no significant fair value adjustments in respect of the net assets acquired

Dunng the year the Group receved £ 1m of deferred consideration 1 respect of a disposal recogrised in prior years.
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Company balance sheet

At December 31, 2006
Restated *
2006 2005
Notes £m fm
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 3 270 174
Jangible assets 4 990 900
Investiments - subsidiary undertakings 5 1,713 1,766
Investments — joint ventures 6 74 65
Investmenis - other 7 120 340
3,167 3.245
Current assets
Stocks 8 920 797
Gebtors — amounts falling due within one year 9 1,073 997
Dehitors - amounts falling due after one year 10 387 356
Other financial assets 16 654 478
Short-term deposits and investrnents 11 1,249 1,125
Cash at bank and in hand 724 107
o _ 3807 3860
Creditors - amounts faliing due within one year T
Borrowings 12 (947) 351)
Other financal habilmes i6 {92} (285)
Other credtors 13 (3,640} (3.262)
Net current assets/{iabilities) 328 (38)
Total assets less current habilities 3,495 3207
Creditors - amounts falling due after one year
Borrowings 4 {961) (1,381
Other financal habilties 16 {353) (391)
Other creditors . e e e 15386 (26
Provisions for habiliies and charges 17 {150) {113
Net pensions liability 9 479) {905}
1,196 191
Capital and reserves e
Calted-Up share capital 0 326 326
Share premium account 21 631 631
Revaluation reserve 21 73 81
Transiton hedging reserve il 178 338
Other reserves N 167 167
Profit and loss account 2 (179) {1,353)
1,196 191

1 See notes 3and 19

The financial statements on pages 68 to 87 were approved by the Board on February 7, 2007 and signed on its behalf by
Robertson Charrman Andrew Shilston Finance Director

Ud. 5=

pa—__
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended December 31, 2006

festated 2
2006 2005
im fm

Profit/{loss) attnbutable to the shareholders of Ralls-Royce plc 749 (233)
Actuanal gains/losses) net of deferred tax 414 (170
Movement in farr value of available for sale assets (126) 121
Related tax moverments 48 (36)
Total recogrused gains/{losses) relating to the year 1,085 (318)
Prior year adjustment (8)
Total gains and losses recognised since last Report of the directors and finanoal statements 1,077

' (02005 fair value adjustments refating to parent company shares held under tust were recognised in the profit and loss account. Following amendments 1o FRS 26 effective n 2006, changes i farr vaue of
financial assets dassified as assets held for sale are recogrssed in reserves until the shares are disposed of, when amounts prewiously recorded in reserves ate recagrused in the profit and loss account
Accordingly £121m recogrsed in the peafit and loss account in 2005 has been reclasafied 1o the statement of toial recogrused gains and losses. The related deferred 1ax balance of £36m has alse been
transferrad 10 the statement of total recognised gairs and kosses There 15 no net effect on the balance sheet,

2 armendments to FRS 17 have been adopted - see note 19

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
For the year ended December 31, 2006

Restated
2006 2005
£m fm
At January ¥ {as previously reported) JEd] 734
Adoption of amendmenis to FRS 17 - see note 19 — (3]
At January } (restated} 191 728
Total recogrised gains/(josses;) for the year 1,085 (318)
Transfer from transiion hedging reserve 230) (367
TJransfer from cash flow hedging reserve — 3
Share-based payments adjustment 34 16
Related tax moverments 116 129
At December 31 1,196 191
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Accounting policies

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards on the histoncal cost basis, modified to include the revaluation
of fand and buldings

The Company has adopted the amendments to FRS 17 Retirement Benefits
published in December 2006 This 1s descnbed further in note 19

As permitted by the Companies Act 1985, a separate profit and loss account for
the Company has not been included in these financial statements

As permitted by FRS 1, no cash flow statement has been prepared, as a
conschidated cash flow staternent has been prepared by the uluimate parent
company

Some small adjustments have been made to comparative figures to put them
on a consistent basis with the current year

Revenuie recogrition
Revenues compnse sales 1o external custorners after discounts, and excluding value
added tax.

Sales of products are recogrused when the significant nisks and rewards of
ownership of the goods are transferred to the customer the sales prce agreed and
the receipt of payment can be assured

Sales of services and long-term contracts are recogrised when the outcome of
the transaction can be reliably esumated Revenue is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion based on seraces performed to date as a percentage of the
total contractual obligation The assessment of the stage of completion s dependent
on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on costs incurred to the
extent these relate to senices performed up to the reporting date achievernent of
contractual milestones where appropniate, or fiying hours or equivalent for long-term
aftermarket arrangements

Linked sales of product and serwices are treated as a single long-term contract
where these components have been negotiated as a sungle commercial package and
are so closely interrelated that they do not operate independently of each other and
are constderad to form a single project with an overall profit margin Revenue s
recognised on the sarme basis as for other sales of products and services as described
above

Full provision 1s made for any estimated losses to completion of contracts
having regard to the overall substance of the arrangements.

Progress payments recerved when greater than recorded turnover, are
deducted from the value of work in progress except to the extent that payments on
account exceed the value of work In progress on any contract where the excess 1s
included in creditors. The amount by which recorded turnover of long-term contracts
15 1IN excess of payrments on account 1s classified as amounts recoverable on contracts’
and 1s separately disclosed within debtors.

Risk and revenue shanng partnershups (RRSPs)
From time to-time, the Company enters into arrangements with partners who in
return for a share In future programme revenues of profits, make cash payments that
are not refundable {except under certain remote arcumstances) Cash sums received
which reimburse the Comparry for past expenditure are credited to other operating
income The arrangements also require partners to undertake development work
and/or supply cornponents for use In the programme at thewr own expense No
accounting entries are recorded where partners undertake such development work
or where programme components are supplied by partners because no cbligaton
anses unless and untl programme sales are made, instead, payments to partners
for their share in the programme are charged to cost of sales as programme
fevenues anse

The Compary has arrangements with parmers who do not undertake
developrnent work or supply parts. Such arrangements are considered to be financal
instruments as defined by FRS 26 and are accounted for vang the amortised cost
method

Research and development

The charge 1o the profit and loss account consists of research and development
expenditure incurred 1n the year excluding known recoverable costs on contracts,
contrbutions 1o shared engineenng programmees and application engineenng
Application engineenng expenditre, ncurred in the adaptation of existing
technology 1o new proaducts, 1s capitaised and amornsed over the programme life,
up to a maxamum of 15 years, where both the techrical and cormmercial nisks are
considered 1o be sufficiently low

Interest
Interest recenvable/payable 1s credited/charged to the profit and loss account using
the effective interest method

Taation

Provision for taxation 1s made at the current rate and for deferred taxation at the
projected rate on afl iming differences that have oniginated, but net reversed at the
balance sheet date

Foreign currency translation

Transactions In overseas currencies are translated Into loca! currency at the exchange
rate ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habihibes denorminated
in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling at the year end
Exchange differences ansing on foreign exchange transactions and the retranslation
of assets and habilmes into sterling at the rate ruling at the year end are taken into
account 1N determurkng profit on ordinary activities before taxation.

Finanaalinstruments

FRS 26 requrres the classification of financial instruments into separate categones for

which the accounting requirement 1s dfferent Rolls-Royce has dassified «ts financial

instrurments as follows

- Fixed deposits, pnnapally compnising funds held wath banks and other financial

institutions, are classified as loans and recervables

Investrments {other than interests in joint ventures and fixed deposits) and

short term deposits {other than fixed deposits) are normally classified as

avallable for sale

- Boerrowings, trade creditors and financial RRSPs are generally classified as other
Irabrhities.

- Derwvatives, comprising foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and
commodity swaps are classified as held for rading

Finanaal instruments are recognised at the contract date and initially measured at fair

value Their subsequent measuremnent depends on therr dassification

- Loansand recevables and other hiabilities are generally held at amortised cost

and not revalued unless they are Induded in a farr value hedge accounting

relationship. Where such a relatonship exsts, the instruments are revalued in

respect of the nisk being hedged If nstruments held at amorused cost are

hedged, generally by interest rate swaps, and the hedges are effective, the

carrying values are adjusted for changes in fair value, which are included in the

profit and loss account

Avallable for sale assets are held at fair value Changes in farr value ansing from

changes in exchange rates are Included in the profit and loss account, All other

changes in fair value are taken to reserves On disposat of the related asset, the

accumulated changes in value recorded in reserves are included in the gain or

loss recorded in the profit and loss account.

Held for trading instruments are held at fair value Changes in farr value are

included in the profit and Yoss account unless the instrument 1s nduded in a

cash flow hedge If the instruments are included in a cash flow hedging

relatonship, which 15 effective, changes in value are aken to reserves. When the

hedged forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recorded in reserves are

recognised In the profit and loss account.

- Foreign exchange gains and losses are recogrised in the profit and loss account.

Finanoal Instruments are derecognised on expiry or when all contractual nghts and

obligations are transferred

3
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Hedge accounting

The Company does not apply hedge accounung in respect of forward foreign
exchange contracts held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast future
transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Company does not apply hedge accounting In respect of commodity
swaps held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast future ransactions in
those commodines.

The Comipany applies hedge accounting in respect of transactions entered into
o manage the fair value and cash flow exposures of its borrowings Forward foreign
exchange contracts are held to manage the far value exposures of borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies and are designated as fair value hedges Interest
rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are designated as fair
value or cash flow hedges of fixed and floaung rate borrowings respectvely

Changes in the fair values of dervatives designated as fair value hedges and
changes in fair value of the related hedged tem are recogrised directly in the profit
and loss account

Changes in the far values of dervatives that are designated as cash flow hedges
and are effective are recognised directly in reserves. Any ineffectiveness in the
hedging relationships 1s Included in the profit and loss account The armounts
deferred in reserves are recogrised in the profit and loss account to match the
recognition of the hedged item

Hedge accounting 15 discontinued when the hedging instrument expires of 15
sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that
time, for cash flow bedges, any cumulatve gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognised in reserves, 1s retained in reserves until the forecast transaction occurs. Ifa
hedged transaction 15 no longer expected to oceur, the net cumulative gain or loss
recogrised in reserves (s transferred 10 the profit and loss account.

The portion of a gain or loss on an instrument wsed to hedge a net investment
in a foreign operation that 1s determined to be an effective hedge 15 recogrused
directly in reserves The ineffective portion 1s recogrised immediately in the profit and
loss account

Until December 31, 2004 the Company applied hedge accounting for
forecast foreign exchange ransactions and commodity exposures In accordance
with UK Accounting Standards On January 1, 2005, the farr values of denvatives used
for hedging these exposures were included in the transition hedging reserve This
reserve 1s released to the profit and loss account based on the designation of the
hedges on January 1 2005

Certification costs and parbcipation fees

Costs incurred I respect of meeung regulatory certification requirernents for new
cwvil engine/aircraft combinations and payments made te airframe manufacturers for
this, and participation fees, are carned forward Inintangble assets to the extent that
they can be recovered out of future sales and are charged 10 the profit and loss
account over the programme Ife, up 1o @ maximum of 15 years

Softwore

The cost of acquinng software that 1s not specific to an ttem of tangible fixed assets 1s
dassfied as an ntangible asset Amounts previously ncluded within tangible fixed
assets have been transferred to intangrble assets (see notes 3 and 4)

Tongible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation
and any provision for impairments in value

Depreciation 15 provided on a strarght-hne basis to write-off the cost or
valuaton, less the estirmated residual value, over the estimated usefut lfe Esumated
useful lives are as follows
I Land and buddings, as adwsed by the Group's professional valuers

a)  Freehold buldings - five io 45 years (average 22 years)

b)  Leasehold land and buldings — lower of vatuers esumates or penod

of lease

¢ Nodepreciauon s provided in respect of freehold tand
) Plant and equipment - five to 25 years {average 15 years}
m)  No depreciation 1s provided on assets in the course of construction

Accounting for leases

i} Aslessee
Assets financed by leasing agreements that give rghts approximating to
ownership {finance leases) have been capitahsed at amounts equal to the
onginal cost of the assets to the lessors and depregiation prowded on the basis
of the Company depreqiation policy The capitat elernerits of future obligations
under finance leases are included as kabilives in the balance sheet and the
current year's interest element, having been allocated to accounting penods to
give a constant penodic rate of charge on the outstanding balance, 1s charged
to the profit and loss account.

The annual payments under afl other lease arrangements, known as
operating leases, are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight ine
basis

1 AsLessor
Amounts recenvable under finance leases are included under debtors and
represent the total amount outstanding under lease agreements less unearned
income Finance lease Income, having been allocated to accounting penods to
grve a constant penodic rate of return on the net cash investment, 1s Included n
turnover

Rentals recevable under operating leases are included in turnover on a
straight-ine basis.

Stock
Stock and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as aresult of a
past event and it 1s probable that the Company will be required to settle that
obhigation Prevastons are measured at the directors' best esumate of the expenditure
required to settle the oblhigation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to
present velue where the effect 1s matenal

Post-retirement benefits
Pensions and similar bencfits are accounted for under FRS 17 Post-retirement
benefits For defined benefit plans, obligations are measured at discounted present
value whilst plan assets are recorded at farr value The service and financing costs of
such plans are recognised separately in the profit and loss account; serice costs are
spread systematically over the lives of employees and financing costs are recogrised
in the penods in which they anse Actuanial gains and losses are recogrised
immediately in the staternent of total recognised gains and losses.

Payrnents to defined contributon schemes zre charged as an expense as they
fall due

Share-based payments
‘The Company applied the requirernents of FRS 20 Share-based payments from
January 1, 2004 In accordance with the transiion prowisions, FRS 20 has been applied
10 all grants made after November 7, 2002 that were unvested as of January 1, 2005
The Company. on behalf of 1ts parent company, provides share-based payments
arrangements to certain employees. These are predominantly equity-settied
arrangerments and are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The fair value 1s expensed on a
straight-ine basis over the vesting penod, based on the Cormpany’s estimate of shares
or options that will eventually vest

Fair value 1s measured using the binomal priang model for the ShareSave and
the Executve Share Option Plan (ESOP) The farr value of awards made under the
Performance Share Plan (PSP} 1s based on the market value of shares at the date of
grant adjusted to reflect non-entitement to dvdends and the Total Shareholder
Retum market-based performance condition

See note 23 for further descniption of the share-based payment plans
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Notes to the Company finanaal statements continued

2  Emoluments of directors

2006 005
Highest paid Other  Highest pad Other
director*  directors drector  dueclors
£000 £000 £000 1000
Aggregate emoluments excluding deferred share plans 1,151 3463 1,085 3721
Aggregate amounts relatng to deferred share plans 21 397 191 415
Aggregate value of Company coninbutions to Company defined contributicn pensions schemes 39 499
Accrued pension of highest paid director 493 436
Gans realised on exercise of share options? 5,603 9,782 13 150
2006 2005
Number Number
Number of directors with accnuing retirement benefits
Defined contnibution schemnes* 2 2
Defined benefit schemes 5 6
Nurnber of directors exercising share options 5 5
Numbser of duectors receming shares as part of long-term incentives schemes 6 6
! Member of defined benefit scheme.
% Inchuces gains under the ShareSave plan
3 Two directons were members of both defined contribubon and defined benefit scheres (2005 two drrectors)
3  Intangible assets
Certification
costs and
PP Other Toul
£m Em £m
Cost
At Janwary 1, 2006 276 - 276
Redlassification of software to intangible assets’ — 38 38
At January 1, 2006 (restated) 276 38 314
Additions 87 19 106
At December 31 2006 363 57 420
Accumulated armortisation
At January 1 2006 131 — 13
Reclassfication of software to ntangible assets ! — 9 9
At January 1, 2006 {restated) i1 9 140
Prowded dunng the year 3 7 10
At Decernber 31 2006 134 16 150
Net book value at December 31, 2006 229 41 270
Net book value at January 1, 2006 (restated) 145 29 174
Net book value at December 31, 2005 as previously reported 145 — 145

! External software purchases were previously included withun tangible fxed assets. Following a review in 2006 1t was concluded that ceriain of thesa items should more properly be diassified a5 mtangible
assets. Accordingly software wath a net book value at December 31 2005 of £29 milion has been redassified from tangible fixed assets to intangible assets. There 15 no change to the amortusation policy m

respect of these assets, beng on a straight bne basis over 2 maamum of five years.
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4 Tangible fixed assets

Land and Plantand  tn course of

buildings equpment construction Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost or valuauon
At January 1, 2006 322 1,178 167 1,667
Redassificanon of software to intangible assets? —_ {31) {7) {38)
At January 1, 2006 (restated) 322 1,147 160 1,629
Additions 2 42 156 200
Reclassificatons 27 72 (99) —
Disposalsfwnite-offs {10) (69) — 79}
Ax December 31, 2006 34 1,192 217 1,750
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2006 88 650 — 738
Reclassificatron of software to intangible assets? - {9 — {9)
At January 1, 2006 (restated) [E] 641 —— 729
Provided during the year 13 86 — 99
Disposals/write-offs {5) (63) — (68)
At December 31 2006 96 664 — 760
Net book value at December 31, 2006 245 528 217 990
Net book value at January 1, 2006 {restated) 234 506 160 900
Net book vatue at December 31, 2005 a5 previously reported 234 528 167 929
2006 2005
Tangibles fixed assets include £m £m
Net book value of finance leased assets 29 37
Non-depreciable land 57 58
Land and buildings at cost or valuation comprse
Cost 159 130
Valuation at Decemnber 31, 1996 182 192
34 322
Land and butldings at net book value compnse
Freehold 236 227
Long leasehold 7 &
Short lgasehold 2 1
245 234
On an histoncal cost basis the net book value of land and buildings would have been as follows
Cost 323 304
Depreciation {151) {151}
172 153
Caputal expenditure commitments - contracted but not provided for 87 142

! Seenote 3

The Compary has followed the transitional proisions of FRS 15 Tangible fixed assets; to retain the book value of land and builldings, certain of which were revalued in 1996
as set out below

Group properties were revalued at December 31, 1996 as follows.

) Specalised properues, including certan of the Comparty s major manufactunng sites, were revalued on a depreciated replacement cost basss.
#)  Non-specalised properties were revalued by reference to therr exisiing use value

W) Properties surplus 1o the Company’s requirerents were revalued on an open market value basis

In the Uruted Kingdorm the revaluation was catned out by Gerald Eve, Chartered Surveyors, Fuller Perser, Chartered Surveyors and Storey Sons & Parker, Chartered Surveyors,
n accordance with the appraisal and valuation manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Overseas properties were valued pinaipally by independent local
valuers,
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

5  Investments - subsidiary undertakings

Shares
tm
Cost
At January 1, 2006 1,766
Addtions 30
Drsposalsiwrnite-offs (83}
At December 31, 2006 1,713
The pnncipal subsidiary undertakings are listed on page 88.
The Company has guaranteed the uncafled share capial of Nightingale Insurance Limited, one of its subsidianes At December 31, 2006, this guarantee
was £12m (2005 £12m)
6 Investments - joint ventures
Shares
at cost Loans Total
£m im £m
At January 1, 2006 55 10 65
Adduions 6 3 9
At December 31, 2006 61 13 74
The principal joint ventures are isted on pages 89 and 90
7  Investments - other
Parent
Unhisted company
investments  shares held
atcost  undertrust’ Total
im £m £m
At January | 2006 47 293 340
Additions —_ 47 47
Far value adjustments — 2 2
Amortisation/disposals (1) {268) {269)
At December 31, 2006 46 74 120
¥ Sharas in the parent company are hekd at far value i a trust At December 31 2006 16,654,181 shares with a farr value of £74m (2005 68,536,712 shares with afar value of £293m} were held
8 Stocks
2006 2005
£m im
Raw raternals 26 i8
Work in progress 470 242
Long-term contracts work in progress 46 57
Finished goods 572 597
Payments on account 8 27
1,122 941
Progress payments recerved against.!
Long-term contracts (8) 0
Other stocks {194) {137}
920 797
1 Inciudes payments recerved from joint ventures 16 14
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9  Debtors — amounts falling due wathin one year

2006 2005
£m fm
Teade debiors 254 231
Amounts recoverable on contracts 55 34
Amounits owed by - subsidiary undertakings 333 375
Amounts owed by - joint ventures 21 179
QOther debtors 136 59
Prepayments and accrued income 94 119
1,073 997
10 Debtors - amounts falling due after one year
2006 2005
£m m
Trade debtors 11 4
Amounts recoverable on contracts 233 267
Amounts owed by - subsidiary undertakings — 13
Amounts owed by — joint ventures 10 10
Deferred tax assets {note 18) — >
Qther debtors 34 27
Prepayments and accrued income 99 30
387 356
11  Short-term deposits and investments
2006 2005
£m fm
Short-term deposits 1,249 1,125
12 Barrowings - amounts falling due within one year
2006 2005
£m m
Overdrafis 603 343
QObligations under finance leases 7 8
6 %96 Notes 2007 337 —
947 351

1 These notes are the subject of 2 currency swap agreement Lnder which the counterparties have undertaken to pay an amount at a fixed rate of interest and exchange n consideration for an amount payable
by the Comparry at a varable rate of interest and at a fieed exchange rate

13 Other creditors - amounts falling due within one year

006 2005

£m fm

Payments recerved on account ! 295 214
Trade creditors 324 245
Amounts owed 1o - subsidiary undertakings 1,037 697
Amounits owed 1o — joint ventures 164 159
Amounits owed to — parent and its subsidiaries 554 829
Corporate taxation 128 120
Cther taxation and social secunty 25 34
Gther creditors 626 610
Accruals and deferred iIncome 487 354
3,640 3262

! Inctudes payments recetved from joint ventures 128 115
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Notes 10 the Company financal staterments continued

14 Bomowings - amounts falling due after one year

2006 2005
£m £m
Unsecured
6 ¥:% Notes 2007 €500m — 354
7 %3 Notes 2016 £200m 200 200
5.84% MNotes 2010 US5187m ! 102 107
6 38% Notes 2013 U55230m ! 121 134
6.55% Notes 2015 US583m! 38 49
4 /% Notes 2011 €750m? 494 524
Secured
Obligations under finance leases payaple *
Between one and two years 3 5
Between two and five years 2 8
After five years — —
961 1381
Repayable
Between one and two years - by instalments 4 5
- otherwise — 354
Between two and five years - by instalments 2 8
- otherwise 596 —
After five years - by instalments - -
- gtherwise 359 1014
961 1,381

' These notes are the subject of Interest rate swap agreements under which the Company has undertzken to pay floating rates of nterest, and currency swaps which form a fair value hedge Unul October 5
2005 the bomowing was included 1n a net investment hedging refationship From October 6, 2005 the borrowing has been included in a fair value hedging relationship in respect of the foreign exchange nsk.

2 These notes are the subject of swap agreements under which counterparties have undertaken to pay amounts at ficed rates of nterest and exchange in consideration for amounts payable at varable rates of
interest and at fixed exchange rates.

3 Obligations under finance leases are secured by related leased assets

15 Other creditors — amounts falling due after one year

2006 2005

£m fm

Payrmenits recerved on account? 161 130
Amounts owed to joint ventures 4 —
Other creditors 191 86
Accruals and deferred income — 10
356 226

1 Includes payments recerved from joint ventures 62 13
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16 Other financal assets and habilities

Details of the Company s policies on the use of financial Instruments are grveniin the accounting polices on pages 70 and 71

The Company adopted FRS 25 and FRS 26 Financial Instruments prospectively from January 1, 2005

The fair velues of denvative finanaal instruments held by the Company are as follows.

2006
Foreign

exchange Commodity Interast rate Finandal
comntracts ontracts contracts RRSPs Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Assets 588 39 27 —_ 654
Liabilites (80} — an (354} (445)
508 39 16 (354) 209
2005

Foresgn

exchange  Commodity  Interest rate Financial
conLracts contracts contracts RRSPs Total
£m 1] fm im fm
Assets 376 Ell 71 o 478
Liabilines (183} — 7 (486) (676)
193 31 64 {486) (198)

Other financial habilties are analysed as follows

2006 2005
£m Em
Current liabiliges {92} (285)
Nor-current habilies {353) (391)
(445) (676)

The Company uses vanous financial instruments to manage Its exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates The Company uses commodity swaps to manage its
exposure to movements in the price of commodities {jet fuel and base metals) From January 1, 2005 the Company has not Induded foreign exchange or commadity
financial Instruments in any cash flow hedging relationships for accounting purpases To hedge the currency nsk associated with a borrowing denominated in USS, the

Company has currency denvatives designated as part of a fair value hedge
Movements in the fair values of foreign exchange financial instruments were as follows,

Foreign exchange financal instruments

2006 2005
Incuded in  Included in Included n Inchuded in
transition profit transuon profit
hedging and loss hedging and loss
Total reserve account Total Teserve account
fm £m £m fm im im

At January 1 193 479 832 832!
Fair value changes to dervative contracts not in accounting hedging refationships 595 —_ 595 (327) — (327)
Fawr value changes to faw value hedges (26) = (26) 5 — 5
Fair value of contracts settled {254) —_ - 36317 — —
Transferred to turnover —_ (227) 227 — {353) 353
At Decemnber 31 508 252 193 479

1 Additonally £10m relating to dervatives settled pnor 10 adopuon of FRS 25 and FRS 26 was induded in the transitron hedging reserve and transferred 10 the profit and loss accountin 2005
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Notes (o the Company financial statements continued

16 Other finanaal assets and habilies continued
Movements in the far values of commaodity and interest rate financial instruments were as follows

Commodity financial iInstruments

2006 2005
Indudedin  Induded n Included in incuded in
transition profit bansion proft
hedging and loss hedgng and loss
Total reserve account Total resene account
£m £m fm fm im [y]
At January 1 3 5 9 g
Fair value changes to denvative contracts not In accounting hedging refationships 34 — 34 54 — 54
Fair value of contracts settied (26) — — (32) - —
Transferred to cost of sales — {5) 5 — @ 4
At December 31 39 ot 31 5

Where applicable, market values have been used to determine fair values, Where market values are not available, far values have been calculated by discounting expected
future cash flows at prevailing interest rates and ranslating at prevailing exchange rates

The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward raie agreements and interest rate caps to manage (ks exposure 1o movements n interast rates Where the effeciiveness of the
hedge relationship in a cash flow hedge 1s dernonstrated, changes in the farr value that are deemned effective are included in the hedging reserve and released to match
actual payments on the hedged item

Interest rate financial instruments

2006
Included in Other  Indudedim  Included in
farrvalue  Interest rate cash flow profit
he?ng financial hedging and loss
Total relationships  Instruments reserve account
£m £m fm £m £m
At January | 64 69 {5) —
Changes duning the year {48) (51) 3 -_ (48)
At December 31 16 18 (2) —
2005
Included n Other Indudedin Included in
farvalue  nterest rate cash flow profm
hed%ung financeal hedging and loss
Total  relabonsmips  nstruments reserve account
£m £m im £m £
At January 1, on adoption of FRS 26 i12 121 9 —
Changes durnng the year (48} {52) 4 — (48)
At December 31 64 69 (5} —
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16 Other financal assets and liabilies continued

Financial nsk and revenue shanng partnerships (RRSPs)

The Company has financial liabiliies ansing from financial RRSPs. These financial liabilities are valued at each reporuing date using the amortised cost method This involves
calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangerents using the internal rate of retum at the Inception of the arrangements as the discount rate

Maovements in the amortised cost values of financial RRSPs are as follows

2006 2005
£m fm
Al January 1 486 544
Cash paid to partners (96) (65)
Finanang charge 31 45
Excluded from underhing profit
Exchange adjustments (50) 64
Restructunng of financial RRSP agreements and changes in forecast payments (17) (102)
At December 31 354 486
Total return swaps

The Company entered into forward contracts to purchase its parent’s shares for the purposes of meeting obligations to issue shares under employee share schemes, Under

FRS 25, these contracts were categonsed as financial habilites and accounted for on the amortised cost basis, with the shares included at fair value These contracts were
settled dunng 2005

2005

fm

At January 1 142

On settiement of forward purchase contracts (141

Transferred to finance charges [0
At Decernber 31
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Notes to the Company financial statemenis continued

17  Prowisions for habilities and charges

At Unused  Charged to At
December 31, Exchange amounts  profit and December 31,
2005 adustments reversed  loss account Utilised 2006
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Deferred taxation {note 18) — — — 47 — 47
Warranuies and guarantees 39 (1) {8) 7 (15) 22
Contract loss 2 — —_ — {2) —
Custorner financing 70 — — 18 {7 a1
Restructuning 2 — — — {2) —
113 m (8) 72 (26) 150
Prowisions for warranties 2nd guarantees pnmanly relate to procucts sold and generally cover a penod of up to three years.
Prowvisions for contract foss and restructunng are generally expected to be utlised within two years.
Custormer finanaing pravisions cover guarantees prowded for asset values and/or financing as descibed in note 24 Tiring of uthisauon is uncerain
Insurance prowsions relate to the Company’s captive insurance business with the trming of wtdisation being uncerain
18 Deferred taxation
£m
At January 1, 2006 5
Amount charged to profit and loss account (216)
Amount credited 10 statement of total recogrised gains and losses 48
Amount credited to equity 116
At Decemnber 31, 2006 (47)

There are other deferred tax assets totaling £102m (2005 £102m) that have not been recognised on the basis that their future economic benefit 15 uncertain
The undistnbuted profits of overseas subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures may be liable to overseas taxes and/or United Kingdom tax {after allowing for double
tax relief) if rermitted as dividends to the UK. No deferred tax has been provided as there are currently no commitments 1o pay such dmdends,

The analysis of the deferred tax position 15 as fallows

2006 2005
£m fm
Fixed asset trming differences {115) (11
QOther tming differences 74 5
Foreign exchange and commodity financial assets and liabilites {182) 77
Losses 115 127
Advance corporation tax &1 61
(47) 5
Included in
Debtors — amounts falling due after one year — 5
Prowvisions 47) —
a7) 5

The above figures exclude taxation payable on capital gains which might anise from the sale of fixed assets at the values at which they are stated in the Company’s balance

sheet
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19 Post-retirement benefits

Defined benefit schemes
The Company operates a number of defined benefit schemes, for which the assets are held in separate trustee adrministered funds and employees are entitled to retrement
henefits based on therr final safanes and length of service

The valuations of the schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, updated by the scheme actuanes to December 31, 2006 The most recent funding
valuations of the main schemes were

Rolls-Royce Pension Fund ~ March 31 2003

Rolls-Royce Group Pension Scheme ~ April 5 2004

In 2006, the Company has adopted the amendments to FRS 17 published in November 2006 These amendments bring the disclosures into line wath International
Accounting Standard 19 and change the valuation of scheme assets to a bid price basis {previously valued on a mid market pnce basis) The coresponding amounts have
been restated accordingly The net result of these amendments 1s the recogrition of additional actuarial losses of £8m, of which £2m relates to 2005 and £6m to pricr years

The prinopat actuana! assumptions used at the balance sheet date were as follows.

2006 2005

% %
Rate of increase In salares 44 44
Rate of Increase of pensions i payment! 29 26
Discount rate 51 47
Expected rate of return on scheme assets 66 62
Inflation assurmption 29 29

' Benefits accrung after Apnl 5 2005 are assumed (o inaease N payment at a rate of 23 percent,

The mortality assumptions adopted for the pensian schemes are derved from the PA92 actuanal tables published by the Insutute of Actuanes, projected forward and, where
appropnate, adjusted to take account of the relevant schemes actual expenence The resulting ranges of bfe expectancies 1n the main schemes are as follows

Life expectancy from age 65
Current pensioner 17 5 years to 22 0 years
Future pensioner 165 years to 239 years

Other demographic assumphions have been set on advice from the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends in scherne experience and other relevant data
The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the penodic actuanial vatuation of the schemes

Actuanal gains of £591m (2005 £242m loss) have been reported in the statement of tota! recogrised gains and losses. Cumulative actuanal losses from January 1, 2002
reported in the statement of recogrused income and expense are £748m (2005 £1,339m}

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

2006 2005
£m im
Present value of funded oblgations (5.785) 6,102)
Fair value of scheme assets 5,101 4,809
Deficit {684} (1.293)
Related deferred tax asset 205 388
Net lrability (479) (905}
Changes in present value of defined benefit abligations
2006 2005
£m £m
Al January 1 (6:102) (4321}
Transfer from subsidiary company — (904
Current sence cost (97) 67
Finance cost {284) {246)
Conuibutions by employees {38) (31)
Net benefits paid out 259 212
Actuarial gains/(losses) 477 (745)
At December 31 (5,785) {6102)
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Notes ta the Comparny financial staternents cantinued

19 Post-retirement benefits continued

Changes in fair value of scheme assets

2006

2005

£m tm

At January 1 (as previously reported) 3.29%
Adoption of amendments to FRS 17 (8
At January 1 (restated) 4,809 3283
Trarsfer from subsidiary company — 837
Expected return on assets 256 244
Contributions by employer 103 123
Contnbutions by employees 38 31
Benefits paid out {259) (212
Actuanal gains/{losses) 114 503
At December 31 5,10 4809
Actual return on plan assets 410 747

The: fair value of the scheme assets and the expected rates of returm at December 31 were as follows

2006 2005

% £m % fm

Equities 75 3,526 71 3328
Sovereign debt 4.5 537 41 493
Corporate bends 49 1,009 45 856
Cther 5.0 29 43 132
6.6 5,101 62 4809

The scheme assets do not include any finangial nstruments of the Rolls-Royce Group plc group nor any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the group

The expected rate of return on indmdual categones of scheme assets are deterrined by reference to gilt yelds. The expectation s that the return from equities and
corporate bonds will exceed the return from gilts by three per cent per annum and 045 per cent per annum respectively The overall expected rate of return 1s calculated by
weighting the indmadual returns expected from each asset class i accordance with the actual asset balance in the schemes'investment portfolios

History of plons
The hstory of the plans for the current and prior years s as follows.
2006 2005 1004 2003 2002
£m £m fm £m fm
Present value of defined henefit gbligation {5,785) {6,102) {4321} {4,105) (4,127)
Fair value of scheme assets 5101 4809 31283 3049 2694
Defiat (684) {1293) {1038) {1,056) {1433)
ACtUznal gains/(k0s5e5) ON SCeme assets 114 503 92 253 (656)
Expenence losses on scheme liabilities 477 {745) (113} (436) {237)
Total amount recogrised 1n the statement of total recognised gamns and losses 591 {242) (21} {183) (893}

The Company has adopted the amendment to FRS 17 published in Decernber 2006 In accordance with the transitional prowisions of these amendmenits, the corresponding
amounts for 2002 and 2003 above have not been amended to reflect the change in valuation of scheme assets from mid-market to bid prices

The Company expects to contnbute approximately £132m to its defined benefit schemes in 2007 excluding any additienal amounts contnbuted to address the defiat as
discussed in the Chief Executive’s review on page 4

Defined contribution schemes
The Company operates a number of defined contnbution schernes.

The total expense recogrised in the Income statement was £2m (2005 £2m)
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20 Share capital

Equity Nomunal

ordinary shares value
of 20pr each £m
Authonsed
At January 1, and December 31, 2006 2,000,000,000 400
Issued and fully paid
At January 1, and December 31 2006 1,630,996,508 326

21 Reserves

Non-distributable

Transition
Share Revaluation hedging Other Profit and
premium reserve reserve reserves  koss account
im £m £m £m £m
At January 1, 2006 (as previously reported) 631 81 339 167 {1,345)
Adoption of amendments to FRS 17 (see note 19) — — — — (8)
At January 1, 2006 {restated) 631 81 339 167 {1,353)
Transfers between reserves —_ (8) — — 8
Transfer frorn transion hedging reserve — — {230) — —
Share-based payments acjustrment —— _ —_ — 34
Total recogrised gains relating to the year — — —_ —_ 1,085
Related tax movements — — 69 — 47
At December 31, 2006 631 73 178 167 (179)
The cumulative amount of goodwill, ansing on the acquisition of undertakings stll in the Company at December 31, 2006, watten off against other reserves amounis to
£370m (2005 £370m) The continuance of this basis, in respect of pre-1998 acquisitions, 1s permitted under the transitional arrangernents of FRS 10
22 Qperating lease annual commitments
2006 2005
£m im
Leases of land and buidings which expire
Within one year — —
Between one and five years 2 -
After five years 4 6
QOther leases which expire
Within one year 1 ]
Between one and five years 1 ]
After five years — —
Folis-Raoyce plc 2006
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Notes to the Company fingncal statements continued

23 Share-based payments

Share-based payment schermes in operation dunng the period
The Company partiapated in the followang share-based payment schemes of Rofls-Rayce Group plc in operation dunng the year

Performance Share Plan (PSF)
This plan invelves the award of shares to paricipants subject to performance conditions Vesting of the performance shares 1s based on the achievement of both non-market
based condmions (EPS and cash flow per share - CPS) and a market based performance condition (Total Shareholder Return - TSR)

ShareSave share option scheme
Based on a three or five year monthly savings contract, eligible employees are granted share options with an exercise pnce of up to 2¢ per cent betow the share pnce when
the contract is entered nto, Vesting of the options 1s not subject 1o the achievernent of a performance target The scheme s HM Revenue & Customs approved

Executrve Share Option Plan (ESOP)

Thus plan involves the grant of market value share options to participants The opuons are subject to a non-market based performance condition {growth in EPS) The options
have a maximum contractual life of ten years There was no grant of executive share optons in 2005 or 2006 Following the intraduction of the PSPt 1s not intended to grant
anvy further executive share options

Annual Perforrance Related Award (APRA) plon

Deferred shares awarded as part of the APRA plan One third of the value of any annual bonus 1s delivered in the form of a defesred share award The release of deferred share
awards 15 not dependent on the achievement of any further performance conditions other than that parucipants remain an employee of the Group for two years from the
date of the award in order 1o retain the full number of shares. During the two year deferral penod, partapants are entitled to recerve dvidends on the deferred shares.

Share Incentrve Pion (51P}
There 1s a Free Share' element of the UK Share Incentive Plan Bligible emplovees may receive shares with a value of up to one week's salary as part of any bonus pard There
are no conditons attached to the shares

In accordance with the transiional prowisions of FRS 20, the Company has recogrised an expense in respect of all grants under these plans made after November 7, 2002
and unvested at January 1, 2005
The Company recognised a total expense of £22m in 2006 (£16m in 2005)

The mavements in awards under the varous share schermes are shown in the tables below

Number of shares awarded

2006 2005

PSP Mmillions Millors
Quistanding at January 1 7 4
Awarded dunng the year 3 3
Forfeited during the year — o
Vested dunng the year — —_
Cutstanding at December 31 10 7
2006 2005

Number Waeighted MNumber Weghted
of share average of share average
options exerdise price OplIoNs  ExerCise prce

ShareSave Milions Pence ilhons Pence
QOutstanding at January 1 52 158p 60 130p
Granted durning the year — — 9 298p
Forferted dunng the year {1) 168p (1) 138p
Exercised dunng the year {9) 140p 06 140p
Qutstanding at December 31 42 153p 52 158p
Exeraisable at December 31 1 141p — —
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23 Share-based payments continued

2006 2005
Number Weighted Nurmber Wasghred
of share average of share average
options exercise price OpuONS  exeICe pece
ESCP Milkions Pence Mibors Perce
QOutstanding at January 1 43 149p 44 14Sp
Granted dunng the year — — — —
Forfeited duning the year (1) 216p ( 170p
Exerased dunng the year (30) 131p — —
Qutstanding at December 31 12 191p 43 14%p
Exercisable at December 31 3 118p — —
Number of shares awarded
2006 2005
Deferred shares under APRA Millions Millions
Qutstanding atJanuary 1 5 7
Awarded dunng the year 1 2
Forfeited duning the year — —
Vested dunng the year {3) {4)
QOutstanging at December 31 3 5
Number of shares awarded
2006 2005
Free shares under SIP Millions Mdlions
Awarded dunng the year 1 i
Optons were exeraised on a regular basis during the year The average share price dunng the year was 439p (2005 310p)
Fair vatues
The weighted average fair values for PSP awards, ShareSave grants, APRA deferred share awards, and SIP Free Share awards made during the year are as follows
2006 2005
Pence Pence
=3 4%4p 282p
ShareSave — 3 year - 13ip
ShareSave - 5 year — 154p
APRA deferred share awards 448p 260p
SIP Free Share awards 462p 257p

Detads of the assumptions used in the calcutation of these fair values are set out below Expected volatility was based on the hisionca! volatiity of the Rolls-Royce Group ple
share pnce over the seven years prior to the grant or award date Expected dmdends were based on payments to shareholders over the five years prior to the grant or award

date

PSP awards
The fawr value of the shares awarded under the PSP are calculated using the market value of the shares at the ume of the award adjusted to take into account

non-entitlernent to dedends dunng the vesting period and the TSR performance condinon The PSP far values were calculated using the following assumptions.

2006 2005
Weighted average share price 444p 262p
Expected dvdends 792p 781p
Volatility 32% 34%
Correlauon 19% 19%
Expected life 3 years 3 years
Risk free interest rate 43% 405

The PSP has a TSR market-based performance condition, such that the Rolls-Royee Group ple TSR over the performance peniod will be compared wath the TSR of the
companies constituting the FTSE 100 index on the date of grant If the Rolls-Royce Group plc TSR exceeds the median TSR of the FTSE 100, the number of shares that vest
will be ncreased by 25 per cent. The fair value of an award of shares under the PSP has been adjusted 1o take inte account this market-based performance condinon using a
pnang modet based on expectations about volatlity and the correlation of share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 companies and which incorporates into the
valuation the interdependency between share pace perfarmance and TSR vesung This adjustment increases the fair value relative to the share price at the date of grant.
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23 Share-based payments continued

ShareSave awards
The fair value of opticns granted under the ShareSave plan are calculated using a binomial pacing model with the following assumptions (no options were granted In 2006)
2005
Weighted average share price 351p
Exercise price 298p
Volatlity 40%
Expected dividends 786p
Expected Iife? — 3 year ShareSave 33-38 years
- 5 year ShareSave 53-58 years
Close perods_ o . __
From January 1 o 6 weeks
From july 1 i month
Risk free interest rate 44%

! The binormial pnang model assumes that partiapants will exercise options at the beginming of the sx month wandaw if the share price 1s greater than the exercisé prce Otherwise 1t assumes that options are
held unul the exprration of tharr contractual terrm This results in an expected hfe that falls somewhere between the start and end of the exercise window

Deferred shares under APRA and Free Shares under SiP
The fair value of shares awarded under these plans 1s calculated as the share price on the date of award

Farr values of options granted in 2003 and 2004
The charge under FRS 20 for the current peniod includes a charge for options granted under the PSE APRA, ESOP and ShareSave plans dunng the years ended
Decemnber 31, 2003 and 2004 with the following grant date fair values

2004 2003
PSP 249p o
ShareSave - 3 year — &1p
ShareSave - 5 year — 71p
ESOP = 33 7p
APRA 20p =
These fair values were calculated using the models described above with the following assumptions
PSP ShareSave ESOP
Weighted average share price 233p 173p 79p
Weighted average exercise price 142p 78p
Volatility 35% 43% 43%
Expected dwvidends 76lp 761p 761p
Expected life™ - 3 year ShareSave 315-365 years
— 5 year ShareSave 515-565 years
—ESOP 45 years
- PSP 3 years
Correlation 22%
Close penods
From January 1 Gweeks  Gweeks
From July 1 1month 1 month
Risk free interest rate 520 46% 41%

7 For the ShareSave options, the binomial pocng model assurmes that participants will exercise options at the beginning of the six month wandow 1f the share price 15 greater than the exercise prce Otherwise it
assumes that options are held untl the expiraton of thew contractual term This results In an expected hfe that falls somewhere between the stant and end of the exerase window
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24 Contingent habiities

In connection with the sale of its products the Company wall, on some occasions, provide financing support for its customers, The Company’s contingent habilities refating 1o
financing arrangements are spread aver many years and refate to a numnber of customers and a broad product porifolio

Contingent habilities are disclosed on a discounted basis. As the diectors consider the likehood of these contingent babilities crystallising to be remote, this amount
does not represent a present value However, the amounts are discounted at the Company’s barrowing rate to reflect better the time span over which these exposures coufd
anse The contingent labiiues are denominated i US dollars As the Company does not adopt cash flow hedge accounting for forecast foresgn exchange transactions, this
amount is reported together wath the sterling eguivalent at the reporting date spot rate

The discounted value of the total gross contingent liabilites relating to finanang arrangements on all delivered aircraft less insurance arrangements and relevant
prowisions, 3t December 31 2006 amounted to $1,109m, £566m (2005 $1,097m, £638m) Taking into account the net realisable value of the relevant securty including
unrestncted cash collateral of $114m, £58m (2065 $108m £63n), the discounted value of the net contingent lizbilines in respect of financing arrangernents on all delivered
aircraft amounted to $243m, £124m (2005 $259m, £150m) Sensitvty calculations are complex, but for example, if the value of the relevant secunty was reduced by 20 per
cent, a net contingent hability wath a discounted value of approximately $361m, £184m (2005 $363m, £21 1r) would resuft There are also net coningent habilives in
respect of undekivered aircraft, but it 1s not considered practicable 1o esumate these as delivenes can be many years in the future, and the refevant finanang will only be put
in place at the appropnate tirme

Conungent habiltes exist in respect of guarantees priovided by the Company in the ordinary course of business for product delivery, performance and reliability The
Company has, in the normal course of business, entered into arrangerneants in respect of export finance, performance bonds, countestrade obligations and minor
riscellaneous iterns The Company is party to legal actions and daims which anse in the ordinary course of business, some of which are for substantial amounts As a
consequence of the insalvency of an insurer as previously reported, the Company 1s no longer fully insured agamnst known and potental daims fiom employees who
worked for certain of the Company’s UK based businesses for a period prior to the acgquisiton of thase businesses by the Company While the outcorme of some of these
matters cannot precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actons or clarns, after altowing for prowsions already made, 1o result in
significant loss to the Company

Where the Cornpany enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the ndebtedness of other companies within its Group, the Company considers these to be
nsurance arrangemnents, and accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent iability until such ume as 1t becomes
probable that the Company waill be required to make a payment under the guarantee At December 31, 2006, there were Company guarantees in respect of finanaal
obligations of subsiciary undertakings amounting 1o £nil {2005 £50m), and in respect of joint ventures amounting to £12m (2005 £33m}

The Company participates in a Cash Pooling Arrangement. Under the Pooling Arrangement the Company benefits from more favourable interesi rates than would be
available cutside of the Pooling Arrangement as well as more streamlined treasury functians As part of the Pooling Arrangement, the Company cross-guarantees the
borrovangs of other pooling participants At December 31 2006 these guarantees amounted to £40m (2005 £117m)

25 Related party transactions
The Company 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of Rolls-Royce Group ple and therefore has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 8 not to disclose related party transactions

with its parent company and other group companies
The aggregated balances with joint ventures are shown in notes 8,9, 10, 13and 15

26 Ulumate holding company

The ulumate holding company 15 Rolls-Royce Group ple, Incorporated in Great Bntain The financial statements for Rolls-Royce Group plc may be obtained from the
Company Secretary, Ralls-Reyce Group ple, 65 Buckingham Gate, London SW1E AT
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Principal subsidiary undertakings

At December 31, 2006

Incorporated within the UK - directly held unless marked*

Ciwvil aerospace

Data Systems & Solutions Limiteg*

Advanced controls and predictive data managernent

Rolls Royce Aircraft Management Limited

Sales finance and other financrol services

Rolls-Royce Leasing Limited Engine leasing

Rolls-Royce Total Care Services Limited Afterrarket support senaces

Marine

Rolls-Royce Manne Hectncal Systems Limited® Manne electrical systems

Rolls-Royce Marnine Power Operations Lirmnited Nuclear submanne propulsion systems
Energy

Rolls-Royce Fuel Cell Systems Lirited Developrment of fuel cell systerns

Rolls-Royce Power Ventures Limited

Provision of project developrment capabiities

Corporate

Rolls-Royce International Limizeg

International support and commercial informetion seraces

Rolls-Royce Power Engineenng plc

Power generation and marine systems

The above companies operate pnincipally 1n the UK and the effective Group interest s 100 per cent, other than Rolls-Royce Fuel Cell Systerns Limited which 1s 75 per cent

Incorporated overseas — indirectly held

Civil aerospace

Braal Rolls-Royce Brasil Lirnitada Repoir and overhaul

France Rolls-Royce Technical Support SARL* Praject support

Germany Rells-Royce Deutschland Ltd & Co KG* Design, development and manulacture of aero engines

Italy Europea Microfusion Acrospazia S pA Manufacture of castings

us Data Systerns & Soluvons LLC* Advanced controls and predictive data management

us Rolls-Royce Corporation® Design, development and ranulfacture of gas turbine engines
Us Rolls-Royce Engine Seraces —~ Qakland Inc® Repair and overhou!

Defence aerospace

Us Rolls-Royce Defense Sences Inc Reparr and overhaul

Marine

China Rolls-Royce Manne {Shanghai) Lirnited* Manufacture and supply of ranne equipment

Finland Rolls-Royce OY AB* Manufacture of winches and propeller systems

India Rolls-Royce Energy Systerns India Private Limited® Proyect monogerment and Customer support

Norway Rolls Royce Marine AS* Design and manufacture of stup equipment/holding company
Norway Ulstein Holding AS* Holding company

Sweden Rolls-Royce AB* Manufacture of propeller systems

uUs Rolls Royce Commercial Manne Inc * Aftermarket support services

Us Rolls-Royce Naval Marine Inc.* Design and manufacture of ship propellers

Energy

Canada Rolls-Royce Canada Limited* industnal gas turbines and aero-enqine sales, serice and overhaul
Singapore Rolls-Royce Pre Lirnited* Enqine and turbine compression systems, spares

Us Rolls Royce Energy Systems In¢* Turbine generator packoges

Corporate

Guernsey Nightingale Insurance Limited” Insurance services

India Rolls-Royce Operations (ndial Prvate Limited* Provision of support servces

us Rolls-Royce North Amertca Holdings Inc.* Holding company

The above companies operate prncipally In the country of thewr iIncorporation

The effectve Group interestis 100 per cent, other than Europea Microfusiors Aerospazali S pA which 1551 per cent.

A list of all subsidiary undertakings will be included in the Company’s anaual return to Companies House

Rolts-Rayyce pic 2006

88



Principal joint ventures
At December 31, 2006

Incorporated within the UK - directly held unless marked"

% of dass % of 1otal
held  equity held

Civil aerospace
Alpha Partners Leasing Limited A Ordinary 100 } 50
Engine feasing B Ordinary —
TRT Limited A Ordinary — } 495
Turbre blode repair services B Cidinary 100
Turbine Surface Technologies Limited ACrdinary — } 50
Turbine surfoce coatings B Crdinary 100
Defence aerospace
Airtanker Hofdings Limited Ordinary 20 20
Strategic tanker avcraft PFi project
Rolls-Royce Snecna Limited (UK & France) A Shares — } 50
Engine collaboration B Shares 100
Rolls-Royce Turbomeca bimited (UK & France) A Shares — } 50
Adour and RTM322 engines colfaboration B Shares 100
Turbe-Union Limited (UK, Germany & Italy) Ordinary 40 } 40
RB199 engine collaboration A Shares 375
Energy
Genistics Holdings Limited ACrdinary 100 } 50
Tranler mounted fleld mobile generator sets B Crdinary —
Rolls Wood Group {Repatr and Overhaulsy Limited ACrdinary 100 } 50
Reparr and overhoul B Crdinary —
Rolls-Royce plc 2006
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Principal goent ventures continued

Incorporated overseas — directly held unless marked*

% of dlass 9 0¥ 1otal

Class held  equry heid
Civil agrospace
China Xian XR Aero Components Co bimited Ordinary 49 49
Monulactunng facility for aero-engine parts
Germany N3 Engine Overhaul Senaces Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbh® Ordinary 50 50
Repaw and overhaut
Hong Kong Hong Kong Aero Engine Services Limited*® Ordinary 45 45
Repair and overhoul
Israel Techlet Aerofods Lmited® A Ordinary 50 } 50
Manufacture of compressor geroforls B Ordinary 50
Saudi Arabia Middle East Propulsion Company Limited* Ordinary 167 167
Repair and overhoul
Singapore International Engine Component Overhaul Pte Limited* Orcinary 50 50
Repay and overhau!
Singapore Singapore Aero Engine Services Private Lirnited® (effective interest 39%) Ordinary 30 30
Repair and overhaul
Spain Industria de Turbo Propulscres SA QOrdinary 469 469
Manufacture and maintenance of gero engines
Swaizerand IAE International Aero Engines AG {UK, Germany, Japan & US) AShares 100
V2500 engine collaboration B Shares — 125
C Shares —
D Shares —
us Aloha Leasing (US) LLC®, Alpha Leasing {US) (No 2) LLC*, Alpha Leasing (US) {No 4) LLC* Partnerships 50 -
£ngine leasing
us Rolls-Royee & Partners Finance (US) LLC* Partnership S0 —
Engine leasing
us Texas Aero Engine Serwices, LLC* Partnershup 50 —
Repair and overhaul
Us Wilkams-Roells inc.* (UK & North Amenca) Common 15 15
Small engine colloboration
Defence aerospace
Germany EPI Europrop International GrbH (Germany) (effective interest 35.5%) Ordinary 28 28
A400M engine collaboration
Germany EURDJET Turbo GmbH {UK, Germany, Italy & Spain) {effective interest 39%) Ordinary 13 13
£/200 engine collaboraton
Germany MTU, Turbomeca, Rolls-Rayce GmbH {UK, France & Germany) Orchipary 333 333
MTR3%0 engine coliabaration
us GE Rolls-Royce Fighter Engine Tearm LLC* Partnershup 40 40
F136 development engine for the Joint Stnke Fighter (/SF) Programme
Corporate
us Exostar LLC® Partnership 176 —

Business to business internet exchange

Unincorporated overseas - held by subsidiary undertakings
Defence aerospace
us Light Helicopter Turbine Engine Compary* (LHTEC)
Rolis-Royce Corperation has a 50% interest in this unincorporated parinership which was formed to develop ond market jointly the T800 engrne

The counines of principat operations are stated in brackets after the name of the company, if not the country of Incorporation.
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